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MATURITY SCHEDULES

$275,362,351.75
CITY OF PHOENIX CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

State of Arizona Distribution Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005B

(Civic Plaza Expansion Project)

$15,238,008.70
Capital Appreciation Bonds

Initial Amount
per $5,000 Approximate

Maturity Initial Accreted Amount Yield to
July 1 Principal Amount Due at Maturity Maturity

2012 $ 460,208.70 $3,867.30 3.85%

2013 14,777,800.00 3,694.45 3.95

$260,124,343.05
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds

Initial Amount
per $5,000

Accreted Amount Coupon From Approximate
Maturity Initial at the and After Yield to
July 1 Principal Amount Conversion Date(1) Conversion Date(1) Maturity

2018 $ 1,484,036.00 $3,619.60 5.50% 4.22%

2019 1,915,439.40 3,600.45 5.50 4.29

2020 2,374,494.70 3,586.85 5.50 4.34

2021 2,851,493.40 3,573.30 5.50 4.39

2022 3,353,331.60 3,559.80 5.50 4.44

2023 3,882,660.70 3,549.05 5.50 4.48

2024 4,443,799.80 3,543.70 5.50 4.50

2025 5,027,387.85 3,532.95 5.50 4.54

2026 5,639,202.30 3,522.30 5.50 4.58

2027 6,287,082.70 3,514.30 5.50 4.61

2028 6,972,383.00 3,509.00 5.50 4.63

2029 7,697,628.90 3,503.70 5.50 4.65

2030 8,465,538.90 3,501.05 5.50 4.66

2031 9,274,258.40 3,498.40 5.50 4.67

2032 10,123,692.00 3,495.75 5.50 4.68
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2036 12,935,793.00 3,490.50 5.50 4.70

2037 13,634,005.65 3,487.85 5.50 4.71

2038 14,372,964.80 3,485.20 5.50 4.72

2039 15,164,105.20 3,485.20 5.50 4.72

2040 15,997,068.00 3,485.20 5.50 4.72

2041 16,878,823.60 3,485.20 5.50 4.72

2042 17,805,886.80 3,485.20 5.50 4.72

2043 18,785,228.00 3,485.20 5.50 4.72

2044 19,820,332.40 3,485.20 5.50 4.72

(1) Conversion Date is July 1, 2013.
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This Official Statement does not constitute an offering of any security other than the original offering of
the 2005B Bonds of the Corporation identified on the cover page hereof. No person has been authorized by the
Corporation, the City or the Underwriters to give any information or to make any representation other than as
contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representation must not
be relied upon as having been given or authorized by the Corporation, the City or the Underwriters. This
Official Statement shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of any offer to buy, and there shall be
no sale of any of the 2005B Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such offer,
solicitation or sale.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources which are believed to
be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and except with respect to the
information about the City, is not to be construed as a representation by the City. The information and
expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official
Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, give rise to any implication that there
has been no change in the affairs of the Corporation or the City since the date hereof. There is no obligation on
the part of the City or the Corporation to provide any continuing secondary market disclosure other than as
described herein under the heading ""CONTINUING DISCLOSURE.''

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement: The
Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their
respective responsibilities to investors in accordance with Federal securities laws as applied to the facts and
circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such
information.

Upon issuance, the 2005B Bonds will not be registered by the Corporation, the City or the Underwriters
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state securities law, and will not be listed on any stock or
other securities exchange. Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other federal, state or
other governmental entity or agency will have passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Official Statement
or approved the 2005B Bonds for sale.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
2005B BONDS OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE
PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE
DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
Relating to

CITY OF PHOENIX CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
$275,362,351.75

State of Arizona Distribution Revenue Bonds
Series 2005B

(Civic Plaza Expansion Project)

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the Appendices attached
hereto, is to set forth certain information concerning the Corporation, the City and the captioned 2005B
Bonds. The offering of the 2005B Bonds is made only by way of this Official Statement, which supersedes any
other information or materials used in connection with the offer or sale of the 2005B Bonds. Accordingly,
prospective 2005B Bond purchasers should read this entire Official Statement before making an investment
decision.

All financial and other information presented in this Official Statement has been provided by the City
from its records, except for information expressly attributed to other sources. The Corporation and the City
warrant that this Official Statement contains no untrue statements of a material fact and does not omit any
adverse material fact necessary to make such statements, in light of the circumstances under which this
Official Statement is made, not misleading. The presentation of financial and other information, including
tables of receipts from taxes and other sources, is intended to show recent historical information and, except as
expressly stated otherwise, is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial position or
other affairs of the City. No representation is made that past experience, as is shown by that financial and
other information, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future.

References to provisions of Arizona law, whether codified in the Arizona Revised Statutes or uncodified,
or to the Arizona Constitution, are references to current provisions. Those provisions may be amended,
repealed or supplemented.

For a summary of certain provisions of the 2005B Indenture and the 2005B Loan Agreement, see
""APPENDIX H Ì SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 2005B INDENTURE AND
THE 2005B LOAN AGREEMENT.'' For the definition of certain capitalized terms used in this Official
Statement, see ""Definitions'' which appears in ""APPENDIX H Ì SUMMARY OF CERTAIN
PROVISIONS OF THE 2005B INDENTURE AND THE 2005B LOAN AGREEMENT.''

BACKGROUND

In 2001, the City concluded that to keep its downtown convention center, known as the Phoenix Civic
Plaza Convention Center (the ""Civic Plaza''), competitive in today's convention marketplace, it would need
to substantially expand its useable exhibit and meeting space. In compliance with a charter provision requiring
expenditures of greater than $3,000,000 for convention facilities to be submitted to a vote of the electors of the
City, the City submitted to its electors a proposition authorizing the expenditure of $300,000,000 of City
money to be matched by $300,000,000 of non-City money to pay for a $600,000,000 expansion of its Civic
Plaza convention facilities. At an election held November 6, 2001, the proposition was approved by an
affirmative vote of more than two-thirds of the electors voting in the City election.

To raise the non-City funds required by the ballot proposition, the City requested the State legislature provide
matching funds for the Project (defined below). The State legislature responded affirmatively with the passage in
2003 of legislation (the ""Act'') authorizing up to fifty percent State funding for certain convention center
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developments in the State designated as eligible projects. The Project (defined below) will be an eligible project
and the City is an eligible city thereunder. See APPENDIX A for the full text of the Act.

Under the Act, the Arizona Department of Revenue is required annually to make a transfer of funds from
its excise tax clearing account to the Arizona Convention Center Development Fund (the ""ACCDF''), a fund
established by the Act and administered by the State Treasurer. The annual transfers into the ACCDF for
each eligible project are a fixed, stated amount, which is a minimum of two times the maximum potential
distribution from the ACCDF to an eligible city for an eligible project during such fiscal year. The transfer of
State excise tax receipts to the ACCDF is made during the month of July of each fiscal year from the State
excise tax clearing account at the same time as the transfer of State-shared excise taxes to the municipalities
and counties of the State, including the City (which transfer of State-shared excise taxes comprises a portion
of the Excise Taxes described hereinafter). Certain portions of the amounts deposited to the excise tax
clearing account are earmarked for the transfer of State-shared excise taxes to the municipalities and counties
(the ""distribution base''). In the State fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, the distribution base represented
approximately 32% of the aggregate, unencumbered deposits to the excise tax clearing account as a whole. In
that fiscal year, the other 68% of the aggregate, unencumbered deposits to the excise tax clearing account were
available for the transfers to the ACCDF, together with any unused portion of the distribution base in that
fiscal year. The balance in the excise tax clearing account is transferred to the general fund of the State after
the transfer to the ACCDF. Under the Act, the transfers to the ACCDF are returned to the general fund on
the first Monday in August following their transfer until construction of an eligible project has been completed
and a certificate of completion has been filed with the State Treasurer. See APPENDIX A for the full text of
the Act.

After an eligible city, such as the City, files a certificate of completion for an eligible project, such as the
Project, moneys transferred to the ACCDF are no longer returned to the State general fund. Instead, the
legislatively-established amounts are distributed by the State Treasurer from the ACCDF to the eligible city
(the ""State Distributions'') to be used either to pay project costs or to pay debt service on financing
undertaken to pay costs of construction of the eligible project. The Act requires the State Treasurer to make
State Distributions to the eligible city on or before August 1 of each year. The following table sets forth the
schedule of maximum State Distributions to the City, assuming both a filing by July 31, 2009 of the certificate
evidencing completion of construction of the Project and the expenditure of $300,000,000 of non-City eligible
project costs. For a discussion of State Distribution variance either as to timing or amount, see ""PLAN OF
FINANCE'' herein.
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TABLE 1

SCHEDULE OF MAXIMUM STATE DISTRIBUTIONS
(On or before August 1 of each year)

Year Amount Year Amount

2009 $ 5,000,000 2027 $27,500,000

2010 10,000,000 2028 28,000,000

2011 15,000,000 2029 28,500,000

2012 20,000,000 2030 29,000,000

2013 20,500,000 2031 29,500,000

2014 21,000,000 2032 30,000,000

2015 21,500,000 2033 30,000,000

2016 22,000,000 2034 30,000,000

2017 22,500,000 2035 30,000,000

2018 23,000,000 2036 30,000,000

2019 23,500,000 2037 30,000,000

2020 24,000,000 2038 30,000,000

2021 24,500,000 2039 30,000,000

2022 25,000,000 2040 30,000,000

2023 25,500,000 2041 30,000,000

2024 26,000,000 2042 30,000,000

2025 26,500,000 2043 30,000,000

2026 27,000,000

After (i) the eligible city has paid or otherwise satisfied all obligations due and payable for the eligible
project during the fiscal year in which the State Distributions are made, and (ii) the chief financial officer of
the eligible city notifies the State Treasurer that the eligible city's annual obligations have been satisfied, the
State Treasurer is required to transfer to the State general fund the remaining moneys in the ACCDF. In the
following July, another annual transfer is made to the ACCDF by the Arizona Department of Revenue for the
eligible project and the State Distributions are made again by August 1.

The Project is scheduled for completion in December, 2008. Under the Act, the City has until July 31,
2009 to file its certificate of completion in order for the first State Distribution to be made by the State
Treasurer to the City on or before August 1, 2009. See ""PLAN OF FINANCE'' herein for a discussion of the
City's advance of State Distributions if completion of the Project is delayed beyond July 31, 2009, or if non-
City project costs are less than $300,000,000.

The Corporation has previously sold $300,000,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005A (Civic Plaza Expansion Project) (the ""2005A Bonds''), the debt service on which will be paid
from City loan payments payable solely from the City's pledged Excise Taxes, as defined and described below.
The debt service on the 2005B Bonds described in this Official Statement is expected to be paid primarily
from City loan payments payable solely from the State Distributions (""2005B Loan Payments''). See
""SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT'' for a complete discussion of the pledge and use of the State
Distributions for the 2005B Loan Payments under the 2005B Loan Agreement (defined below) and the City's
obligation to advance funds under certain circumstances from Excise Taxes on a parity with the 2005A Bonds
in order to make any Additional Loan Payments (as defined below). The City expects that the net proceeds of
the 2005A Bonds and the 2005B Bonds will be sufficient to fund the Project (defined below).
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THE PROJECT

The City will use the proceeds of the 2005A Bonds and the 2005B Bonds to construct, expand, modify
and improve the Civic Plaza to create additional rentable convention space through the construction of a new
four-level meeting facility on the symphony terrace site adjacent to the existing Civic Plaza, replacing the
existing north building of the Civic Plaza with a new four-level facility, and providing transitional
improvements and structural renovations to the south building of the existing Civic Plaza (the ""Project'').

The Project is being constructed so that existing facilities will not be removed from service until
replacement space has been built and opened so that the Civic Plaza can remain open for convention business
without losing any rentable space throughout the expansion. Accordingly, the new four-level meeting facility
adjacent to the existing Civic Plaza will be constructed as Phase I (""Phase I''), and placed in service before
the existing north building is demolished and replaced as Phase II of the Project (""Phase II''). The
transitional improvements and structural renovations to the south building of the existing Civic Plaza are
included in the Phase II construction contracts. The City is on schedule for the completion and opening of
Phase I by May, 2006 and has scheduled its first event for the same month. The City has set a completion date
for Phase II of the Project of December, 2008.

The Project is being undertaken pursuant to a construction-manager-at-risk program with a guaranteed
maximum price (""GMP'') which has not yet been determined for the total Project. The City has a GMP for
Phase I which is within its budget for Phase I. The Project is ninety percent designed. It is expected that the
design of the facility will be completed by October, 2005. The GMP for Phase II and, therefore, for the entire
Project is expected by the first quarter of 2006.

The City has scheduled convention events for early 2009, which require that Phase II be completed by
December, 2008. Accordingly, the City expects that the Project will be completed in December, 2008 and that
a certificate of completion of construction will be filed with the State Treasurer early in 2009.

THE 2005B BONDS

Authorization and Purpose

The 2005B Bonds are being issued by the Corporation pursuant to the terms of the Series 2005B Trust
Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2005 (the ""2005B Indenture''), which is to be executed prior to the delivery of
the 2005B Bonds, by the Corporation and the Trustee (which, together with any successor, is referred to herein as
""Trustee,'' ""Registrar,'' ""Paying Agent'' and ""Authenticating Agent'') and are being issued for the purpose of
paying a portion of the costs of constructing, expanding, modifying and improving the Civic Plaza to create
additional rentable convention space through the construction of the Project. See ""PLAN OF FINANCE.'' Costs
of issuance of the 2005B Bonds will be paid from a portion of the proceeds of the 2005B Bonds.

General Description

The 2005B Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in book-entry-only form and
will be registered to Cede & Co. as described below under ""Book-Entry-Only System.'' AS LONG AS
CEDE & CO. IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE 2005B BONDS, AS NOMINEE OF THE
DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (""DTC''), REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE OWNERS OF THE
2005B BONDS (OTHER THAN UNDER THE CAPTION ""TAX MATTERS'') WILL MEAN
CEDE & CO. AND WILL NOT MEAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE 2005B BONDS.
PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST PAYMENTS ON THE 2005B BONDS ARE TO BE MADE TO DTC
AND ALL SUCH PAYMENTS WILL BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE TO SATISFY FULLY AND TO
DISCHARGE THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE CORPORATION AND THE CITY WITH RESPECT
TO, AND TO THE EXTENT OF, THE AMOUNTS SO PAID.

The 2005B Bonds maturing on July 1 in the years 2012 and 2013 are being issued as capital appreciation
bonds in the initial amount of $15,238,008.70, and will be dated the date of the initial delivery thereof (the
""CABs''). Interest on the CABs will not be paid semiannually; instead interest will accrue and be compounded
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semiannually on each January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1, 2006, until paid at maturity, at the
approximate yield to maturity set forth on the inside front cover page (see ""APPENDIX K Ì SCHEDULE OF
COMPOUND ACCRETED VALUES OF THE 2005B BONDS''). The 2005B Bonds maturing on July 1 in the
years 2018 through and including 2044 (the ""Convertible Bonds'') will be issued as convertible capital appreciation
bonds in the initial principal amount of $260,124,343.05, and will be dated the date of the initial delivery thereof.
Interest on the Convertible Bonds initially will not be paid semiannually; instead interest will accrue and be
compounded semiannually on each January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1, 2006 until July 1, 2013, the date
on which the Convertible Bonds will convert to current interest bonds (the ""Conversion Date''), at the
approximate yield to maturity set forth on the inside front cover page of this Official Statement (see
""APPENDIX K Ì SCHEDULE OF COMPOUND ACCRETED VALUES OF THE 2005B BONDS'').
From and after the Conversion Date, interest on the Convertible Bonds will be payable on the accreted value as of
the Conversion Date semiannually on each January 1 and July 1 (each an ""Interest Payment Date''), commencing
January 1, 2014, until maturity, at the interest rates set forth on the inside front cover page of this Official
Statement. The 2005B Bonds will be delivered in fully registered form in the denomination of $5,000 each of
accreted amount due at maturity or any whole multiple thereof (but no 2005B Bond may represent installments of
principal maturing on more than one date).

Subject to the provisions contained under the heading ""Book-Entry-Only System'' below, principal of
and interest at maturity on each 2005B Bond will be payable upon presentation and surrender of such 2005B
Bond at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar. Interest on each 2005B Bond, other than that
due at maturity, will be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft of said Registrar, mailed to the
person shown on the bond register of the Corporation maintained by the Registrar as being the registered
owner of such 2005B Bond (the ""Owner'') as of the fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding such
Interest Payment Date (the ""Regular Record Date'') at the address appearing on said bond register or at such
other address as is furnished to the Trustee in writing by such Owner before the fifteenth day of the month
prior to such Interest Payment Date.

The 2005B Indenture also provides that, with the approval of the Corporation, the Trustee may enter into
an agreement with any Owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of 2005B Bonds providing
for making all payments to that Owner of principal of and interest on that 2005B Bond or any part thereof
(other than any payment of the entire unpaid principal amount thereof) at a place and in a manner other than
as described above, without presentation or surrender of the 2005B Bond, upon any conditions which shall be
satisfactory to the Trustee and the Corporation; provided that without a special agreement or consent of the
Corporation, payment of interest on the 2005B Bonds after the Conversion Date may be made by wire transfer
to any Owner of $1,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 2005B Bonds upon two days prior written notice to
the Trustee specifying a wire transfer address of a bank or trust company in the United States.

If the Corporation fails to pay the interest due on any Interest Payment Date, that interest shall cease to
be payable to the person who was the Owner as of the Regular Record Date. When moneys become available
for payment of the interest, the Registrar will establish a special record date (the ""Special Record Date'')
preceding payment which Special Record Date will be not more than 15 nor fewer than 10 days prior to the
date of the proposed payment and the interest will be payable to the persons who are Owners on the Special
Record Date. The Registrar will mail notice of the proposed payment and of the Special Record Date to each
Owner.

Book-Entry-Only System

The following information about the book-entry-only system applicable to the 2005B Bonds has been
supplied by DTC. None of the Corporation, the City, the Trustee or the Underwriters makes any
representations, warranties or guarantees with respect to its accuracy or completeness.

The Depository Trust Company (""DTC''), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the
2005B Bonds. The 2005B Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede &
Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of
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DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the 2005B Bonds, in the aggregate
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a ""banking organization'' within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a ""clearing corporation'' within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial
Code, and a ""clearing agency'' registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC's
participants (""Direct Participants'') deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among
Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic
computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the
need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and
non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other
organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
(""DTCC''). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the
National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing
Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and EMCC, also
subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange
LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to
others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or
indirectly (""Indirect Participants''). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules
applicable to its Direct Participants and Indirect Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of 2005B Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the 2005B Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each 2005B Bond (""Beneficial Owner'') is in turn to be recorded on the Direct Participants' and
Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct Participant or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
2005B Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct Participants and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in 2005B Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the 2005B
Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all 2005B Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by
an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of 2005B Bonds with DTC and their registration in the
name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 2005B Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the
Direct Participants to whose accounts such 2005B Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial
Owners. The Direct Participants and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their
holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect
from time to time. Beneficial Owners of 2005B Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment transmission
to them of notices of significant events with respect to the 2005B Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders,
defaults, and proposed amendments to the security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 2005B
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the 2005B Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain
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and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners, in the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their
names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the notices be provided directly to them.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the
2005B Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Trustee as soon as possible after the record date. The
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose
accounts the 2005B Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus
Proxy).

Payments on the 2005B Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested
by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts, upon DTC's
receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Corporation or the Trustee on the payable date
in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Direct Participants and
Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices,
as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in ""street name,''
and will be the responsibility of such Direct Participants and Indirect Participants and not of DTC, the
Trustee or the Corporation, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time
to time. Payment to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative
of DTC) is the responsibility of the Corporation and the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct
Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners
will be the responsibility of Direct Participants and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the 2005B Bonds at
any time by giving reasonable notice to the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
securities depository is not obtained, 2005B Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Corporation may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC
(or a successor securities depository). In that event, 2005B Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to
DTC.

Redemption Provisions

The 2005B Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Registration, Transfer and Exchange

The Trustee will maintain the books of the Corporation for the registration and transfer of 2005B Bonds,
as provided in the 2005B Indenture.

2005B Bonds may be exchanged, at the option of their Owner, for 2005B Bonds of any authorized
denomination or denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unmatured principal amount of,
and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date or dates as, the 2005B Bonds being
exchanged. The exchange will be made upon presentation and surrender of the 2005B Bonds being exchanged
at the designated office of the Registrar or at the designated office of any Authenticating Agent for the 2005B
Bonds, together with an assignment duly executed by the Owner or its duly authorized attorney in any form
which is satisfactory to the Registrar or the Authenticating Agent, as the case may be.

Any 2005B Bond may be transferred upon the Register, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the
designated office of the Registrar or the designated office of any Authenticating Agent for the 2005B Bonds,
together with an assignment duly executed by the Owner or its duly authorized attorney in any form which shall
be satisfactory to the Registrar or the Authenticating Agent, as the case may be. Upon transfer of any 2005B
Bond and on request of the Registrar or the Authenticating Agent, the Corporation will execute in the name of
the transferee, and the Registrar or the Authenticating Agent, as the case may be, will authenticate and deliver,
a new 2005B Bond or 2005B Bonds, of any authorized denomination or denominations in an aggregate principal
amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed principal amount of, and bearing interest at the same rate and
maturing on the same date or dates as, the 2005B Bonds presented and surrendered for transfer.
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In all cases in which 2005B Bonds shall be exchanged or transferred pursuant to the 2005B Indenture, the
Corporation will execute, and the Registrar or any Authenticating Agent, as the case may be, will authenticate
and deliver, 2005B Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the 2005B Indenture. The Owner will be
charged for any fee or charge incurred in connection with the exchange or transfer of any 2005B Bond and the
Corporation and the Registrar or the Authenticating Agent, as the case may be, may also make a charge for
every exchange or transfer of 2005B Bonds sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or excise required to be
paid with respect to the exchange or transfer. The charge must be paid before a new bond is delivered.

All 2005B Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange of 2005B Bonds will be the valid obligations of the
Corporation, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under the 2005B Indenture, as the
2005B Bonds surrendered upon transfer or exchange.

PLAN OF FINANCE

The City has requested the Corporation assist in the financing of the Project by issuing its 2005A Bonds
and 2005B Bonds for such purpose and by entering into a loan agreement with the City related to each series
of bonds. The 2005A Bonds will fund the City's portion of the Project and the debt service thereon will be paid
from loan payments (the ""2005A Loan Payments'') from the City to the Corporation pursuant to a loan
agreement entered into between the Corporation as lender and the City as obligor. The 2005A Loan Payments
are payable from and secured solely by the City's Excise Taxes (as defined and described below). The 2005B
Bonds will fund the State-backed portion of the Project and the debt service thereon is expected to be paid
primarily from loan payments (the ""2005B Loan Payments'') from the City to the Corporation pursuant to a
loan agreement entered into between the Corporation as lender and the City as obligor (the ""2005B Loan
Agreement''). Except for the City's obligation to advance funds as described below, the 2005B Loan
Payments will be paid from and secured solely by the State Distributions under the Act.

The maximum State Distributions are set forth in Table 1, commence on or before August 1 immediately
following the filing of the certificate of completion of construction, and continue until the chief financial
officer of the City notifies the State Treasurer that no further distributions are required, or until 35 years
following the filing of the certificate of completion, whichever first occurs. The ability of the City to make the
2005B Loan Payments required to pay debt service on the 2005B Bonds when due solely from the State
Distributions is dependent upon timely completion of the Project to permit the first State Distribution to occur
on or before August 1, 2009, and on total non-City costs of the Project being equal to $300,000,000. If the
completion of construction is delayed and the City is not able to certify construction completion by July 31,
2009, all State Distributions will be delayed with the result that State Distributions may not be sufficient to
permit the City to make the 2005B Loan Payments in full during certain Bond Years (July 2 of one calendar
year through July 1 of the immediately succeeding calendar year). If such event were to occur, the City has
agreed in the 2005B Loan Agreement to advance the amount of any shortfall through additional loan
payments (the ""Additional Loan Payments''). Likewise, if the total costs of the Project backed by State
Distributions are less than $300,000,000, under the Act, the State Distributions are reduced proportionately
with the result that funds from the projected State Distributions may not be sufficient to permit the City to
make the loan payments set forth on page 15 in full. Since the Corporation is issuing its 2005B Bonds with the
expectation that total costs of the Project backed by State Distributions will equal $300,000,000, the City has
agreed to advance the amount of any shortfall as Additional Loan Payments. The City's obligations to make
Additional Loan Payments shall terminate when, in any Bond Year, the State Distributions projected to be
received by the City in each succeeding Bond Year meet or exceed scheduled debt service on the 2005B
Bonds in each succeeding Bond Year.

The City has agreed to make such advances as Additional Loan Payments under the 2005B Loan
Agreement in anticipation of reimbursement of such advances with interest from the State Distributions.

To secure its obligation to make the Additional Loan Payments, if needed, the City has pledged its Excise
Taxes as described below. See ""SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT'' herein.
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The City's obligation to make the Additional Loan Payments may terminate or be reduced if the Act is
modified in any way which would impair the City's ability to be reimbursed for such payments with interest
from the State Distributions.

SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT

General

The 2005B Bonds are special revenue obligations of the Corporation. The 2005B Bonds are payable as to
both principal and interest solely from payments required under the Series 2005B Loan Agreement between
the City and the Corporation. Under the terms of the 2005B Loan Agreement, the City is required to make
2005B Loan Payments to the Trustee for the account of the Corporation which will be sufficient to pay the
principal of and interest on the 2005B Bonds. The primary source of the revenues for the City's payments
under the 2005B Loan Agreement is the State Distributions. See ""APPENDIX H Ì SUMMARY OF
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 2005B INDENTURE AND THE 2005B LOAN AGREEMENT.''
No further legislative action is required to authorize the State Distributions, however, the legislature could
repeal or modify the Act with the result that there could be insufficient funds available to pay the debt service
on the 2005B Bonds. See ""BONDHOLDERS' RISKS'' herein. See APPENDIX B for financial information
relating to the State excise tax collections.

To the extent the City certifies construction completion by July 31, 2009, and total State-backed eligible
Project costs equal $300,000,000, the State Distributions paid as 2005B Loan Payments will be sufficient to
pay debt service on the 2005B Bonds as it becomes due. However, if either of those events does not occur, the
City would be required to make Additional Loan Payments to the extent required under the 2005B Loan
Agreement.

The Additional Loan Payments, if any, will be payable on the business day next preceding January 1 and
July 1 of each Bond Year.

The City pledges for the Additional Loan Payments, if any, all excise, transaction, privilege, business and
franchise taxes, state-shared sales and income taxes, and receipts from licenses and permits, which the City
presently or in the future imposes or receives from other entities and which are not earmarked by the
contributor for a contrary or inconsistent purpose (all such taxes and receipts are herein referred to as ""Excise
Taxes''). Such amounts will be subordinate and junior to the City's payments on a first priority, or senior,
basis to support certain other obligations of the City to the Corporation and to other entities (the obligations
payable from payments supported by a first priority pledge of the Excise Taxes, referred to herein as the
""Senior Obligations'' and the obligations payable from payments supported by a second priority pledge of the
Excise Taxes, referred to herein as the ""Junior Obligations''). See ""OUTSTANDING SENIOR AND
JUNIOR OBLIGATIONS'' in Appendix C hereof. The Additional Loan Payments, if any, will be payable
from the Excise Taxes on a parity with other subordinated junior obligations (the Additional Loan Payments,
if any, together with such other subordinated junior obligations, are referred to herein as the ""Subordinated
Junior Obligations''). See ""OUTSTANDING SUBORDINATED JUNIOR OBLIGATIONS,'' in
Appendix C hereof.

The obligation of the City to make payments to the extent required under the 2005B Loan Agreement,
but solely from the sources set forth therein, is absolute and unconditional but does not constitute a pledge
of the full faith and credit of the City and does not constitute an indebtedness of the City, the State of
Arizona or any of its political subdivisions within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt
limitation or restriction, nor shall the City be liable for such payments from ad valorem taxes. The
Corporation has no taxing power.
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Agreement with the State

The City and the State have entered into an Agreement dated September 6, 2005 (the ""Agreement'') in
order to clarify the respective obligations of each under the Act in connection with the financing of the
Project. Pursuant to the Agreement, the City has covenanted to use its best efforts to complete the Project by
December 15, 2008 at a cost, for purposes of the Act, not to exceed $600 million. The Agreement clarifies that
any costs in excess of $600 million are the sole responsibility of the City and are not considered costs of the
eligible project for purposes of determining the amount of State Distributions. The Agreement further sets
forth the duties and responsibilities of the State Department of Revenue and the State Treasurer in connection
with the timing and amounts of State Distributions as contemplated by the Act. Furthermore, the Agreement
sets forth the City's obligations relating to progress reports, the procedure for filing the certificate of
completion of construction, use of State Distributions and submission of certificates of sufficiency of
distributions as required under the Act.

Flow of Funds

Pursuant to the Act, the State Department of Revenue is required to make annual deposits into the
ACCDF during the month of July in each fiscal year. On or before each August 1 following the filing by the
City of a certificate of completion of construction with the State Treasurer, the State Treasurer will pay to the
City the State Distributions set forth in Table 1 assuming such filing is made on or before July 31, 2009 and
the State-backed portion of Project costs certified therein was equal to $300,000,000. Upon receipt of the
State Distributions, the City shall deposit them in the ACCDF Transfer Fund created in the 2005B Loan
Agreement.

In accordance with the provisions of the 2005B Loan Agreement, the City shall immediately pay the
entire amount of the State Distribution as its 2005B Loan Payment to the Trustee for deposit into the
Revenue Fund created in and subject to the pledge of the 2005B Indenture. In accordance with the provisions
of the 2005B Indenture, the Trustee will first pay Trustee's fees and expenses and any other expenses of the
Corporation for which it has requested payment and will then immediately transfer the entire balance in the
Revenue Fund to the Debt Payment Account of the Debt Service Fund, both created in and subject to the
pledge of the 2005B Indenture. On each August 1, the Trustee will transfer from the Debt Payment Account
to the Debt Service Account of the Debt Service Fund, created in and subject to the pledge of the 2005B
Indenture, an amount equal to the current Bond Year's debt service requirements.

All transfers from the Revenue Fund to the Debt Service Fund will be retained therein until the
combined balance of the Debt Payment Account and Debt Service Account total $60,000,000, an amount
expected to be approximately equal to two times the maximum annual debt service coming due on the 2005B
Bonds. Any excess amounts over $60,000,000 will be transferred by the Trustee to the Reimbursement and
Redemption Fund created in, but not subject to the pledge of, the 2005B Indenture. Under the terms of the
2005B Indenture, moneys in the Reimbursement and Redemption Fund may be used at the City's option to
defease or purchase 2005B Bonds in the open market, to reimburse the City for Additional Loan Payments, if
any, with interest as provided in the 2005B Indenture, or for any other lawful purpose under the 2005B Loan
Agreement or the 2005B Indenture.

Following payment of all amounts due and owing on the 2005B Bonds or to the Corporation or the City
under either the 2005B Indenture or 2005B Loan Agreement, all remaining State Distributions will be
returned to the State.
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BONDHOLDERS' RISKS

INVESTMENT IN THE 2005B BONDS INVOLVES CERTAIN RISKS. ANYONE
CONSIDERING INVESTMENT IN THE 2005B BONDS SHOULD EXAMINE CAREFULLY THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE APPENDICES HERETO, AND IN PARTICULAR
THE BONDHOLDERS' RISKS DISCUSSED BELOW.

Limited Source and Security for Payment of the 2005B Bonds

The 2005B Bonds are payable solely from the Revenues, which consist of: (i) 2005B Loan Payments
(payable from State Distributions), (ii) the Additional Loan Payments, if any (payable from a subordinate
lien pledge of Excise Taxes) and in each case, only under the limited circumstances described herein under
the captions ""PLAN OF FINANCE'' and ""SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT'', and
(iii) funds on deposit in certain funds and accounts established under the 2005B Indenture, including the
2005B Revenue Fund and the 2005B Debt Service Fund and available remaining proceeds of the 2005B
Bonds, if any. No other moneys have been pledged for the payment of the 2005B Bonds.

Availability of State Distributions as Sole Source of 2005B Loan Payments

The Series 2005B Loan Payments are payable solely from State Distributions deposited to the ACCDF
Transfer Fund and from available remaining proceeds of the 2005B Bonds, if any. The commencement and
amount of State Distributions as contemplated by the Act are subject to three contingencies. First, if for any
reason, construction of the Project is never completed and the City is unable to file a certificate of completion
of construction, the State Distributions will not commence and the City will have no obligation to pay the
2005B Loan Payments from any other source. In that event, the 2005B Bonds will be paid only to the extent of
the Additional Loan Payments, if any, funds on deposit in the 2005B Revenue Fund and the 2005B Debt
Service Fund and available remaining proceeds of 2005B Bonds, if any. Second, in the event completion of the
Project is delayed beyond July 31, 2009, investors will be relying on Additional Loan Payments until filing of
the certificate of completion and commencement of State Distributions. Third, State Distributions are subject
to reduction to the extent that the City incurs less than $300 million of Project costs eligible for funding from
State Distributions. In that event, the 2005B Bonds will be paid from 2005B Loan Payments and Additional
Loan Payments (until State Distributions are projected to be received by the City in each succeeding Bond
Year to meet or exceed scheduled debt service on the 2005B Bonds in each succeeding Bond Year).

Amendment or Repeal of the Act

If the Act is repealed or amended in any manner that materially adversely impacts the amount of the
State Distributions, the City will have no obligation to pay the 2005B Loan Payments from other sources and
the amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts established in the 2005B Indenture, might not be sufficient
to pay in full the remaining debt service on the 2005B Bonds. Furthermore, if the Act is repealed or amended
in a manner that adversely affects the ability of the City to be reimbursed with interest from State
Distributions for any 2005B Additional Loan Payments, the City's obligation to make the 2005B Additional
Loan Payments will be terminated or adjusted downward by the City to the extent of the amendment's adverse
impact. In such event, it is possible that the only monies available for payment of the 2005B Bonds would be
the amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts established in the 2005B Indenture.

The City believes that there are several provisions of the Act which evidence the State Legislature's
intent that the State Distributions, upon commencement, should continue as set forth therein until payment in
full of debt service on the 2005B Bonds. First, the Act requires that the Auditor General of the State conduct
an economic analysis to determine the total amount of incremental State general fund revenues derived from
economic activity associated with increased attendance at events held at eligible projects. The Act further
provides that if the State Distributions are higher than the incremental State general fund revenues, the State
is to recover the difference by withholding local transportation assistance revenues otherwise payable by the
State to an eligible city, instead of reducing future State Distributions. Second, the Act specifically
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contemplates borrowing by eligible cities to be repaid from State Distributions because (i) financing costs are
an eligible use of State Distributions, (ii) State Distributions do not commence until after filing of the
certificate of completion of construction which construction most likely could not be completed in the absence
of borrowed funds and (iii) the City is required to notify the State of the issuance of the 2005B Bonds as part
of the filing of the certificate of completion of construction. Furthermore, one of the purposes of the
Agreement between the City and the State is to set forth the expectations of each under the Act as they relate
to the payment of the State Distributions to be used to pay 2005B Loan Payments.

Enforceability of Remedies

The enforceability of the rights and remedies of the Owners of the 2005B Bonds under the 2005B
Indenture and the various other agreements and contracts described herein may be subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, redemption, fraudulent transfer and other similar laws affecting the
rights of creditors generally, and the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of
equity (whether applied by a court of law or equity). The opinions of counsel to be delivered at the closing of
the sale of the 2005B Bonds will contain qualifications as to the enforceability of such documents for such
matters. Further, such remedies, to the extent available, may be subject to delays inherent in litigation, and
could result in a corresponding delay of payment of principal of or interest on the 2005B Bonds.
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SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE ON THE 2005B BONDS

The annual debt service with respect to the 2005B Bonds is as follows:

Bond Year
Ending Compounded
July 1, Principal Interest Interest Debt Service

2012 $ 460,208.70 $ Ì $ 134,791.30 $ 595,000

2013 14,777,800.00 Ì 5,222,200.00 20,000,000

2014 Ì 20,449,000 Ì 20,449,000

2015 Ì 20,449,000 Ì 20,449,000

2016 Ì 20,449,000 Ì 20,449,000

2017 Ì 20,449,000 Ì 20,449,000

2018 1,484,036.00 20,449,000 565,964.00 22,499,000

2019 1,915,439.40 20,336,250 744,560.60 22,996,250

2020 2,374,494.70 20,189,950 935,505.30 23,499,950

2021 2,851,493.40 20,007,900 1,138,506.60 23,997,900

2022 3,353,331.60 19,788,450 1,356,668.40 24,498,450

2023 3,882,660.70 19,529,400 1,587,339.30 24,999,400

2024 4,443,799.80 19,228,550 1,826,200.20 25,498,550

2025 5,027,387.85 18,883,700 2,087,612.15 25,998,700

2026 5,639,202.30 18,492,375 2,365,797.70 26,497,375

2027 6,287,082.70 18,052,100 2,657,917.30 26,997,100

2028 6,972,383.00 17,560,125 2,962,617.00 27,495,125

2029 7,697,628.90 17,013,700 3,287,371.10 27,998,700

2030 8,465,538.90 16,409,525 3,624,461.10 28,499,525

2031 9,274,258.40 15,744,575 3,980,741.60 28,999,575

2032 10,123,692.00 15,015,550 4,356,308.00 29,495,550

2033 11,032,587.00 14,219,150 4,747,413.00 29,999,150

2034 11,637,351.75 13,351,250 5,007,648.25 29,996,250

2035 12,267,767.20 12,435,775 5,292,232.80 29,995,775

2036 12,935,793.00 11,469,975 5,594,207.00 29,999,975

2037 13,634,005.65 10,450,825 5,910,994.35 29,995,825

2038 14,372,964.80 9,375,850 6,247,035.20 29,995,850

2039 15,164,105.20 8,241,750 6,590,894.80 29,996,750

2040 15,997,068.00 7,045,225 6,952,932.00 29,995,225

2041 16,878,823.60 5,782,975 7,336,176.40 29,997,975

2042 17,805,886.80 4,451,150 7,739,113.20 29,996,150

2043 18,785,228.00 3,046,175 8,164,772.00 29,996,175

2044 19,820,332.40 1,563,925 8,614,667.60 29,998,925

Total $275,362,351.75 $459,931,175 $117,032,648.25 $852,326,175
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BOND INSURANCE

Financial Guaranty has supplied the following information for inclusion in this Official Statement.
Reference is made to ""APPENDIX L ÌFORM OF MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY'' for a
specimen of the bond insurance policy.

Concurrently with the issuance of the 2005B Bonds, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (""Financial
Guaranty'') will issue its Municipal Bond New Issue Insurance Policy for the 2005B Bonds (the ""Policy'').
The Policy unconditionally guarantees the payment of that portion of the principal of and interest on the
2005B Bonds which has become due for payment, but shall be unpaid by reason of nonpayment by the issuer
of the 2005B Bonds (the ""Issuer''). Financial Guaranty will make such payments to U.S. Bank Trust National
Association, or its successor as its agent (the ""Fiscal Agent''), on the later of the date on which such principal
and interest is due or on the business day next following the day on which Financial Guaranty shall have
received notice (in accordance with the terms of the Policy) from an owner of 2005B Bonds or the trustee or
paying agent (if any) of the nonpayment of such amount by the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent will disburse such
amount due on any 2005B Bond to its owner upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent of evidence satisfactory to the
Fiscal Agent of the owner's right to receive payment of the principal and interest due for payment and
evidence, including any appropriate instruments of assignment, that all of such owner's rights to payment of
such principal and interest shall be vested in Financial Guaranty. The term ""nonpayment'' in respect of a
2005B Bond includes any payment of principal or interest made to an owner of a 2005B Bond which has been
recovered from such owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in
accordance with a final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction.

Once issued, the Policy is non-cancellable by Financial Guaranty. The Policy covers failure to pay
principal of the 2005B Bonds on their stated maturity dates or their mandatory sinking fund redemption dates,
and not on any other date on which the 2005B Bonds may have been otherwise called for redemption,
accelerated or advanced in maturity. The Policy also covers the failure to pay interest on the stated date for its
payment. In the event that payment of the 2005B Bonds is accelerated, Financial Guaranty will only be
obligated to pay principal and interest in the originally scheduled amounts on the originally scheduled payment
dates. Upon such payment, Financial Guaranty will become the owner of the 2005B Bond, appurtenant
coupon or right to payment of principal or interest on such 2005B Bond and will be fully subrogated to all of
the Bondholder's rights thereunder.

The Policy does not insure any risk other than Nonpayment by the Issuer, as defined in the Policy.
Specifically, the Policy does not cover: (i) payment on acceleration, as a result of a call for redemption (other
than mandatory sinking fund redemption) or as a result of any other advancement of maturity; (ii) payment of
any redemption, prepayment or acceleration premium; or (iii) nonpayment of principal or interest caused by
the insolvency or negligence or any other act or omission of the trustee or paying agent, if any.

As a condition of its commitment to insure the 2005B Bonds, Financial Guaranty may be granted certain
rights under the 2005B Bond documentation. The specific rights, if any, granted to Financial Guaranty in
connection with its insurance of the 2005B Bonds may be set forth in the description of the principal legal
documents appearing elsewhere in this Official Statement, and reference should be made thereto.

The Policy is not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security Fund specified in Article 76 of
the New York Insurance Law.

Financial Guaranty, a New York stock insurance corporation, is a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of
FGIC Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and provides financial guaranty insurance for public finance and
structured finance obligations. Financial Guaranty is licensed to engage in financial guaranty insurance in all
50 states, the District of Columbia and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and, through a branch, in the
United Kingdom.

On December 18, 2003, an investor group consisting of The PMI Group, Inc. (""PMI''), affiliates of The
Blackstone Group L.P. (""Blackstone''), affiliates of The Cypress Group L.L.C. (""Cypress'') and affiliates of
CIVC Partners L.P. (""CIVC'') acquired FGIC Corporation (the ""FGIC Acquisition'') from a subsidiary of
General Electric Capital Corporation (""GE Capital''). PMI, Blackstone, Cypress and CIVC acquired
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approximately 42%, 23%, 23% and 7%, respectively, of FGIC Corporation's common stock. FGIC Corporation
paid GE Capital approximately $284.3 million in pre-closing dividends from the proceeds of dividends it, in
turn, had received from Financial Guaranty, and GE Capital retained approximately $234.6 million in
liquidation preference of FGIC Corporation's convertible participating preferred stock and approximately 5%
of FGIC Corporation's common stock. Neither FGIC Corporation nor any of its shareholders is obligated to
pay any debts of Financial Guaranty or any claims under any insurance policy, including the Policy, issued by
Financial Guaranty.

Financial Guaranty is subject to the insurance laws and regulations of the State of New York, where it is
domiciled, including Article 69 of the New York Insurance Law (""Article 69''), a comprehensive financial
guaranty insurance statute. Financial Guaranty is also subject to the insurance laws and regulations of all other
jurisdictions in which it is licensed to transact insurance business. The insurance laws and regulations, as well
as the level of supervisory authority that may be exercised by the various insurance regulators, vary by
jurisdiction, but generally require insurance companies to maintain minimum standards of business conduct
and solvency, to meet certain financial tests, to comply with requirements concerning permitted investments
and the use of policy forms and premium rates and to file quarterly and annual financial statements on the
basis of statutory accounting principles (""SAP'') and other reports. In addition, Article 69, among other
things, limits the business of each financial guaranty insurer, including Financial Guaranty, to financial
guaranty insurance and certain related lines.

For the six months ended June 30, 2005, and the years ended December 31, 2004, and December 31,
2003, Financial Guaranty had written directly or assumed through reinsurance, guaranties of approximately
$35.3 billion, $59.5 billion and $42.4 billion par value of securities, respectively (of which approximately 61%,
56% and 79%, respectively, constituted guaranties of municipal bonds), for which it had collected gross
premiums of approximately $131.4 million, $323.6 million and $260.3 million, respectively. For the six months
ended June 30, 2005, Financial Guaranty had reinsured, through facultative and excess of loss arrangements,
approximately 4.2% of the risks it had written.

As of June 30, 2005, Financial Guaranty had net admitted assets of approximately $3.327 billion, total
liabilities of approximately $2.152 billion, and total capital and policyholders' surplus of approximately
$1.175 billion, determined in accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by
insurance regulatory authorities.

The unaudited financial statements of Financial Guaranty as of June 30, 2005, the audited financial
statements of Financial Guaranty as of December 31, 2004, and the audited financial statements of Financial
Guaranty as of December 31, 2003, which have been filed with the Nationally Recognized Municipal
Securities Information Repositories (""NRMSIRs''), are hereby included by specific reference in this Official
Statement. Any statement contained herein under the heading ""BOND INSURANCE,'' or in any documents
included by specific reference herein, shall be modified or superseded to the extent required by any statement
in any document subsequently filed by Financial Guaranty with such NRMSIRs, and shall not be deemed,
except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Official Statement. All financial statements of
Financial Guaranty (if any) included in documents filed by Financial Guaranty with the NRMSIRs
subsequent to the date of this Official Statement and prior to the termination of the offering of the
2005B Bonds shall be deemed to be included by specific reference into this Official Statement and to be a part
hereof from the respective dates of filing of such documents.

Financial Guaranty also prepares quarterly and annual financial statements on the basis of generally
accepted accounting principles. Copies of Financial Guaranty's most recent GAAP and SAP financial
statements are available upon request to: Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, 125 Park Avenue, New
York, NY 10017, Attention: Corporate Communications Department. Financial Guaranty's telephone
number is (212) 312-3000.

The financial strength of Financial Guaranty is rated ""AAA'' by Standard & Poor's, a Division of The
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., ""Aaa'' by Moody's Investors Service, and ""AAA'' by Fitch Ratings. Each
rating of Financial Guaranty should be evaluated independently. The ratings reflect the respective ratings
agencies' current assessments of the insurance financial strength of Financial Guaranty. Any further
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explanation of any rating may be obtained only from the applicable rating agency. These ratings are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold the 2005B Bonds, and are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time
by the rating agencies. Any downward revision or withdrawal of any of the above ratings may have an adverse
effect on the market price of the 2005B Bonds. Financial Guaranty does not guarantee the market price or
investment value of the 2005B Bonds nor does it guarantee that the ratings on the 2005B Bonds will not be
revised or withdrawn.

Neither Financial Guaranty nor any of its affiliates accepts any responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness of the Official Statement or any information or disclosure that is provided to potential
purchasers of the 2005B Bonds, or omitted from such disclosure, other than with respect to the accuracy of
information with respect to Financial Guaranty or the Policy under the heading ""BOND INSURANCE''. In
addition, Financial Guaranty makes no representation regarding the 2005B Bonds or the advisability of
investing in the 2005B Bonds.

SOURCES AND APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS

Sources:

Original Principal Amount of the 2005B Bonds ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $275,362,351.75

Reoffering Premium ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28,361,271.55

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $303,723,623.30

Applications:

Transfer to the City to Pay Project Costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $300,000,000.00

Costs of Issuance (including bond insurance)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,970,474.42

Underwriters' Compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,753,148.88

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $303,723,623.30

THE CITY

The City is a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona.
Pursuant to the 2005B Loan Agreement, the City will agree to make payments sufficient to pay amounts due
on the 2005B Bonds. Detailed information on the City's Excise Taxes is set forth in Appendix C.

THE CORPORATION

The Corporation is a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Arizona for the
purpose of assisting the City in the acquisition and financing of municipal property and equipment.

The Corporation will enter into the 2005B Loan Agreement and the 2005B Indenture to facilitate the
financing of a portion of the costs of the Project. The Corporation is not financially liable for the payment of
principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the 2005B Bonds and the Owners will have no right to look to
the Corporation for payment of the 2005B Bonds except to the extent of the loan payments received from the
City under the 2005B Loan Agreement.

LITIGATION

The City is contingently liable in respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the ordinary course of
its operations. The City Attorney has advised City management of the nature and extent of pending and
threatened claims against the City. In the opinion of City management such matters will not have a materially
adverse effect on the City's ability to comply with the requirements of the 2005B Loan Agreement.
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To the knowledge of the City Attorney, no litigation or administrative action or proceeding has
(i) restrained or enjoined, or seeks to restrain or enjoin, the issuance and delivery of the 2005B Bonds or the
execution of the 2005B Loan Agreement by the City, or (ii) contested or questioned the validity of the 2005B
Bonds or the proceedings and authority under which the 2005B Bonds have been authorized and are to be
issued, secured, sold, executed or delivered. Certificates of the City to that effect will be delivered at the time
of delivery of the 2005B Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

General

In the opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, under existing law (i) interest on
the 2005B Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the ""Code''), and is not an item of tax preference for purposes
of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, and (ii) the 2005B Bonds
and the income thereon are exempt from taxation under the laws of the State of Arizona. Bond Counsel will
express no opinion as to any other tax consequences regarding the 2005B Bonds.

The opinion on federal tax matters will be based on and will assume the accuracy of certain
representations and certifications, and continuing compliance with certain covenants, of the Corporation and
the City to be contained in the transcript of proceedings and that are intended to evidence and assure the
foregoing, including that the 2005B Bonds are and will remain obligations the interest on which is excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel will not independently verify the accuracy
of those certifications and representations or that compliance.

The Code prescribes a number of qualifications and conditions for the interest on state and local
government obligations to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, some
of which require future or continued compliance after issuance of the obligations in order for the interest to be
and to continue to be so excluded from the date of issuance. Noncompliance with these requirements by the
Corporation and the City may cause the interest on the 2005B Bonds to be included in gross income for
federal income tax purposes and thus to be subject to federal income tax retroactively to the date of issuance
of the 2005B Bonds. The Corporation and the City have covenanted to take the actions required of it for the
interest on the 2005B Bonds to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes,
and not to take any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion.

A portion of the interest on the 2005B Bonds earned by certain corporations may be subject to a federal
corporate alternative minimum tax. In addition, interest on the 2005B Bonds may be subject to a federal
branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States and to a federal
tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations.

Under the Code, the exclusion of interest from gross income for federal income tax purposes may have
certain adverse federal income tax consequences on items of income, deduction or credit for certain taxpayers,
including financial institutions, certain insurance companies, recipients of Social Security and Railroad
Retirement benefits, those that are deemed to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt
obligations, and individuals otherwise eligible for the earned income tax credit. The applicability and extent of
these and other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status or other tax items of the owner of
the 2005B Bonds. Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding those consequences.

Purchasers of the 2005B Bonds at other than their original issuance at the respective yields indicated on
the inside cover of this Official Statement should consult their own tax advisors regarding other tax
considerations such as the consequences of market discount.

Original Issue Discount

All of the 2005B Bonds (""Discount Bonds'') were offered and sold to the public at an original issue
discount (""OID''). OID is the excess of the stated redemption price at maturity over the ""issue price'' of a
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Discount Bond. In the case of CABs, the stated redemption price at maturity is equal to the amount that will
be paid at the maturity of the CABs. In the case of the Convertible Bonds, the stated redemption price at
maturity is equal to (i) the amount that will be paid at the maturity of the Convertible Bonds plus (ii) the
amount of interest scheduled to be paid on such Convertible Bonds between the Conversion Date and the
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds. The issue price of a Discount Bond is the initial offering price to the
public (other than to bond houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or
wholesalers) at which a substantial amount of the Discount Bonds of the same maturity is sold pursuant to
that offering.

For federal income tax purposes, OID accrues to the owner of a Discount Bond over the period from
issuance to maturity based on the constant yield method, compounded semiannually (or over a shorter
permitted compounding interval selected by the owner). The portion of OID that accrues during the period of
ownership of a Discount Bond (i) is interest excluded from the owner's gross income for federal income tax
purposes to the same extent, and subject to the same considerations discussed above, as other interest on the
2005B Bonds, and (ii) is added to the owner's tax basis for purposes of determining gain or loss on the
maturity, prior sale, or other disposition of that Discount Bond. Any interest paid to the owner of a Convertible
Bond will (i) be treated first as a payment of the OID accruing for that interest period and, to the extent of
any excess over such allocable OID, as a non-taxable payment of principal and (ii) reduce the owner's basis in
such Convertible Bond. The amount of OID that accrues each year to a corporate owner of a Discount Bond is
taken into account in computing the corporation's liability for federal alternative minimum tax. A purchaser of
a Discount Bond in the initial public offering at the yield stated on the inside front cover of this Official
Statement who holds that Discount Bond to maturity will realize no gain or loss upon the retirement of that
Discount Bond.

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisers as to the determination for federal
income tax purposes of the amount of OID properly accruable in any period with respect to the Discount
Bonds and as to other federal tax consequences and the treatment of OID for purposes of state and local taxes
on, or based on, income.

LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the issuance of the 2005B Bonds and with regard to the tax-exempt status of the
interest thereon (see ""TAX MATTERS Ì General'') are subject to the legal opinion of Squire, Sanders &
Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, who has been retained by, and acts as Bond Counsel to, the Corporation and
the City. Signed copies of the opinion, dated and speaking only as of the date of delivery of the 2005B Bonds,
will be delivered to the Underwriters. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by
Greenberg Traurig, LLP, as Counsel to the Underwriters.

The text of the proposed legal opinion is set forth in Appendix I. The actual legal opinion to be delivered
may vary from that text if necessary to reflect facts and law on the date of delivery. The opinion will speak only
as of its date, and subsequent distribution of it by recirculation of the Official Statement or otherwise shall
create no implication that Bond Counsel has reviewed or expresses any opinion concerning any of the matters
referred to in the opinion subsequent to its date.

RATINGS

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services (""S&P'') has assigned to the 2005B Bonds a rating of ""AAA'' and
Moody's Investors Service (""Moody's'') has assigned to the 2005B Bonds the rating of ""Aaa'' each with the
understanding that the Policy will be issued by the 2005B Bond Insurer upon delivery of the 2005B Bonds.  No
application was made to any other rating service for the purpose of obtaining ratings on the 2005B Bonds. The
ratings reflect only the view of S&P and Moody's, respectively. An explanation of the significance of such
ratings may be obtained from S&P at 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041, and from Moody's at 99
Church Street, New York, New York 10007. Generally, a rating agency bases its ratings on the information
and material furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of its own. There is no assurance
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that the ratings will continue for any given period of time or that the ratings will not be revised downward or
withdrawn entirely by S&P or Moody's if, in their judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward
revision or withdrawal of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the 2005B Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The 2005B Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by Lehman Brothers and the other Underwriters
shown on the front cover of this Official Statement (the ""Underwriters''). The Underwriters have agreed to
purchase the 2005B Bonds, subject to certain conditions, at an aggregate purchase price of $301,970,474.42,
which is net of an underwriting discount of $1,753,148.88.

The Underwriters are committed to purchase all of the 2005B Bonds if any are purchased. The 2005B
Bonds are offered for sale initially at the approximate yields set forth on the inside front cover of this Official
Statement, which yields may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters. The 2005B Bonds may be
offered and sold to certain dealers (including underwriters and dealers depositing the 2005B Bonds into
investment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering price.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The City will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the ""Undertaking'') with respect to the
2005B Bonds for the benefit of the beneficial owners of such 2005B Bonds to send certain information
annually and to provide notice of certain events to certain information repositories pursuant to the
requirements of Section (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 (the ""Rule'') adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The specific nature of the information to be provided
on an accrual basis, the events which will be noticed on an occurrence basis and other terms of the
Undertaking, are set forth in ""APPENDIX J Ì FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
UNDERTAKING.''

The City has represented that it is in compliance with each and every undertaking previously entered into
by it pursuant to the Rule. A failure by the City to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute a default
under the 2005B Loan Agreement or the 2005B Indenture and beneficial owners of the 2005B Bonds are
limited to the remedies described in the Undertaking. See ""APPENDIX J Ì FORM OF CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.'' A failure by the City to comply with the Undertaking must be reported
in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer
before recommending the purchase or sale of the 2005B Bonds in the secondary market. Consequently, such a
failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the 2005B Bonds and their market price.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements of the City as of June 30, 2004 and for the fiscal year then ended included in
Appendix G to this Official Statement have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors, as stated in
their report which appears in Appendix G.
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MISCELLANEOUS

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated,
are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a
contract or agreement between the Corporation, the City or the Underwriters and the purchasers or holders of
any of the 2005B Bonds.

This Official Statement has been approved, executed and delivered by the Corporation and the City.

CITY OF PHOENIX CIVIC

IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

By /s/ WALLACE ESTFAN

President

CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

By /s/ BOB WINGENROTH

Interim Finance Director
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Senate Engrossed House Bill

State of Arizona
House of Representatives
Forty-sixth Legislature
First Regular Session
2003

CHAPTER 2 6 6

AN ACT

AMENDING TITLE 9. ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES. BY ADDING CHAPTER 6; 'AMENDING
TITLE 41. CHAPTER 4. ARTICLE 7. ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES. BY ADDING SECTION
41-791.04; AMENDING SECTION 42-5029. ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES; AMENDING TITLE42. 

CHAPTER 5. ARTICLE 1. ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES. BY ADDING SEtTION
42-5030; RELATING TO MUNICIPAL CONVENTION CENTER FINANCING.,

(TEXT OF BILL BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE)

i

JANICE K. BREWER
SECRETARY OF STATE



H.B. 2332

B-e i-t ena-cted by -the-Legislatu-re()f the- S-tau-af-Arizon:d= ~ ---~ Section 1. Title 9. Arizona Revised Statutes. is amended by adding

chapter 6. to read:
CHAPTER 6

CONVENTION CENTERS
ARTICLE 1. ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND

9-601. Arizona convention center develo ment fund. ur ose
THE ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND IS ESTABLISHED TO

ENCOURAGE AND ENABLE ELIGIBLE CITIES UNDER SECTION 9-604 TO DEVELOP AND
EXPAND MUNICIPALLY OPERATED MAJOR CONVENTION CENTER FACILITIES DESIGNED TO
SERVE LARGE CONVENTIONS AND TRADE SHOWS ATTENDED PRIMARILY BY RESIDENTS OF
OTHER STATES AND TO ENCOURAGE THE TOURISM AND VISITOR INDUSTRIES IN THIS

STATE.
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9-602. Fund ooeratiofl
A. THE ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND CONSISTS OF MONIES

DEPOSITED PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 42-5029 AND 42-5030.
B. THE STATE TREASURER SHALL ADMINISTER THE FUND. THE STATE TREASURER

SHALL INVEST AND DIVEST MONIES IN THE FUND AS PROVIDED BY SECTION 35-313 AS

NEEDED TO FACILITATE DISTRIBUTIONS FROM THE FUND. AND MONIES EARNED FROM

INVESTMENT SHALL BE CREDITED TO THE FUND.
C. ON OR BEFORE AUGUST 1 OF EACH YEAR. THE STATE TREASURER SHALL

DISTRIBUTE THE AMOUNTS COMPUTED IN SUBSECTION D OF THIS SECTION TO EACH

ELIGIBLE CITY THAT HAS FILED A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622 FOR EACH ELIGIBLE PROJECT UNDER SECTION 9-605.

D. THE AMOUNT TO BE DISTRIBUTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION C OF THIS

SECTION SHALL BE COMPUTED BY DIVIDING THE TOTAL COST OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT
NOT FUNDED FROM MUNICIPAL SOURCES AS IDENTIFIED IN THE CERTIFICATE OF

COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION FILED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622 BY THREE HUNDRED

MILLION AND MULTIPLYING THE QUOTIENT BY THE FOLLOWING AMOUNTS:

1. IN THE FIRST FISCAL YEAR. FIVE MILLION DOLLARS.

2. IN THE SECOND FISCAL YEAR. TEN MILLION DOLLARS.
3. IN THE THIRD FISCAL YEAR. FIFTEEN MILLION DOLLARS.

4. IN THE FOURTH FISCAL YEAR. TWENTY MILLION DOLLARS.
5. IN THE FIFTH FISCAL YEAR AND EACH OF THE NEXT THIRTY FISCAL YEARS.

THE AMOUNT DISTRIBUTED IN THE PRECEDING FISCAL YEAR PLUS FIVE HUNDRED

THOUSAND DOLLARS. EXCEPT THAT THE AMOUNT DISTRIBUTED SHALL NOT EXCEED THIRTY

MILLION DOLLARS IN ANY FISCAL YEAR.
E. IF SUFFICIENT DISTRIBUTIONS HAVE BEEN MADE TO PROVIDE FOR ALL OF

THE USES OF THE FUND MONIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-603 FOR AN ELIGIBLE
PROJECT. THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE ELIGIBLE CITY SHALL CERTIFY TO

THE STATE TREASURER THAT NO ADDITIONAL DISTRIBUTIONS ARE REQUIRED FOR THE

P~OJECT. AND ON RECEIVING THE CERTIFICATION THE STATE TREASURER SHALL MAKE

NO FURTHER DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE CITY FOR THAT PROJECT.
F. AFTER THE DISTRIBUTIONS REQUIRED BY SUBSECTION C OF THIS SECTION.

ANY MONIES REMAINING IN THE FUND ON RECEIPT OF THE CERTIFICATION OF
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SATISFACTION OF ANNUAL OBLIGATIONS-EURSUAHI--JOSECI.IDN.-9-613-_DR--ONJHEflRSI
MONDAY IN AUGUST IF A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION HAS NOT BEEN

PREVIOUSLY FILED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622. SHALL BE TRANSFERRED TO THE STATE

GENERAL FUND.
9-603. Use of fund monies
A. THE MONIES IN THE ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND SHALL

BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSES SPECIFIED IN THIS CHAPTER.
B. THE STATE TREASURER SHALL DISBURSE MONIES FROM THE FUND AS PROVIDED

IN SECTION 9-602. ANY AMOUNTS REMAINING IN THE FUND AFTER THE DISTRIBUTIONS
MADE PURSUANT T,O SECTION 9-602. SUBSECTION C SHALL BE HELD IN RESERVE FOR THE

PURPOSES OF THE DISTRIBUTIONS UNTIL THE CERTIFICATE OF SATISFACTION OF ANNUAL
OBLIGATIONS IS RECEIVED BY THE STATE TREASURER OR UNTIL THE FIRST MONDAY IN

AUGUST IF A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION HAS NOT BEEN PREVIOUSLY

FILED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622.
C. A CITY THAT RECEIVES MONIES DISTRIBUTED FROM THE FUND:
1. SHALL SEGREGATE AND SEPARATELY ACCOUNT FOR THE MONIES AND SHALL NOT

COMMINGLE THE MONIES FROM THE FUND WITH MONIES FROM ANY OTHER SOURCE. THOSE

MONIES SHALL BE DESIGNATED AS A SPECIAL FUND OF THE ELIGIBLE CITY. SEPARATE

FROM THE CITY'S GENERAL FUND. ANY AMOUNT NOT IMMEDIATELY USED TO MEET

SCHEDULED PAYMENTS OR CURRENT EXPENSES SHALL REMAIN IN THE SPECIAL FUND.
SHALL NOT BE TRANSFERRED TO THE CITY'S GENERAL FUND AND SHALL BE USED ONLY

FOR THE PERMITTED PURPOSES IN THE FUTURE.
2. MAY USE MONIES FROM THE FUND ONLY FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES IN

CONNECTION WITH AN ELIGIBLE PROJECT UNDER SECTION 9-605:
(a) THE DESIGN. DEVELOPMENT. CONSTRUCTION AND RELATED COSTS FOR A

CONVENTION CENTER AND RELATED DEVELOPMENT.
(b) FINANCING COSTS AND ANY OTHER COSTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION WITH

ANY FINANCINGS UNDERTAKEN TO FACILITATE THE ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THE USES OF THE

MONIES IN THE FUND AS PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION.
(c) FUNDING FINANCIAL RESERVES CREATED IN CONNECTION WITH ANY

FINANCINGS UNDERTAKEN TO FACILITATE THE ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THE USES OF THE

MONIES IN THE FUND AS PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION.
(d) REIMBURSEMENT OF ANY AMOUNTS PLUS INTEREST ADVANCED BY AN ELIGIBLE

CITY BUT FOR WHICH THE ELIGIBLE CITY DOES NOT HAVE ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY
TO PAY ANY PORTION OF FINANCING OR RELATED COSTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION WITH

ANY FINANCINGS UNDERTAKEN TO FACILITATE THE ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THE OTHER USES

OF THE MONIES IN THE FUND AS PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION.
(e) ANY OTHER COSTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE USES AND PURPOSES

SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE.
.D. AMOUNTS DISTRIBUTED FROM THE FUND ARE IN ADDITION TO ANY OTHER

AMOuNTS DISTRIBUTED TO ELIGIBLE CITIES PURSUANT TO ANY OTHER LAW.

9-604. Eliaible cities
TO BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE DISTRIBUTIONS FROM THE ARIZONA CONVENTION

Cf"NTER DEVELOPMENT FUND A MUNICIPALITY MUST:

1. BE A CHARTER CITY.
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2. HAVE A POPULATION OF MORE THAN:
(a) ONE MILLION PERSONS ACCORDING TO THE MOST RECENT UNITED STATES

DECENNIAL CENSUS AT THE TIME OF THE DISTRIBUTION.
(b) FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND PERSONS ACCORDING TO THE MOST RECENT

UNITED STATES DECENNIAL CENSUS. OR A SPECIAL CENSUS CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 42-5033. AT THE TIME OF THE INITIAL DISTRIBUTION.

3. OPERATE A CONVENTION CE"NTER FACILITY WITH AT LEAST TWO HUNDRED
THOUSAND SQUARE FEET OF EXHIBITION SPACE THAT WAS CONSTRUCTED WITH MONIES
FROM MUNICIPAL SOURCES.

9-605. Eligible projects
A. AN ELIGIBLE CITY MAY NOT SPEND MONIES FROM THE ARIZONA CONVENTION

CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND FOR USES OTHER THAN THOSE PERMITTED BY SECTION 9-603
AND ONLY IN CONNECTION WITH AN ELIGIBLE CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT

PROJECT.
B. A PROJECT IS ELIGIBLE ONLY IF:
1. THE VOTERS OF THE ELIGIBLE CITY HAVE APPROVED THE PROJECT AND ANY

REQUIRED FINANCING FOR THE PROJECT.
2. SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED MUNICIPAL SOURCES HAVE BEEN DEDICATED TO

PROVIDE FUNDING FOR AT LEAST ONE-HALF OF THE TOTAL PROJECT COST.
3. THE TOTAL COST OF THE PROJECT DOES NOT EXCEED SIX HUNDRED MILLION

DOLLARS.
C. IN THE CASE OF AN ELIGIBLE CITY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 9-604.

PARAGRAPH 2. SUBDIVISION (b). A PROJECT IS ELIGIBLE UNDER THIS SECTION ONLY

IF:
1. THE JOINT LEGISLATIVE BUDGET COMMITTEE HAS CONDUCTED A FINANCIAL

ANALYSIS OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT THAT INDICATES THAT THE PROJECT WILL RESULT
IN AN INCREASE IN STATE GENERAL FUND REVENUES GREATER THAN THE AMOUNTS OF
DISTRIBUTIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-602 IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT.

2. THE TOTAL COST OF THE PROJECT DOES NOT EXCEED SIXTY MILLION

DOLLARS.
ARTICLE 2. DEVELOPMENT

9-621. Authority to receive and spend distributions
IN ADDITION TO ANY OTHER POWERS CONFERRED BY LAW. AN ELIGIBLE CITY

DESCRIBED IN SECTION 9-604 MAY RECEIVE AND SPEND DISTRIBUTIONS FROM THE
ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND PURSUANT TO THIS CHAPTER.

9-622. Certification of completion of construction
A. WHEN CONSTRUCTION OR EXPANSION OF AN ELIGIBLE CONVENTION CENTER

DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IS COMPLETE. THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE CITY
SHALL CERTIFY THE COMPLETION TO THE STATE TREASURER AND TRANSMIT A COpy OF

THE CERTIFICATION TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL.
B. AS A PART OF THE CERTIFICATION, THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE

CITY SHALL:
1. NOTIFY THE STATE TREASURER IF THE CITY HAS ENTERED INTO ANY

AGREEMENTS THAT REQUIRE FUTURE SCHEDULED PAYMENTS AND THE AMOUNTS OF ANY SUCH

PAYMENTS.
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2. -CE~TI FV TO THE- STATE- fREASUR.e:-R--rH-U---A--P-ROJ-EC-T-MEUS-ALl--O£THE
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 9-605 BEFORE ANY DISTRIBUTIONS FOR THE
PROJECT FROM THE ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND TO THE CITY.

3. CERTiFY TO THE STATE TREASURER THE TOTAL COST OF THE ELIGIBLE
PROJECT AND THE PART OF THE TOTAL COST TO BE FUNDED FROM MUNICIPAL SOURCES.

9-623. Certification of satisfaction of annual obliaation
A. IN ANY YEAR THAT A SCHEDULED PAYMENT IS DUE AS STATED IN THE

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION FROM MONIES IN THE SPECIAL FUND
ESTABLISHED BY THE ELIGIBLE CITY FOR RECEIPT OF DISTRIBUTIONS FROM THE
ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND, ON RECEIVING DISTRIBUTIONS FROM
THE ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND, THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
SHALL DEPOSIT INTO THE APPROPRIATE ACCOUNT A SUFFICIENT AMOUNT FROM THOSE
DISTRIBUTIONS TO MAKE ANY SCHEDULED PAYMENTS OR DEPOSITS FOR THE CURRENT
FISCAL YEAR.

B. THE dHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER SHALL CERTIFY TO THE STATE TREASURER
THE SATISFACTION OF THE ANNUAL OBLIGATIONS ON DEPOSITING INTO THE APPROPRIATE
FUNDS OR ACCOUNTS SUFFICIENT MONIES TO MAKE ANY SCHEDULED PAYMENTS OR
DEPOSITS FOR THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR.

9-624. Reguest for state lease Rurchase
A. THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER MAY FILE A NOTICE WITH THE DIRECTOR OF

THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION REQUESTING THIS STATE TO UNDERTAKE LEASE
PURCHASE FINANCING IN CONNECTION W1TH AN ELIGIBLE PROJECT PURSUANT TO SECTION
41-791.04. THE NOTICE SHALL INCLUDE A DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE PART OF
THE ELIGIBLE P~OJECT THAT THE STATE IS REQUESTED TO LEASE PURCHASE.

B. THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION SHALL PROMPTLY RESPOND TO THE
PROPOSAL IN THE MANNER PRESCRIBED BY SECTION 41-791.04.

C. IF A NOTICE IS FILED AND THE LEASE PURCHASE FINANCING IS COMPLETED
PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION, NO DISTRIBUTIONS SHALL BE MADE BY THE STATE
TREASURER PURSUIANT TO SECTION 9-602 TO THE ELIGIBLE CITY FOR THE ELIGIBLE
PROJECT.

9-625. Tax exemRtion
AN ELIGIBLE CITY IS REGARDED AS PERFORMING A GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTION IN

CARRYING OUT THE PURPOSES OF THIS CHAPTER AND THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT IS
CONSIDERED TO BE MUNICIPAL PROPERTY FOR THE PURPOSES OF ARTICLE IX, SECTION
2, CONSTITUTION OF ARIZONA.

9-626. Construction Rroqress reRorts: auditor qeneral
Qerformance measures

A. THE ELIGIBLE CITY SHALL REPORT PROGRESS ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF ANY
ELIGIBLE PROJECT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE ON CAPITAL REVIEW TWICE ANNUALLY
DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT.

B. WITHIN FIVE YEARS AFTER THE FILING OF THE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION
O~ CONSTRUCTION OF AN ELIGIBLE PROJECT PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622, AND AFTER
CONSULT/.TION WIrH THE ELIGIBLE CITY, THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL CONDUCT OR
CONTRACT FOR AN ECONOMIC AND FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT
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COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION. AT A MINIMUM, THE ANALYSIS SHALL:

1. ESTIMATE THE EFFECTS OF DIRECT, INDIRECT AND INDUCED ECONOMIC

ACTIVITY IN THIS STATE ASSOCIATED WITH:

(a) REGIONAL AND NATIONAL CONVENTIONS AND TRADE SHOWS HELD AT THE SITE

OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT, THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF STATE GENERAL FUND REVENUES

DERIVED FROM THAT ECONOMIC ACTIVITY AND THE ESTIMATED AVERAGE ANNUAL

ATTENDANCE AT THOSE EVENTS ASSUMING:
(;) THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT HAD NOT BEEN COMPLETED.

(;i) THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT HAS BEEN COMPLETED.
(b) THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT AND THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF

STATE GENERAL FUND REVENUES DERIVED FROM THE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY.

2. COMPUTE THE TOTAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT OF DISTRIBUTIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 9-602 FOR THE FIRST THROUGH FIFTH YEARS FOLLOWING THE FILING OF THE

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION FOR THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT PURSUANT

TO SECTION 9-622 AND FROM THE FIRST THROUGH EACH SUBSEQUENT FIFTH YEAR.

3. COMPUTE THE NET CUMULATIVE DISTRIBUTIONS FOR THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT

BY SUBTRACTING THE AMOUNT DETERMINED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 1, SUBDIVISION (b)
OF THIS SUBSECTION FROM EITHER THE AMOUNTS DETERMINED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH
2 OF THIS SUBSECTION OR. IF APPLICABLE. THE AMOUNT OF STATE MONIES PAID UNDER

A LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 41-791.04.
4. BASED ON THE ANALYSIS CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THIS SUBSECTION,

ESTIMATE THE MINIMUM REQUIRED ATTENDANCE AT THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT FOR THE

FIFTH YEAR FOLLOWING THE FILING OF THE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF

CONSTRUCTION OF AN ELIGIBLE PROJECT PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622 AND EACH YEAR

THEREAFTER. THE ESTIMATES SHALL BE COMPUTED AS FOLLOWS:
(a) DIVIDE THE TOTAL STATE GENERAL FUND REVENUES ESTIMATED PURSUANT

TO PARAGRAPH 1, SUBDIVISION (a). ITEM (ii) OF THIS SUBSECTION BY THE

ATTENDANCE ESTIMATED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 1. SUBDIVISION (a), ITEM (ii) OF

THIS SUBSECTION.
(b) DIVIDE THE NET CUMULATIVE DISTRIBUTION AMOUNTS FOR THE FIFTH YEAR

FOLLOWING THE FILING OF THE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF AN

ELIGIBLE PROJECT PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622 AND EACH YEAR THEREAFTER COMPUTED

PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 3 OF THIS SUBSECTION BY THE QUOTIENT COMPUTED PURSUANT

TO SUBDIVISION (a) OF THIS PARAGRAPH.
(c) ADD THE AVERAGE ANNUAL ATTENDANCE ESTIMATED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH

1, SUBDIVISION (a). ITEM (i) OF THIS SUBSECTION TO EACH OF THE QUOTIENTS

DETERMINED PURSUANT TO SUBDIVISION (b) OF THIS PARAGRAPH. THE RESULTING SUMS

ARE THE MINIMUM REQUIRED ATTENDANCE AMOUNTS FOR EACH YEAR.
C. BEGINNING IN THE FIFTH CALENDAR YEAR FOLLOWING THE FILING OF THE

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF AN ELIGIBLE PROJECT PURSUANT TO

SECTION 9-622 AND EACH YEAR THEREAFTER, THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL:
1. ESTIMATE THE AVERAGE ANNUAL ATTENDANCE AT REGIONAL AND NATIONAL

COt~VENTIONS AND TRADE SHOWS HELD AT THE SITE OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT USING

t;
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COOPERATE WITH AND ASSIST THE AUDITOR GENERAL IN DEVELOPING THE ESTIMATES.

2. COMPUTE THE RATIO OF THE CUMULATIVE SUM OF THE ESTIMATED ATTENDANCE
AMOUNTS DEVELOPED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 1 OF THIS SUBSECTION FOR ALL YEARS
THROUGH THE CURRENT YEAR TO THE CUMULATIVE SUM OF THE MINIMUM REQUIRED
ATTENDANCE AMOUNTS FOR THOSE YEARS COMPUTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION B.
PARAGRAPH 4, SUBDIVISION (c) OF THIS SECTION.

3. NOTIFY THE PRESIDENT OF THE SENATE. THE SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES AND THE GOVERNOR OF:

(a) THE MINIMUM REQUIRED ATTENDANCE AMOUNTS FOR THOSE YEARS COMPUTED
PURSUANT TO SU~SECTION B. PARAGRAPH 4. SUBDIVISION (c) OF THIS SECTION.

(b) THE ATTENDANCE ESTIMATE DEVELOPED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 1 OF THIS

SUBSECTION.
(c) THE RATIO COMPUTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS SUBSECTION.
D. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN PARAGRAPH 4 OF THIS SUBSECTION. IF THE RATIO

COMPUTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION C. PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS SECTION IS LESS THAN

ONE:
1. THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL COMPUTE THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE

ESTIMATED STATE GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND THE NET CUMULATIVE DISTRIBUTIONS
BY MULTIPLYING THE NET CUMULATIVE DISTRIBUTIONS COMPUTED PURSUANT TO

SUBSECTION B. PARAGRAPH 3 OF THIS SECTION BY THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE RATIO

COMPUTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION C. PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS SECTION AND ONE.

2. THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL NOTIFY THE STATE TREASURER OF:
(a) THE RATIO COMPUTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION C. PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS

SECTION.
(b) THE I DIFFERENCE COMPUTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 1 OF THIS

SUBSECTION.
3. AT THE TIME OF THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED DISTRIBUTION. THE STATE

TREASURER SHALL WITHHOLD FROM THE AMOUNT THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE DISTRIBUTED

TO THE ELIGIBL~ CITY FROM THE LOCAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE FUND PURSUANT

TO SECTION 2SJS102 AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT STATED IN THE NOTICE

RECEIVED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS SUBSECTION. IF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE
FOR DISTRIBUTION IS LESS THAN THE AMOUNT TO BE WITHHELD. THE STATE TREASURER

SHALL CONTINUE WITHHOLDING FROM SUBSEQUENT DISTRIBUTIONS UNTIL THE FULL

AMOUNT STATED IN THE NOTICE HAS BEEN WITHHELD.
4. THE ELIGIBLE CITY MAY REQUEST AND THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL CONDUCT

OR CONTRACT FOR A COMPLETE ECONOMIC AND FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE

ELIGIBLE PROJE~T. IF AN ANALYSIS IS REQUESTED:
(a) THE!AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL NOT NOTIFY THE STATE TREASURER PURSUANT

TO PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS SUBSECTION. AND THE STATE TREASURER SHALL NOT WITHHOLD
PURSUA.4T TO PJ:,RAGRAPH 3 OF THIS SUBSECTION. PENDING COMPLETION OF THE

ANALYSIS.
(b) THE ANALYSIS SHALL BE SIMILAR TO THE ANALYSIS DESCRIBED IN

Sl!BSE,CTION B OF THIS SECTION. EXCEPT THAT THE ANALYSIS SHALL EXAMINE THE
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OPE~ATIONS_Of~J_HE ELIGIBLE PROJECT IN__TI:IE-- YE-AR EOR--WHLCH--IH£ RATIO IS L-ESS

THAN ONE.
(c) THE ANALYSIS, AT A MINIMUM, SHALL ESTIMATE THE TOTAL CUMULATIVE

INCREMENTAL REVENUES TO THE STATE GENERAL FUND RESULTING FROM THE COMPLETION
OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT INCLUDING THE REVENUES RESULTING FROM THE

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY ASSOCIATED WITH THE COMPLETION OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT.

(d) AND THE ANALYSIS DEMONSTRATES THAT THE TOTAL CUMULATIVE

INCREMENTAL REVENUES TO THE STATE GENERAL FUND EXCEED THE TOTAL CUMULATIVE

AMOUNT OF DISTRIBUTIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-602 AS COMPUTED IN SUBSECTION
B, PARAGRAPH 3 OF THIS SECTION. THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL NOT NOTIFY THE

STATE TREASURER PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS SUBSECTION AND THE STATE

TREASURER SHALL NOT WITHHOLD PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 3 OF THIS SUBSECTION.
(e) AND THE ANALYSIS DEMONSTRATES THAT THE TOTAL CUMULATIVE

INCREMENTAL REVENUES TO THE STATE GENERAL FUND ARE LESS THAN THE TOTAL
CUMULATIVE AMOUNT OF DISTRIBUTIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-602 AS COMPUTED IN

SUBSECTION B, PARAGRAPH 3 OF THIS SECTION:
(i) THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL SUBTRACT THE AMOUNT OF THE TOTAL

CUMULATIVE INCREMENTAL REVENUES TO THE STATE GENERAL FUND FROM THE AMOUNT OF

THE TOTAL CUMULATIVE DISTRIBUTIONS.
(ii) THE AUDITOR GENERAL SHALL NOTIFY THE STATE TREASURER OF THE

DIFFERENCE COMPUTED PURSUANT TO ITEM (i) OF THIS SUBDIVISION.
(iii) AT THE TIME OF THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED DISTRIBUTION, THE

STATE TREASURER SHALL WITHHOLD FROM THE AMOUNT THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE

DISTRIBUTED TO THE ELIGIBLE CITY FROM THE LOCAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE
FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 28-8102 AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT STATED IN THE

NOTICE RECEIVED PURSUANT TO ITEM (ii) OF THIS. SUBDIVISION. IF THE AMOUNT

AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION IS LESS THAN THE AMOUNT TO BE WITHHELD, THE STATE
TREASURER SHALL CONTINUE WITHHOLDING FROM SUBSEQUENT DISTRIBUTIONS UNTIL THE

FULL AMOUNT STATED IN THE NOTICE HAS BEEN WITHHELD.
E. THE ELIGIBLE CITY SHALL REIMBURSE THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR ANY COSTS

INCURRED IN COMPLYING WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS SECTION.
Sec. 2. Title 41, chapter 4, article 7, Arizona Revised Statutes, is

amended by adding section 41-791.04, to read:
41-791.04. Lease urchase financin' eli ible al

convention center ro"ects' eli ible s

lease Durchase fund
A. ON THE FILING OF A NOTICE BY AN ELIGIBLE CITY WITH THE DIRECTOR

PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-624 REQUESTING THIS STATE TO LEASE PURCHASE PART OF AN

ELIGIBLE MUNICIPAL CONVENTION CENTER PROJECT, THE DIRECTOR MAY COMPLETE LEASE
PURCHASE FINANCING OF THE PART OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT DESIGNATED BY THE

~LIGIBLE CITY. THE DIRECTOR MAY EMPLOY OUTSIDE CONSULTANTS TO REVIEW THE
LEASE PURCHASE PROGRAM REQUEST AND REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE

PROGRAM NEGOTIATED WITH THE ELIGIBLE CITY. THE ELIGIBLE CITY IS RESPONSIBLE

FOR THE COSTS OF THE CONSULTANT AND THE REPORT. THE LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
SHALL INCLUDE THE PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY SECTION 41-791.02, SUBSECTION BAND
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S IONS A_U.IHOR.lZED BY SECJJON ~1:_Z9_l.Q2--L-_~~~~~I1Q!4___~. _T1i_E AG~E_EM_~_NT
IS SUBJECT TO THE REVIEW PROVISIONS OF SECTION 41-791.02, SUBSECTIONS D AND
E. AT THE DIRECTOR'S REQUEST, THE ATTORNEY GENERAL MAY GIVE OTHER OPINIONS
RELATING TO THE AGREEMENT.

B. THE LEASE PURCHASE FINANCING AGREEMENT SHALL PROVIDE FOR:
1. THE USE, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIQN OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT BY THE

ELIGIBLE CITY AND FOR THE OWNERSHIP OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT BY THE ELIGIBLE
CITY ON COMPLETION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT.

2. THE ELIGIBLE CITY'S OPTION TO PURCHASE THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT AND ON
EXERCISING THE OPTION. THE VESTING OF OWNERSHIP OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT IN
THE ELIGIBLE CITY ON DISCHARGING THE LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT.

C. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SUBSECTION E OF THIS SECTION. THE ANNUAL
LEASE PAYMENT UNDER THE LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNT
THAT WOULD OTHERWISE HAVE BEEN DISTRIBUTABLE TO THE ELIGIBLE CITY PURSUANT
TO SECTION 9-602 IF THE NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-624 HAD NOT BEEN FILED.

D. AN ELIGIBLE PROJECTS LEASE PURCHASE FUND IS ESTABLISHED CONSISTING
OF MONIES APPROPRIATED BY THE LEGISLATURE FOR LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
PAYMENTS PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION. THE DIRECTOR SHALL ADMINISTER THE FUND
AND DISTRIBUTE MONIES IN THE FUND TO MAKE PAYMENTS PURSUANT TO LEASE PURCHASE
AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO BY THE DIRECTOR PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION AND TO PAY
COSTS CONSIDERED TO BE NECESSARY BY THE DIRECTOR AND THE ELIGIBLE CITY IN
CONNECTION WITH LEASE PURCHASE TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THIS
SECTION. PAYMENTS PURSUANT TO A LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT SHALL BE MADE ONLY
FROM THE ELIGIBLE PROJECTS LEASE PURCHASE FUND. THE STATE TREASURER SHALL
INVEST AND DIVEST MONIES IN THE FUND AS PROVIDED BY SECTION 35-313, AND
MONIES EARNED FROM INVESTMENT SHALL BE CREDITED TO THE FUND. MONIES IN THE
FUND ARE EXEMPT FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 35-190 RELATING TO LAPSING OF
APPROPRIATIONS.

E. AT THE REQUEST OF AN ELIGIBLE CITY. THE DIRECTOR MAY COMPLETE LEASE
PURCHASE FINANCING FOR ALL OR ANY PART OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT, EXCEPT THAT
IF THE ANNUAL LEASE PAYMENT OF THIS STATE EXCEEDS THE AMOUNTS THAT WOULD
OTHERWISE HAVE BEEN DISTRIBUTABLE TO THE ELIGIBLE CITY FO,R THE ELIGIBLE
PROJECT, ALL SUCH EXCESS AMOUNTS SHALL BE PAID FROM MONIES PROVIDED BY THE
ELIGIBLE CITY.

Sec. 3. Section 42-5029. Arizona Revised Statutes. is amended to read:
42-5029. Remission and distribution of monies
A. The department shall deposit, pursuant to sections 35-146 and

35-147. all revenues collected under this article and articles 4. 5. 8 and
9 of this chapter pursuant to section 42-1116. separately accounting for:

1. Payments of estimated tax under section 42-5014, subsection D.
'2. Revenues collected pursuant to section 42-5070.
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3. Revenues collected under_~his _a~!~~~_~!:,-~_~_~)!}le 5 of this chapter
from and after June 30. 2000 from sources located on In~re-servatiOns-in-
this state.

4. Revenues collected pursuant to section 42-5010, subsection G and
section 42-5155, subsection D.

B. The department shall credit payments of estimated tax to an
estimated tax clearing account and each month shall transfer all monies i~
the estimated tax clearing account to a fund designated as the transaction
privilege and severance tax clearing account. The department shall credit
all other payments to the transaction privilege and- severance tax clearing
account, separately accounting for the monies designated as distribution base
under sections 42-5010, 42-5164, 42-5205, 42-5353 and 42-5409. Each month
the department shall report to the state treasurer the amount of monies
collected pursuant to this article and articles 4, 5, 8 and 9 of this

chapter.
C. On notification by the department, the state treasurer shall

distribute the monies deposited in the transaction privilege and severance
tax clearing account in the manner prescribed by this section and by sections
42-5164,42-5205,42-5353 and 42-5409, after deducting warrants drawn against
the account pursuant to sections 42-1118 and 42-1254.

D. Of the monies designated as distribution base the department shall:
1. Pay twenty-five per cent to the various incorporated municipalities

in this state in proportion to their population as shown by the last United
States decennial or special census, or revisions to the decennial or special
census certified by the United States bureau of the census, to be used-by the
municipalities for any municipal purpose.

2. Pay 38.08 per cent to the counties in this state by averaging the

following proportions:
(a) The proportion that the population of each county bears to the

total state population, as shown by the most recent United States decennial
or special census, or revisions to the decennial or special census certified
by the United States bureau of the census.

(b) The proportion that the distribution base monies collected during
the calendar month in each county under this article, section 42-5164,
subsection B, section 42-5205, subsection B and sections 42-5353 and 42-5409
bear to the total distribution base monies collected under this article,
section 42-5164, subsection B, section 42-5205, subsection B and sections
42-5353 and 42-5409 throughout the state for the calendar month.

3. Pay an additional 2.43 per cent to the counties in this state as

follows:
(a) Average the following proportions:
(;) The proportion that the assessed valuation used to determine

secondary property taxes of each county, after deducting that part of the
~s'sessed valuation that is exempt from taxation at the beginning of the month
for which the amount is to be paid, bears to the total assessed valuations

9 -
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used to- determi ne secondary: -~Dpe.f-t~i.axe~-alL_th~_-c-o-untj es after_.1.
deducting that portion of the assessed valuations that is exempt from
taxation at the beginning of the month for which the amount is to be paid.
Property of a city or town that is not within or contiguous to the municipal
corporate boundaries and from which water is or may be withdrawn or diverted
and transported for use on other property is considered to be taxable
property in the county for purposes of determining assessed valuation in the
county under this item.

(ii) The proportion that the distribution base monies collected during
the calendar month in each county under this article. section 42-5164.
subsection B. section 42-5205. subsection B and sections 42-5353 and 42-5409
bear to the total distribution base monies collected under this article.
section 42-5164. subsection B. section 42-5205. subsection B and sections
42-5353 and 42-5409 throughout the state for the calendar month.

(b) If the proportion computed under subdivision (a) of this paragraph
for any county is greater than the proportion computed under paragraph 2 of
this subsection. the department shall compute the difference between the
amount distributed to that county under paragraph 2 of this subsection and
the amount that would have been distributed under paragraph 2 of this
subsection using the proportion computed under subdivision (a) of this
paragraph and shall pay that difference to the county from the amount
available for distribution under this paragraph. Any monies remaining after
all payments under this subdivision shall be distributed among the counties
according to the proportions computed under paragraph 2 of this subsection.

4. After any distributions required by sections 42-5030.42-5030.01.
42-5031. 42-5032~ AND 42-5032.01 arid 4f-5e3f.ef. and after making any
transfer to the water quality assurance revolving fund as required by section
49-282. subsection B. credit the remainder of the monies designated as
distribution base to the state general fund. From this amount:

(a) The legislature shall annually appropriate to:
(i) The department of revenue sufficient monies to administer and

enforce this article and articles 5. 8 and 9 of this chapter.
(ii) The department of economic security monies to be used for the

purposes stated in title 46. chapter 1.
(iii) The Arizona arts endowment fund established by section 41-986.

the full amount by which revenues derived from the amusement classification
pursuant to section 42-5073 for the current fiscal year exceed the revenues
that were derived from that classification in fiscal year 1993-1994. except
that this amount shall not exceed two million dollars through fiscal year
2008-2009.

(iv) The firearms safety and ranges fund established by section
].7-273. fifty thousand dollars derived from the taxes collected from the
ret~il classification pursuant to section 42-5061 for the current fiscal

year.

10



H.B. 2332

1
--Z"

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
1]
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

39
40
41
42
43
44
45

(b) The state treasurer shall transfer to the tourism fund an amount--equal to-the sum of the follo-wirig-: ' (i) Three and one-half per cent of the gross revenues derived from the

transient lodging classification pursuant to section 42-5070 during the
preceding fiscal year.

(ii) Three per cent of the gross revenues derived from the amusement
classification pursuant to section 42-5073 during the preceding fiscal year.

(iii) Two per cent of the gross revenues derived from the restaurant
classification pursuant to section 42-5074 during the preceding fiscal year.

E. If approved by the qualified electors voting at a statewide general
election, all monies collected pursuant to section 42-5010. subsection G and
section 42-5155. subsection 0 shall be distributed each fiscal year pursuant
to this subsection. The monies distributed pursuant to this subsection are
in addition to any other appropriation. transfer or other allocation of
public or private monies from any other source and shall not supplant.
replace or cause a reduction in other school district. charter school,
university or community college funding sources. The monies shall be
distributed as follows:

1. If there are outstanding state school facilities revenue bonds
pursuant to title 15. chapter 16, article 7. each month one-twelfth of the
amount that is necessary to pay the fiscal year's debt service on outstanding
state school improvement revenue bonds for the current fiscal year shall be
transferred each month to the school improvement revenue bond debt service
fund established by section 15-2084. The total amount of bonds for which
these monies may be allocated for the payment of debt service shall not
exceed a principal amount of eight hundred million dollars exclusive of
refunding bonds and other refinancing obligations.

2. After any transfer of monies pursuant to paragraph 1 of this
subsection, twelve per cent of the remaining monies collected during the
preceding month shall be transferred to the technology and research
initiative fund established by section 15-1648 to be distributed among the
universities for the purpose of investment in technology and research-based
initiatives.

3. After the transfer of monies pursuant to paragraph 1 of this
subsection. three per cer.t of the remaining monies collected during the
preceding month shall be transferred to the workforce development account
established in each community college district pursuant to section 15-1472
for the purpose of investment in workforce development programs.

4. After transferring monies pursuant to paragraphs 1. 2 and 3 of this
subsection. one-twelfth of the amount a community college that is owned.
operated or chartered by a qualifying Indian tribe on its own Indian
reservation would receive pursuant to section 15-1472. subsection D.
par~graph 2 if it were a community college district under the jurisdiction
of the state board of directors for community colleges shall be distributed
each month to the treasurer or other designated depository of a qualifying
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Indian tribe. Monies distributed pursuant to this paragraph are for the
exclusive purposeof-proviCii
owned, operated or chartered by a qualifying Indian tribe and shall be used
in a manner consistent with section 15-1472, subsection B. For purposes of
this paragraph, "qualifying Indian tribe" has the same meaning as defined in
section 42-5031.01, subsection D.

5. After transferring monies pursuant to paragraphs I, 2 and 3 of this
subsection, one-twelfth of the following amounts shall be transferred each
month to the department of education for the increased cost of basic state
aid under section 15-971 due to added school days and associated teacher
salary increases enacted in 2000:

(a) In fiscal year 2001-2002, $15,305,900.
(b) In fiscal year 2002-2003, $31,530,100.
(c) In fiscal year 2003-2004, $48,727,700.
(d) In fiscal year 2004-2005, $66,957,200.
(e) In fiscal year 2005-2006 and each fiscal year thereafter,

$86,280,500.
6. After transferring monies pursuant to paragraphs I, 2 and 3 of this

subsection, seven million eight hundred thousand dollars is appropriated each
fiscal year, to be paid in monthly installments, to the department of
education to be used for school safety as provided in section 15-154 and two
hundred thousand dollars is appropriated each fiscal year, to be paid in
monthly installments to the department of education to be used for the
character education matching grant program as provided in section 15-154.01.

7. After transferring monies pursuant to paragraphs I, 2 and 3 of this
subsection, no more than seven million dollars may be appropriated by the
legislature each fiscal year to the department of education to be used for
accountability purposes as described in section 15-241 and title 15, chapter
9, article 8.

8. After transferring monies pursuant to paragraphs I, 2 and 3 of this
subsection, one million five hundred thousand dollars is appropriated each
fiscal year, to be paid in monthly installments, to the failing schools
tutoring fund established by section 15-241.

9. After transferring monies pursuant to paragraphs I, 2 and 3 of this
subsection, twenty-five million dollars shall be transferred each fiscal year
to the state general fund to reimburse the general fund for the cost of the
income tax credit allowed by section 43-1072.01.

10. After the payment of monies pursuant to paragraphs 1 through 9 of
this subsection, the remaining monies collected during the preceding month
shall be transferred to the classroom site fund established by section
15-977. The monies shall be allocated as follows in the manner prescribed
by Jection 15-977:

12 -
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(a) Forty per cent shall be allocated for teacher compensation based
on performance:-- (b) Twenty per cent shall be allocated for increases in teacher base

compensation and employee related expenses.
(c) Forty per cent shall be allocated for maintenance and operation

purposes.
F. The department shall credit the remainder of the monies in the

transaction privilege and severance tax clearing account to the state general
fund, subject to any distribution required by section 42-5030.01.

G. Notwithstanding subsection D of this section, if a court of
competent jurisdiction finally determines that tax monies distributed under
this section were illegally collected under this article or articles 5, 8 and
9 of this chapter and orders the monies to be refunded to the taxpayer, the
department shall compute the amount of such monies that was distributed to
each city, town and county under this section. The department shall notify
the state treasurer of that amount plus the proportionate share of additional
allocated costs required to be paid to the taxpayer. Each city's, town's and
county's proportionate share of the costs shall be based on the amount of the
original tax payment each municipality and county received. Each month the
state treasurer shall reduce the amount otherwise distributable to the city,
town and county under this section by one thirty-sixth of the total amount
to be recovered from the city, town or county until the total amount has been
recovered, but the monthly reduction for any city, town or county shall not
exceed ten per cent of the full monthly distribution to that entity. The
reduction shall begin for the first calendar month after the final
disposition of the case and shall continue until the total amount, including
interest and costs, has been recovered.

H. On receiving a certificate of default from the greater Arizona
development authority pursuant to section 41-1554.06 or 41-1554.07 and to the
extent not otherwise expressly prohibited by law, the state treasurer shall
withhold from the next succeeding distribution of monies pursuant to this
section due to the defaulting political subdivision the amount specified in
the certificate of default and immediately deposit the amount withheld in the
greater Arizona development authority revolving fund. The state treasurer
shall continue to withhold and deposit the monies until the greater Arizona
development authority certifies to the state treasurer that the default has
been cured. In no event may the state treasurer withhold any amount that the
defaulting political subdivision certifies to the state treasurer and the
authority as being necessary to make any required deposits then due for the
payment of principal and interest on bonds of the political subdivision that
were issued before the date of the loan repayment agreement or bonds and that
have been secured by a pledge of distributions made pursuant to this section.
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Sec. 4. Title 42. chapter 5. article 1. Arizona Revised Statutes. is
amended by adding -sec-ti on 42- 5030. tri-reaa-:-- 42-5030. Transfers to the Arizona convention center develoRment

fund: distributions.
A. AT THE SAME TlME AS THE FlRST DlSTRlBUTlONS EACH FlSCAL YEAR

PURSUANT TO SECTION 42-5029. THE DEPARTMENT SHALL CREDlT TO THE ARlZONA
CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND ESTABLlSHED BY TlTLE 9. CHAPTER 6. ARTlCLE
1 THE AMOUNTS DETERMlNED PURSUANT TO THlS SECTION.

B. THE DEPARTMENT SHALL CREDlT TWENTY MlLLlON DOLLARS IN EACH FISCAL
YEAR UNTIL A CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION IS FILED WITH THE
STATE TREASURER PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622. IN EACH FISCAL YEAR THEREAFTER.
THE DEPARTMENT SHALL CREDlT THE AMOUNTS COMPUTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION C OF
THIS SECTION TO THE ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND FOR EACH
ELIGlBLE PROJECT AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 9-605.

C. THE AMOUNT DISTRlBUTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION B OF THlS SECTION
SHALL BE COMPUTED BY DIVlDING THE TOTAL COST OF THE ELIGIBLE PROJECT NOT
FUNDED FROM MUNlCIPAL SOURCES AS IDENTIFIED IN THE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION
OF CONSTRUCTION FlLED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-622 BY THREE HUNDRED MlLLION AND
MULTlPLYlNG THE QUOTlENT BY THE FOLLOWING AMOUNTS:

1. IN THE FIRST FISCAL YEAR. TWENTY-FlVE MlLLION DOLLARS.
2. IN THE SECOND FISCAL YEAR. THlRTY MILLION DOLLARS.
3. IN THE THIRD FISCAL YEAR. THIRTY-FIVE MlLLION DOLLARS.
4. IN THE FOURTH FISCAL YEAR. FORTY MILLlON DOLLARS.
5. IN THE FIFTH FISCAL YEAR AND EACH OF THE NEXT THIRTY FlSCAL YEARS.

THE AMOUNT DISTRIBUTED IN THE PRECEDING FlSCAL YEAR PLUS ONE MlLLlON DOLLARS.
EXCEPT THAT THE AMOUNT DISTRIBUTED SHALL NOT EXCEED SIXTY MILLION DOLLARS IN
ANY FISCAL YEAR.

D. IF THE CHlEF FINANClAL OFFICER OF THE ELIGIBLE CITY CERTIFIES TO
THE STATE TREASURER PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-602 THAT NO ADDlTlONAL
DISTRIBUTlONS ARE REQUlRED FROM THE ARIZONA CONVENTION CENTER DEVELOPMENT
FUND FOR AN ELIGIBLE PROJECT. THE DEPARTMENT SHALL MAKE NO FURTHER TRANSFERS
TO THE FUND FOR THAT PROJECT.

Sec. 5. Severability
If a provision of this act or its application to any person or

circumstance is held invalid. the invalidity does not affect other provisions
or applications of the act that can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application. and to this end the provisions of this act are
severable.

Sec. 6. Retroactivity
This act applies retroactively to fiscal years beginning from and after

June 30. 2003.

JUNE 24, 2003.APPROVED BY

OF STATE JUNE 24, 2003.FILED IN THE OFFICE OF



f-Passed the senate-

011by the following vote: s- q Ayes, by the foUowing vote:

--7 -

Ayes,

~0 Nays, , Not Voting

Nays,

Not Voting

SpeaKer oftbe House

L,P:::111~ (\ h ~ '" ~ \ 3 ,,;:-CXl'IJ...,
Secretary of the SeDate

~

Chief Clerk of the House

OFFICE OF GOVERNOR

This Bill the Governor this

day of -'

at o'clock M.

Secretary to the Governor

H.B. 2332



HOUSE CONCURS IN SENATE
AMENDMENTS AND FINAL PASSAGE

20~~-

by the following vote: 3/ Ayes,

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT OF ARIZONA
OFFICE OF GOVERNOR

This Bill was received by the Governor this

--~Q- day of\._i~.L1..e .2009

Approved this .2 q day of

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT OF ARIZONA
OFFICE OF SECRETARY OF STATE

This Bill was received by the Secretary of State

this _~Zi_- day or~ ~ 20-1!..3,
H.B. 2332



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

iii



APPENDIX B

STATE OF ARIZONA HISTORICAL EXCISE TAX COLLECTIONS

Arizona Department of Revenue
Transaction Privilege, License and Use Taxes*

(in millions)

Fiscal Year
Ended Transaction Privilege,
June 30 License & Use Tax % Change

2004 $4,753 8.4%
2003 4,383 1.8
2002 4,305 0.5
2001 4,284 6.0
2000 4,041 11.2
1999 3,635 7.8
1998 3,372 5.6
1997 3,193 4.9
1996 3,044 Ì

Average Annual Growth 1996-2004: 7.0%

* Excludes the ""Education Tax'' pursuant to Proposition 301

Source: Arizona Department of Revenue website
(www.azdor.gov/txfcts.htm)
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APPENDIX C

CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA
OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE FROM EXCISE TAXES

Outstanding Senior and Junior Obligations

As of July 2, 2005, there are presently outstanding $183,275,000 of Senior Obligations. The debt service
requirements on $42,305,000 of the Senior Obligations are supported by airport revenues. The Phoenix Aviation
Department has been a self-supporting enterprise since 1967, with debt service requirements on airport revenue
bonds, airport general obligation bonds and airport lease purchase obligations paid from airport revenues.

The following issues of Senior Obligations are outstanding:
Obligations

Issue Original Outstanding
Date Issuance Purpose As of 7-2-05

05-01-94 $ 33,705,000 Airport Improvements Refunding (1) $ 17,980,000

08-01-94 43,250,000 Civic Plaza Improvements 3,545,000

02-01-98 38,355,000 Airport Terminal 4 Refunding (1) 24,325,000

06-01-99 79,000,000 Phoenix Municipal Courthouse 77,410,000

06-01-99 15,000,000 Adams Street Garage 14,695,000

05-01-03 47,600,000 New City Hall Refunding 45,320,000

Total $256,910,000 $183,275,000

(1) Debt service requirements on these obligations are supported by airport revenues.

There are not presently outstanding any Junior Obligations.

So long as any of the 2005B Bonds remain outstanding and the principal and interest thereon is unpaid or
unprovided for, the City has agreed not to issue additional Senior Obligations or Junior Obligations unless the
Excise Taxes collected by the City during the next preceding fiscal year (the ""Prior Excise Taxes'') are at
least two times the highest combined interest and principal requirements for any succeeding fiscal year for all
outstanding Senior Obligations, Junior Obligations, Subordinated Junior Obligations, including the Additional
Loan Payments, if any, and any obligations on a parity therewith.
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Outstanding Subordinated Junior Obligations

There are presently outstanding $658,035,000 principal amount of Subordinated Junior Obligations,
including the 2005A Bonds delivered on September 13, 2005. The debt service requirements on $31,000,000 of
the Subordinated Junior Obligations are supported by airport revenues, and debt service requirements on
$80,080,000 of the Subordinated Junior Obligations are supported by solid waste revenues.

Obligations
Issue Original Outstanding
Date Issuance Purpose As of 7-2-05

06-01-93 $ 14,350,000 Patriot's Square Park and Parking Garage Refunding $ 5,265,000

04-25-95 31,000,000 Airport Improvements (1) 31,000,000

01-15-97 9,935,000 Municipal Facilities Refunding 9,360,000

01-01-98 43,000,000 Civic Plaza East Garage (Taxable) 36,975,000

01-15-98 48,740,000 Municipal Multipurpose Arena Refunding (Taxable) 40,535,000

08-01-00 65,000,000 Municipal Facilities (2) 38,010,000

05-01-03 80,000,000 Solid Waste Improvements (3) 75,190,000

05-01-03 25,000,000 Municipal Facilities 24,015,000

05-01-03 25,000,000 Municipal Facilities (Taxable) 25,000,000

05-01-03 10,000,000 Municipal Facilities (Taxable) 10,000,000

06-01-04 22,000,000 Municipal Facilities 22,000,000

06-01-04 5,700,000 Municipal Facilities Refunding 5,700,000

07-01-04 35,465,000 Municipal Facilities Refunding 34,985,000

09-13-05 300,000,000 Civic Plaza Expansion 300,000,000 (4)

Total $715,190,000 $658,035,000

(1) Debt service requirements on these obligations are supported by airport revenues.

(2) Debt service requirements on $4,890,000 of these obligations are supported by solid waste revenues.

(3) Debt service requirements on these obligations are supported by solid waste revenues.

(4) Represents the 2005A Bonds delivered on September 13, 2005.

The City has agreed not to further encumber the Excise Taxes on a parity with the payments under the
2005B Loan Agreement unless the Prior Excise Taxes are at least equal to the highest combined total of the
following for any succeeding 12 months: (i) principal and interest requirements on the Senior Obligations and
the Junior Obligations during such period, plus (ii) two times the principal and interest requirements for all
Subordinated Junior Obligations including the Additional Loan Payments, if any, and parity obligations then
outstanding and proposed to be issued during such period. In computing the interest requirements on
obligations which bear or are to bear interest at a variable interest rate, such interest requirements shall be
assumed to be a fixed interest rate equal to the greater of: (1) 9.2% or (2) (a) if any variable rate obligations
secured by a pledge of Excise Taxes are outstanding, the highest variable rate actually borne by such
obligations over the previous 24 months, or (b) if no such variable rate obligations are outstanding, then the
highest rate borne by variable rate obligations over the previous 24 months for which the interest rate is
computed by reference to an index, or based on factors, comparable to that to be utilized for the proposed
obligations.

EXCISE TAXES AND COVERAGE

Excise Taxes in General

The Excise Taxes pledged to the payment of Loan Payments include the City's unrestricted revenues
from transaction privilege (sales) taxes, use taxes, State-Shared Sales Taxes (as defined herein), State-
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Shared Income Taxes (as defined herein), franchise taxes, permits and fees and fines and forfeitures. The
major categories of such revenues are discussed more fully below.

Potential for Reduction in State Shared Revenues

As shown in the tables under the caption ""Excise Tax Collections and Coverage,'' State-Shared Income
Taxes and State-Shared Sales Taxes constitute the second and third largest components, respectively, of
Excise Taxes. Although the State has not to date reduced or altered the existing formulas for determining
State-Shared Income Taxes and State-Shared Sales Taxes in connection with balancing the State budget, the
State could take such actions in the future. The City cannot predict the likelihood or estimate the potential
fiscal impact of any potential reductions by the State in the amount of State-Shared Income Taxes and State-
Shared Sales Taxes distributed to the City.

City Transaction Privilege (Sales) Taxes

The City's transaction privilege (sales) tax is levied by the City upon persons on account of their business
activities within the City. The amount of taxes due is calculated by applying the tax rate against the gross
proceeds of sales or gross income derived from the business activities. Transaction privilege (sales) taxes are
collected by the City on a monthly basis.

State-Shared Sales Taxes

Pursuant to statutory formula, cities and towns in Arizona receive a portion of the State-levied
transaction privilege (sales) tax. The State transaction privilege (sales) tax is levied against most of the
categories of business activity as the City's transaction privilege (sales) tax. The rate of taxation varies among
the different types of business activities taxed, with the most common rate being 5.6% of the amount or
volume of business transacted.

Under current State law, the aggregate amount distributed to all Arizona cities and towns is equal to 25% of
the ""distribution share'' of revenues attributable to each category of taxable activity. The allocation to each city
and town of the revenues available to all cities and towns is based on their population relative to the aggregate
population of all cities and towns as shown by the latest census. State-levied transaction privilege (sales) taxes
are collected by the State and are distributed monthly to cities and towns (""State-Shared Sales Taxes'').

State-Shared Income Taxes

Under current State law, Arizona cities and towns are preempted by the State from imposing a local
income tax. Cities and towns are, however, entitled by statutory formula to typically receive 15% of State
personal and corporate income tax collections (""State-Shared Income Taxes'') collected by the State two years
earlier. Distribution of such funds is made monthly based on the proportion of each city's and town's population
to the total population of all incorporated cities and towns in the State as determined by the latest census.

The percentage amount received by cities and towns was adjusted to 15.8% for fiscal year 1999-00 but
returned to 15% for the next fiscal year. The increase to 15.8% was intended to offset expected reduced income
tax collections resulting from percentage rate reductions in the prior year. The return to 15% did not have an
immediate impact due to continuing increases in collections. To resolve a State budget shortfall projected to be
larger than forecasted at the time of adoption of the biennial budget, such percentage amount was reduced to
14.8% for fiscal years 2002-03 and 2003-04. Beginning in fiscal year 2004-05, the percentage returned to 15%.

Other Excise Tax Revenues

Cities and towns in the State have exclusive control over public rights-of-way dedicated to the municipality
and may grant franchise agreements to and impose franchise taxes on utilities using those rights-of-way. A
franchise may be granted only with voter approval and the term of franchises is limited to 25 years. The City has
granted franchises to and imposed franchise taxes on utility and cable television providers.

The City also imposes and collects fees for licenses and permits to engage in certain activities within the
City and for the right to utilize certain City property.
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Excise Tax Collections and Coverage

The City has provided actual Excise Tax receipts for fiscal years 2001 through 2005, and has provided a
forecast of revenue to be generated over the next five fiscal years from the Excise Taxes. These figures are
reflected on the following schedules. The schedule on page C-5 shows the calculations of the projected
available coverage against the annual debt service requirements for all Senior Obligations, Junior Obligations
and Subordinated Junior Obligations, including the 2005A Bonds after debt service supported by airport
revenues and solid waste revenues is subtracted from the annual requirements.

ACTUAL EXCISE TAX RECEIPTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30

Revenue Source 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005(4)

Privilege License Tax &
Fees(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $282,230,000 $279,332,000 $283,692,000 $300,948,000 $332,381,000

Use TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,353,000 9,352,000 9,672,000 11,291,000 10,414,000
Utility & Franchise(2) ÏÏ 92,303,000 94,962,000 90,499,000 92,849,000 98,479,000
Licenses & Permits ÏÏÏÏÏ 2,515,000 2,568,000 2,547,000 2,650,000 2,460,000
State Sales Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 105,331,000 102,211,000 103,408,000 111,594,000 123,788,000
State Income Tax(3) ÏÏÏ 133,684,000 137,787,000 140,600,000 119,118,000 121,440,000

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $626,416,000 $626,212,000 $630,418,000 $638,450,000 $688,962,000

PROJECTED EXCISE TAX RECEIPTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30

Revenue Source 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Privilege License Tax &
Fees(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $354,082,000 $378,016,000 $402,466,000 $425,452,000 $451,398,000

Use TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,895,000 13,771,000 14,184,000 14,609,000 15,048,000
Utility & Franchise(2) ÏÏ 124,082,000 127,439,000 132,335,000 137,243,000 142,542,000
Licenses & Permits ÏÏÏÏÏ 2,496,000 2,596,000 2,694,000 2,789,000 2,895,000
State Sales Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 134,822,000 140,864,000 150,724,000 160,521,000 171,276,000
State Income Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 138,455,000 161,264,000 178,204,000 191,315,000 203,246,000

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $766,832,000 $823,950,000 $880,607,000 $931,929,000 $986,405,000

(1) Does not include revenues from the 0.1% increase in the City's privilege license (sales) tax rate approved by City of Phoenix voters on October 5, 1993.
The revenues produced by the increase must be used to add police officers and firefighters and to expand neighborhood programs designed to deter
crime. The increase affects all privilege license tax categories except advertising, utilities, cable television, jet fuel, telecommunications and mining and
became effective December 1, 1993. The revenues resulting from this increase totaled $22.1 million in 2000-01, $22.2 million in 2001-02, $21.8 million
in 2002-03, $23.1 million in 2003-04 and $25.3 million in 2004-05 (preliminary unaudited).

Does not include revenues from the 0.1% increase in the City's privilege license (sales) tax rate approved by City of Phoenix voters on September 7,
1999 and to be levied for a 10-year period. The revenues produced by the increase will be used for the acquisition of desert preserve open space and the
development and improvement of regional and neighborhood parks located within the City. The increase affects all privilege license tax categories except
advertising, utilities, cable television, jet fuel, telecommunications, and mining and became effective November 1, 1999. The revenues resulting from the
increase totaled $21.9 million in 2000-01, $22.1 million in 2001-02, $21.8 million in 2002-03, $23.1 million in 2003-04 and $25.4 million in 2004-05
(preliminary unaudited).

Does not include revenues from the 0.4% increase in the City's privilege license (sales) tax rate approved by City of Phoenix voters on March 14, 2000
and to be levied for a 20-year period. The revenues produced by the increase will be used for expanded bus service, the construction of a light rail system
and other transportation improvements. The increase affects all privilege license tax categories except advertising, utilities, cable television, jet fuel,
telecommunications, and mining and became effective June 1, 2000. The revenues resulting from the increase totaled $85.6 million in 2000-01,
$88.0 million in 2001-02, $87.1 million in 2002-03, $92.3 million in 2003-04 and $101.5 million in 2004-05 (preliminary unaudited).

(2) Effective October 1, 1990, a special excise tax was imposed on all water service accounts based upon water meter size. Revenues generated from the tax
on water service accounts are used to fund a portion of the City's jail costs.

Effective October 1, 1993, a storm water management special excise tax was imposed on all water service accounts based upon water meter size.
Revenues generated from this charge will be used to offset the estimated annual cost of the federally-mandated National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System Program.

(3) Due to a statewide citizens' initiative in 1972, the State shares a portion of income taxes received two years earlier with Arizona cities and towns. In
2003-04, the City of Phoenix shared in the income taxes received by the State during the 2001-02 severe economic downturn. As a result of the
economic downturn, the City's state-shared income tax receipts decreased in 2003-04. For additional information on state-shared income taxes, see
""EXCISE TAXES AND COVERAGE Ì State-Shared Income Taxes.''

(4) Preliminary unaudited.
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SCHEDULE OF PROJECTED EXCISE TAX REVENUES,
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS AND PROJECTED DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE,

NET OF REQUIREMENTS PAID FROM AIRPORT REVENUES
AND SOLID WASTE REVENUES(1)

Outstanding
Subordinated
Junior Lien
Debt Service

Outstanding Requirements
Senior Lien Net of
Debt Service Projected Requirements Projected

Net of Revenues Paid From Coverage of
Requirements Available for Airport Subordinated

Projected Paid From Subordinated Revenues and Junior Lien
Fiscal Excise Taxes Airport Junior Lien Solid Waste Debt Service
Year Pledged Revenues Obligations Revenues(2) Requirements

2006 $766,832,000 $ 13,943,759 $752,888,241 $ 36,300,080 20.74
2007 823,950,000 10,176,604 813,773,396 39,645,892 20.53
2008 880,607,000 10,171,603 870,435,397 39,198,432 22.21
2009 931,929,000 10,164,654 921,764,346 39,772,371 23.18
2010 986,405,000 10,172,015 976,232,985 38,238,983 25.53
2011 10,169,428 38,274,209
2012 10,171,727 38,310,959
2013 10,162,496 38,065,874
2014 10,171,923 37,555,180
2015 10,169,497 36,753,479
2016 10,168,873 35,354,959
2017 10,172,760 38,584,054
2018 10,167,991 38,412,814
2019 10,173,822 38,423,745
2020 10,167,500 35,255,226
2021 10,170,648 34,143,925
2022 10,166,632 33,913,061
2023 10,170,270 30,272,123
2024 10,172,518 30,257,035
2025 10,173,587 24,954,149
2026 10,168,406 23,870,513
2027 10,176,406 23,869,125
2028 10,170,588 23,871,525
2029 7,596,988 23,873,137
2030 Ì 23,877,425
2031 Ì 23,867,600
2032 Ì 23,878,912
2033 Ì 23,876,212
2034 Ì 21,238,250
2035 Ì 21,239,500
2036 Ì 21,239,750
2037 Ì 21,237,250
2038 Ì 21,235,250
2039 Ì 21,236,750
2040 Ì 21,239,500
2041 Ì 21,236,250

$245,290,695 $1,082,573,499

(1) Does not include debt service on an estimated $350 million of bonds expected to be issued to fund
construction of a hotel adjacent to Phoenix Civic Plaza and expected to be paid solely from hotel
revenues. A portion of these bonds will be secured solely by hotel revenues while a portion is expected to
be additionally secured by a junior lien pledge of a portion of Excise Taxes with respect to hotel and
rental car activity.

(2) Includes debt service on the 2005A Bonds delivered on September 13, 2005.
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APPENDIX D

CITY SALES TAXES AND STATE SHARED REVENUES

The following information was compiled from annual financial reports of the City and from information
provided by the City's Finance Department.

City Privilege License (Sales) Taxes

The City's privilege license (sales) tax rate for most business activity categories is 1.8%, while the rate for
utilities is 2.7%, advertising is 0.5%, transient room rental is 4.8%, short-term car rental is 3.8%,
telecommunications is 4.7% and commercial real estate rental is 1.9%. The City collected $514,522,000 from
all privilege license tax categories in fiscal year 2000-01, $516,011,000 in fiscal year 2001-02, $514,570,000 in
fiscal year 2002-03 and $543,709,000 in fiscal year 2003-04. The preliminary unaudited total for 2004-05 is
$593,436,000.

Privilege License Tax Rates by Category

Category Rate(1)

Mining ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.1%
AdvertisingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.5
Amusement ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
Contracting ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
Leasing/Rental of Tangible Personal Property ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
PrintingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
Publishing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
Residential Real Estate Rentals ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
Restaurants and Bars ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
Retail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8(2)
Transportation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8
Commercial Real Estate Rentals ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.9
UtilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.7
Short-Term Car Rental ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.8
Telecommunications ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.7
Hotel/Motel ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.8
Jet Fuel ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $0.00732/gallon

(1) On October 5, 1993, City of Phoenix voters approved a 0.1% increase in the City's privilege license
(sales) tax rate. The revenues produced by the increase must be used to add police officers and
firefighters and to expand neighborhood programs designed to deter crime. The increase affects all
privilege license tax categories except advertising, utilities, cable television, jet fuel, telecommunications
and mining and became effective December 1, 1993. The increase generated $14.5 million in 1994-95,
$16.4 million in 1995-96, $17.5 million in 1996-97, $18.5 million in 1997-98, $20.3 million in 1998-99,
$21.8 million in 1999-00, $22.1 million in 2000-01, $22.2 million in 2001-02, $21.8 million in 2002-03 and
$23.1 million for 2003-04. The preliminary unaudited total for 2004-05 is $25.3 million.

On September 7, 1999, City of Phoenix voters approved a 0.1% increase in the City's privilege license
(sales) tax rate to be levied for a 10-year period. The revenues produced by the increase will be used for
the acquisition of desert preserve open space and the development and improvement of regional and
neighborhood parks located within the City. The increase affects all privilege license tax categories except
advertising, utilities, cable television, jet fuel, telecommunications, and mining and became effective
November 1, 1999. The increase generated $14.3 million in 1999-00, $21.9 million in 2000-01,
$22.1 million in 2001-02, $21.8 million in 2002-03 and $23.1 million for 2003-04. The preliminary
unaudited total for 2004-05 is $25.4 million.
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On March 14, 2000, City of Phoenix voters approved a 0.4% increase in the City's privilege license
(sales) tax rate to be levied for a 20-year period. The revenues produced by the increase will be used for
expanded bus service, the construction of a light rail system and other transportation improvements. The
increase affects all privilege license tax categories except advertising, utilities, cable television, jet fuel,
telecommunications, and mining and became effective June 1, 2000. The increase generated $7.1 million
in 1999-00, $85.6 million in 2000-01, $88.0 million in 2001-02, $87.1 million in 2002-03 and $92.3 million
in 2003-04. The preliminary unaudited total for 2004-05 is $101.5 million.

(2) Sales of food are exempt from the 1.8% tax.

State Shared Revenues

The City received a total of $392,170,000 in State-shared revenues in fiscal year 2000-01, $393,746,000 in
fiscal year 2001-02, $403,705,000 in fiscal year 2002-03 and $403,237,000 in fiscal year 2003-04. The
preliminary unaudited total for 2004-05 is $426,380,000.

State Sales Tax

Effective July 1, 1986, the State sales tax became a combined tax, including the previous transaction
privilege tax, education excise tax, special education excise tax and business excise tax. Cities throughout
Arizona share 25% of the ""distribution share'' of such combined tax revenues in relation to their population as
shown by the latest census.

State Sales Tax
Taxable Activities, Tax Rates and Distribution Share

Combined Distribution
Taxable Activities Tax Rate Share

Mining Ì Severance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.5% 80%
Mining, Oil & Gas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.125 32
Transportation & Towing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
Utilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
Communications ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
Railroads & Aircraft ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
PublishingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
Printing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
Private Car/Pipelines ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
ContractingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 20
Restaurants & Bars ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 40
AmusementsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 40
Rentals/Personal Property ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 40
Retail(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 40
Hotel/MotelÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.5 50
Membership CampingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 40
Rental Occupancy ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 66.67
Use ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.6 0
Jet Fuel (1st 10 million Gallons) ÏÏÏÏÏÏ $0.0305/gal 40
Timbering Ì Ponderosa Pine ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2.13/1,000 board ft. 80
Timbering Ì Severance Ì Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.51/1,000 board ft. 80

(1) Effective July 1, 1980, sales of food were exempted from the tax.
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State Sales Tax Receipts

Fiscal
Year Amount

2004-05 Preliminary Unaudited $123,788,000
2003-04 111,594,000
2002-03 103,408,000
2001-02 102,211,000
2000-01 105,331,000
1999-00 101,708,000
1998-99 92,459,000
1997-98 86,169,000
1996-97 81,449,000
1995-96 80,443,000
1994-95 75,821,000

State Income Tax

For fiscal years 2002-03 and 2003-04, cities throughout Arizona shared in 14.8% of the State personal and
corporate income taxes collected two years previously in relation to their population as determined by the
latest census. This reduction from 15.0% was made in the 2002 legislative session and was approved for two
fiscal years. Cities will again share 15% of collections beginning in fiscal year 2004-05. For fiscal year 1999-
2000, the applicable percentage had been increased to 15.8% in order to hold cities harmless for cuts made in
prior years that went into effect in 1997-98. However, the 1999 legislative session resulted in the approval of a
reduction in the portion of income taxes shared with cities and towns from 15.8% to 15.0%. This resulted in an
estimated reduction for Phoenix in 2000-01 of $7.1 million and each year thereafter.

Reductions in state income tax rates enacted in the 1998 legislative session resulted in future reductions
in the City's state income tax distribution. Because distributions are based on amounts collected for the fiscal
year two years prior to the current fiscal year, the first decrease occurred in fiscal year 2000-01. The
distribution to the City was estimated to decrease $1.9 million in 2000-01 and $3.5 million each year
thereafter.

State Income Tax Receipts

Fiscal
Year Amount

2004-05 Preliminary Unaudited $121,440,000
2003-04 119,118,000
2002-03 140,600,000
2001-02 137,787,000
2000-01 133,684,000
1999-00 127,374,000
1998-99 114,788,000
1997-98 98,326,000
1996-97 87,054,000
1995-96 75,392,000
1994-95 70,945,000

HIGHWAY USER REVENUES

In 1981, the Arizona Legislature concluded a special session on transportation by enacting a 10-year
highway and transportation financing program. All the provisions of this legislation, except for the legislated
increase in motor vehicle fuel and use fuel taxes, became effective in October 1981. The 1981 legislation had
increased the motor vehicle fuel and use fuel taxes from $0.08 per gallon to 8% of the average retail price of
gasoline, converted to a cents-per-gallon tax rate.
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In February 1982, the Legislature repealed the 1981 fuel tax increase by adopting a new bill which
reinstated the $0.08 per gallon fuel tax and added an additional $0.02 per gallon on July 1, 1982, with an
additional $0.02 increase effective July 1, 1983 and a final $0.01 increase effective July 1, 1984, for a total
motor vehicle fuel and use fuel tax rate of $0.13 per gallon.

The 1981 legislation increased other highway user tax revenue sources. Revenues from the vehicle license
(in lieu) tax were increased due to an alteration in the method of determining the depreciated value of a
vehicle to which the vehicle license tax applies. The rates of the motor carrier ton-mile tax and other
commercial fees were also increased. In addition, the legislation provided for a redistribution of certain ""auto-
related'' revenue from the State's general fund to the highway user revenue fund.

In 1985, the Arizona Legislature enacted transportation finance legislation providing potential funding for
controlled access highways and regional public transportation, raising additional Highway User Tax Revenues
and providing additional funding sources for the state highway system. Additional Highway User Revenues
were provided through an increase in the motor vehicle fuel and use fuel taxes of $0.03, from $0.13 to $0.16
per gallon, effective January 1, 1986, and by an additional $0.01 to $0.17 per gallon effective August 31, 1988.
Effective October 1, 1990, the tax on motor vehicle fuel and use fuel was increased by an additional $0.01 to
$0.18 per gallon for vehicles under 26,001 pounds and other qualifying vehicles. The use fuel tax rate for all
other vehicles is $0.26 per gallon (decreased from $0.27 per gallon on July 1, 2000).

The highway user revenue fund distribution formula has been changed several times, with the last change
made in the 1997 regular session of the Legislature. Under the revised formula, the Arizona Department of
Transportation (ADOT) receives 50.5%, counties receive 19%, cities receive 27.5%, and cities with a
population over 300,000 receive 3%. The distribution of revenues to cities and towns (the 27.5% portion) is
made on the following basis:

One-half of the highway user tax revenues is distributed to each incorporated city and town in
the proportion that the population of each bears to the population of all cities and towns within the
State, and

One-half is distributed first on the basis of the county origin of sales of motor vehicle fuels
within the State. This amount is then apportioned among the incorporated cities and towns within
each county in the proportion that the population of each city or town bears to the total population
of all cities and towns within the county.

The most recent regular or special United States census of population is used as the basis of
apportionments of Highway User Tax Revenues.

The 1981 legislation phased the Arizona Department of Public Safety (DPS) out of the Highway User
Revenue Fund. However, in 1991, the Legislature amended the law to require that moneys be distributed each
year from the Highway User Revenue Fund and the State Highway Fund to DPS for funding a portion of
highway patrol costs in any amount required by legislative appropriation. The State Legislature enacted
legislation in 1995 that reduced the transfer of Highway User Revenues to DPS by $2.5 million each year for
four years beginning in 1996-97 and ending in 1999-00. However, legislation enacted in 1999 kept the
distribution from the Highway User Revenue Fund at the then current $12.5 million. In 1998-99, 1999-00,
and 2000-01, the total distributions to DPS were approximately $25 million, consisting of the $12.5 million
directly distributed from the Highway User Revenue Fund and $12.5 million from the State Highway Fund.
For 2001-02, the distribution to DPS totaled approximately $65 million ($52 million from the Highway User
Revenue Fund and $13 million from the State Highway Fund). The distribution from the Highway User
Revenue Fund included approximately $30 million in additional distributions authorized in 2001-02 by the
Arizona Legislature from the Highway User Revenue Fund to be made prior to the distribution to local
governments. For 2002-03, the distribution to DPS totaled approximately $83 million ($55 million from the
Highway User Revenue Fund and $28 million from the State Highway Fund), including an estimated
$42 million in additional distributions from the Highway User Revenue Fund authorized by the Arizona
Legislature. For 2003-04, the distribution to DPS was approximately $79 million ($49 million from the
Highway User Revenue Fund and $30 million from the State Highway Fund). For 2004-05, the estimated
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distribution to DPS totals approximately $85 million ($52 million from the Highway User Revenue Fund and
$33 million from the State Highway Fund.

As noted above, the latest distribution formula for highway user revenue funds provides for the
distribution of a 3% portion to incorporated cities with a population of 300,000 or more. This funding can be
used for the acquisition of rights-of-way or construction of streets or highways. The 1997 legislation removed
language which had previously restricted this distribution of funds from being used for controlled-access
purposes. Based on the 1995 special census, effective July 1, 1996, the city of Mesa became eligible to share in
this distribution, along with Phoenix and Tucson. The inclusion of Mesa in the special distribution of the 3%
portion resulted in an estimated reduction to the City of Phoenix of approximately $3.0 million annually
beginning in 1996-97.

City of Phoenix, Arizona

Highway User Vehicle License
Tax Revenues Tax Receipts

Fiscal Fiscal
Year Amount Year Amount

2004-05 Preliminary Unaudited $117,464,000 2004-05 Preliminary Unaudited $56,552,000
2003-04 111,757,000 2003-04 53,522,000
2002-03 104,597,000 2002-03 47,757,000
2001-02 100,405,000 2001-02 45,844,000
2000-01 102,598,000 2000-01 43,221,000
1999-00 100,348,000 1999-00 41,243,000
1998-99 97,729,000 1998-99 37,802,000
1997-98 88,302,000 1997-98 32,583,000
1996-97 89,147,000 1996-97 31,339,000
1995-96 88,642,000 1995-96 26,907,000
1994-95 81,716,000 1994-95 28,329,000

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE

The 1981 State transportation financing program also provided for the creation of a Local Transportation
Assistance Fund (LTAF) for local city transportation purposes (transit, streets, airports, etc.). The 1981 bill
was amended in February 1982, restricting the use of these funds by cities of over 300,000 population to mass
transit operating costs and related capital purposes. The LTAF is funded from a portion of the receipts of the
State Lottery. It is to provide up to $23 million (maximum) to be allocated to incorporated cities and towns in
proportion to the population each bears to the total population of all cities and towns. The City received
$7,627,000 in 1998-99, $7,483,000 in 1999-00, $7,336,000 in 2000-01, $7,499,000 in 2001-02, $7,343,000 in
2002-03 and $7,246,000 in 2003-04. The preliminary unaudited total for 2004-05 is $7,136,000. The estimate
for 2005-06 is $7,024,000. Cities may spend up to 10% of their allocation for recreational, cultural and historic
purposes if matched by non-public funds, provided that the annual allocation to cities is $23,000,000.

In addition, on August 31, 1998, then-Governor Jane Hull signed into law a transit funding bill that
provides additional state funding for public transit through fiscal year 2003. The bill also changed the
distribution of Power Ball lottery funds from the Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) directly
to the cities and towns in Maricopa County based on population. As a result of this bill, the City received
$1,778,000 in 1998-99, $4,612,000 in 1999-00 and $3,880,000 in 2000-01. In 2001, the major funding portion
of this transit-funding bill was repealed. Although the Power Ball distribution remains, the City did not receive
any funding in 2001-02 or 2002-03. For 2003-04 the City received $1,796,695, $3,327,527 in 2004-05 and
expects to receive $1,200,000 in 2005-06.
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TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM PASSED BY MARICOPA COUNTY VOTERS

In 1985, the Arizona Legislature enacted transportation finance legislation which, among its provisions,
provided potential funding for controlled access highways and regional public transportation.

As a result, Maricopa County held a special election on October 8, 1985 to levy a one-half percent
transportation excise tax (sales tax) within the County. The measure was passed by the voters by more than a
2 to 1 margin. The transportation excise tax became effective January 1, 1986 for a period not to exceed
twenty years.

With passage of the transportation excise tax in Maricopa County in 1985, the Regional Public
Transportation Authority was created within the boundaries of the County on January 1, 1986. The Authority
is headed by a Board of Directors consisting of one elected official appointed from each participating
municipality and the County. The Board is responsible for the development of a regional public transportation
system plan for a regional rapid transit system. The Board is also responsible for establishing and operating a
regional bus system and may contract with the City of Phoenix to provide the service. Each city in the
Authority area and the County has the option to participate in the Authority. Each city that participates must
use a portion of its Local Transportation Assistance Fund monies for public transportation, with Phoenix and
Mesa required to use all of its LTA funds for this purpose.

On Nov. 2, 2004 Maricopa County voters approved Proposition 400, which extends the County's one-half
percent sales tax for transportation funding for an additional 20 years. The continuation of the countywide one-
half percent sales tax will provide funding for freeways, streets, bus transit, rural transit, dial-a-ride, and light
rail. Combined with projected federal matching funds, the tax is expected to provide $5 billion for transit
improvements over the life of the tax. It will support the creation of an integrated ""supergrid'' bus and dial-a-
ride network that offers consistent service levels across the region; an expanded Express bus and bus rapid
transit network that addresses both suburb-to-central-city and suburb-to-suburb commute trips; expansion of
light rail transit; and associated capital investments, including new buses and Intelligent Transportation
System improvements, as well as passenger and operations facilities. For 2005-06, the tax is expected to
generate $45.7 million with the funding being split $25.9 million for bus operating and bus capital and
$19.8 million for light rail/high capacity transit capital.

On March 14, 2000, City of Phoenix residents approved a 0.4% 20-year sales tax dedicated to transit
improvements. Transit improvements include expanded local bus and Dial-A-Ride service, bus rapid transit
service, neighborhood circulators, and the construction and operation of a light rail system. In addition, the tax
will provide funding for 500 bus pull-outs, 100 miles of bike lanes and left-turn arrows at all major
intersections. Voters approved the tax by a 2 to 1 margin providing an estimated $2.9 billion in funding
through May 31, 2020.
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APPENDIX E

STATE EXPENDITURE LIMITATION

Beginning in fiscal year 1982-83, the City became subject to the annual expenditure limitation which is
set by the Arizona Economic Estimates Commission. This limitation is based on the City's actual
expenditures for fiscal year 1979-80, with this base adjusted annually to reflect interim population, cost of
living and boundary changes. Certain expenditures are specifically exempted from the limit, with these
including expenditures made from federal funds and bond sale proceeds, as well as payments for debt service
and other lawful long-term obligations. Expenditures from State aid for the City's transit system, which was
established under the State Transportation Financing Program enacted by the Arizona Legislature in 1981 and
funded from revenues of the State Lottery, have been ruled exempt from the expenditure limitation by the
State Attorney General. The limitation can be exceeded for certain emergency expenditures or if approved by
the voters. The Constitutional provisions which relate to the expenditure limitation provide four processes to
exceed the spending limit: a local home rule option, a permanent base adjustment, a one-time override, and a
capital project accumulation.

On November 3, 1981, the Phoenix voters approved five propositions referred to them by the City
Council to exceed the expenditure limit. A local home rule option was approved which allowed the City to
exclude the expenditures in its Aviation, Water, Sanitary Sewer and Civic Plaza operations from the State
expenditure limit in the four fiscal years, 1982-83 through 1985-86.

The four other propositions which were approved allow the City to accumulate and expend local revenues
for ""pay-as-you-go'' capital improvements without being subject to the State spending limit. These capital
improvement exclusions include annual amounts of up to $5,000,000 for Aviation, $6,000,000 for Sanitary
Sewers, $2,000,000 for Streets and $6,000,000 for Water. These exclusions were approved on a permanent
basis and do not require voter reapproval except to raise or lower the annual amounts.

On November 5, 1985, the voters approved a home rule option which provided for the exclusion of
expenditures directly cost recovered up to 100% of actual costs from sales, rentals, user fees and charges for
materials, services, and facilities provided by the following City programs: Airport Operations, Water System,
Wastewater System, and Sanitation Service. It further provided for the exclusion of expenditures from the
Water and Wastewater development occupational fees. This home rule option was effective for four fiscal
years, 1986-87 through 1989-90.

On October 1, 1991, Phoenix voters approved a home rule option which exempted from the State
expenditure limitation all expenditures associated with the Aviation, Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste
Funds for the fiscal years 1992-93 through 1995-96.

On October 3, 1995, Phoenix voters approved a home rule option which provided for the exclusion from
the State expenditure limitation of all expenditures incurred in connection with Aviation Operations, Water
Systems and Wastewater Systems for the fiscal years 1996-97 through 1999-2000.

On September 7, 1999, Phoenix voters approved a home rule alternative expenditure limitation option
whereby the City shall, as part of the annual budget process, adopt an expenditure limitation to govern the
City budget. No expenditures may be made in excess of such budget, nor may expenditures exceed available
revenues. Established exclusions shall continue to apply. This alternative expenditure limitation is effective for
fiscal years 2000-01 through 2003-04.

On September 9, 2003, Phoenix voters approved a home rule option similar to the home rule option
approved by the Phoenix voters in September 1999, to be effective through fiscal year 2007-08. Previously
established exclusions for ""pay-as-you-go'' capital improvements continue to apply.

The Arizona Attorney General has issued an opinion that a political subdivision may legally carry forward
to later years revenues which are not subject to the expenditure limitation and which were not expended in the
year of receipt. Pursuant to advice from the Arizona Auditor General, the City now carries forward each year,
all unexpended excludable revenues that are not needed to meet the expenditure limitation for that year, to
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help maximize spending capacity in future years. As of June 30, 2004, non-restricted carryforwards totalled
$388,708,736.

The 2001-02 expenditure limit provided by the State of Arizona Economic Estimates Commission was
$885,718,186. The alternative expenditure limitation, approved by the voters on September 7, 1999, was equal
to the City's annual budget of $3,966,742,911. As a result of allowable exclusions and carryforwards from prior
years, the amount of the 2001-02 budget subject to the limitation was $1,355,171,540, or $2,611,571,371 less
than the alternative expenditure limitation.

The 2002-03 expenditure limit provided by the State of Arizona Economic Estimates Commission was
$974,647,996. The alternative expenditure limitation, approved by the voters on September 7, 1999, was equal
to the City's annual budget of $4,204,209,282. As a result of allowable exclusions and carryforwards from prior
years, the amount of the 2002-03 budget subject to the limitation was $1,470,677,654, or $2,733,531,628 less
than the alternative expenditure limitation.

The 2003-04 expenditure limit provided by the State of Arizona Economic Estimates Commission was
$1,001,653,252. The alternative expenditure limitation, approved by the voters on September 7, 1999, was
equal to the City's annual budget of $4,925,935,201. As a result of allowable exclusions and carryforwards
from prior years, the amount of the 2003-04 budget subject to the limitation was $1,316,649,199, or
$3,609,286,002 less than the alternative expenditure limitation.
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APPENDIX F

RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

Substantially all full-time employees and elected officials of the City are covered by one of three pension
plans: the City of Phoenix, Arizona Employees' Retirement Plan, the State of Arizona Public Safety
Personnel Retirement System or the Elected Officials' Retirement Plan.

City of Phoenix, Arizona Employees' Retirement Plan

The City of Phoenix, Arizona Employees' Retirement Plan, a single-employer defined benefit pension
plan, covers all full-time general employees of the City, with the exception of sworn City police and fire
personnel. Periodic employer contributions to the pension plan are determined on an actuarial basis using the
""entry age normal cost method.'' Normal cost is funded on a current basis. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is amortized over an open twenty-year period from June 30, 2004. Periodic contributions for both
normal cost and the amortization of the actuarial accrued liability are based on the level percentage of payroll
method. The funding strategy for normal cost and the actuarial liability should provide sufficient resources to
pay employee pension benefits on a timely basis.

The general employees contribute 5% of their compensation to the plan. City of Phoenix contributions for
2003-04 were $39,564,000, equivalent to 9.17% of the estimated annual active member payroll, compared with
6.86% in 2002-03. The annual active member covered payroll for the year ended June 30, 2004 was
$445,348,000.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the pension contribution requirements are as follows:
The rate of return on investments is assumed to be 8.0%. Mortality rates equal the 1971 Group Annuity
Mortality Table projected to 2000, set back 6 years for females. Salaries are expected to rise 4.5% due to
inflation, 0.5% for other across-the-board factors, and from 0% to 4%, based on age, merit and longevity.
Probabilities of retirement at specific ages are based on past experience. Assumptions for separation from
active employment and for disability are according to a table based on past experience.

The actuarial accrued liability of the Plan is measured in accordance with the requirements of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 25 and No. 27. As of June 30, 2004, net assets
available for benefits were less than the actuarial accrued liability by $267,021,000, compared with a lack of
$173,541,000 at June 30, 2003. The total actuarial accrued liability increased $180,670,000 from 2003 to 2004.

Rodwan Consulting Company, Actuaries & Consultants commented in their June 30, 2004 valuation
report of the plan:

Overall experience of the Retirement Plan during the year ended June 30, 2004 was less
favorable than expected based on long-term assumptions. The unfavorable experience was primarily
attributable to investment income carry-forwards from prior years based on the smoothed market
value of assets which produced a recognized return which was less than the long-term assumption.
The rate of retirements also contributed to the unfavorable experience.

The accrued actuarial condition of the Retirement Plan is good.

State of Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System

The City of Phoenix also contributes to an agent multiple-employer retirement plan, the Arizona Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System (APSPRS), for sworn police officers and fire fighters. The APSPRS
functions as an investment and administrative agent for the City of Phoenix with respect to the plans for police
officers and fire fighters.

Periodic employer contributions to the pension plans are determined on an actuarial basis using the entry
age normal cost method. Normal cost is funded on a current basis. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
funded over an open twenty-year period. Periodic contributions for both normal cost and the amortization of
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the unfunded actuarial accrued liability are based on the level percentage of payroll method. The funding
strategy for normal cost and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability should provide sufficient resources to pay
employee pension benefits on a timely basis.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the pension contribution requirements are as follows:
The rate of return on investments is assumed to be 8.75%. Non-disability mortality rates equal the 1971 Group
Annuity Mortality Table projected to 2000 set back 6 years for females. Salaries are expected to rise 5.25%
due to inflation and from 1% to 4%, based on age, for merit and longevity. Probabilities of retirement at
specific ages are based on past experience. Assumptions for separation from active employment and for
disability are according to a table based on past experience.

Members contribute 7.65% of compensation. The City contributes a level percent of payroll normal cost
less a credit (spread over twenty years) for the amount by which valuation assets exceed the actuarial accrued
liability or plus a debit (spread over twenty years) for the amount by which the actuarial accrued liability
exceeds the valuation assets. In 2003-04 the City's contribution amounted to 6.43% for police and 6.59% for
fire.

For the year ended June 30, 2004, covered payroll was $172,095,000 for police, and $85,026,000, for fire.

The actuarial accrued liability of the Plan is measured in accordance with the requirements of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 25 and No. 27. For police, net assets available for
benefits were less than the actuarial accrued liability as of June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003 by $102,758,000
and $316,000, respectively.

For fire, net assets available for benefits were less than the actuarial accrued liability as of June 30, 2004
by $38,649,000 and for June 30, 2003 exceeded the actuarial accrued liability by $7,987,000.

Elected Officials' Retirement Plan

This is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan of which the City of Phoenix is a
contributing employer and covers the Mayor and City Council, effective January 4, 1988. As a condition of
coverage, members are required to contribute 7% of compensation.

The City contributes an actuarially determined rate, 13.49% for the year ended June 30, 2004, to fully
fund benefits for active members. Total contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 were $87,000,
which consisted of $57,000 from the City and $30,000 from members.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 

As management of the City of Phoenix, Arizona, we offer the following narrative overview and analysis of 
the financial activities of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (the City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.   
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
• The total assets of the City exceeded its total liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $5.5 billion 

(net assets).  Of this amount, $861.4 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City’s 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• The City’s total net assets increased by $467.8 million. 
• As of the close of the fiscal year, the City’s Governmental Funds reported combined ending fund 

balances of $1.12 billion, an increase of $66.2 million from last fiscal year.  Approximately 47.6 
percent of this amount, or $532.2 million, is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unreserved 
fund balance). 

• At the close of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $240.7 million, or 
79.3 percent of the total general fund balance of $303.7 million.  

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s Basic Financial 
Statements.  The Basic Financial Statements are comprised of three components: 1) Government-Wide 
Financial Statements, 2) Fund Financial Statements, and 3) Notes to the Financial Statements.  This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the Basic Financial Statements 
themselves.  Detail regarding the basic financial statements follows. 
 
 
1) Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  They are presented beginning on 
page G-15 of this report.  Summarized versions of these statements are included in this MD&A and can be 
found on pages G-7 and G-10. 
 
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may 
serve as a useful indicator of changes in the City’s financial position. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the 
fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. This is the full-accrual method of 
accounting. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.   
 
Both the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities divide the functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (Governmental Activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their cost through user fees and 
charges (Business-Type Activities).  The Governmental Activities of the City include general government, 
criminal justice, public safety, transportation, community enrichment, community development and 
environmental services.  The Business-Type Activities of the City include airports, Civic Plaza (convention 
center), water, wastewater, solid waste disposal and golf course activities. 
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Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis 
 
The following tables, graphs and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial 
position for the City as a whole as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004.  The prior year’s financial 
position and results are presented for comparative purposes. 
  
Net Assets.  As noted above, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position.  In the case of the City of Phoenix, assets exceeded liabilities by $5.5 billion at the 
close of the fiscal year. 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net assets ($3.9 billion or 72.0 percent) reflects its investments in capital 
assets, e.g., land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities and infrastructure, 
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The City uses these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  
The following table summarizes the detailed Statement of Net Assets. 
 
 

City of Phoenix  
Net Assets 

as of June 30 
(in thousands) 

 

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Current and other assets $ 1,379,340 $ 1,277,175 $ 1,953,041 $ 1,659,337 $ 3,332,381 $ 2,936,512
Capital assets 3,137,875 2,810,199 3,868,650 3,569,824 7,006,525 6,380,023

Total assets 4,517,215 4,087,374 5,821,691 5,229,161 10,338,906 9,316,535

Other Liabilities 145,193 119,282 406,454 238,633 551,647 357,915
Long-term liabilities outstanding 1,798,181 1,633,967 2,484,442 2,287,819 4,282,623 3,921,786

Total liabilities 1,943,374 1,753,249 2,890,896 2,526,452 4,834,270 4,279,701

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, 
    net of related debt 1,737,512 1,574,940 2,149,567 2,009,693 3,887,079 3,584,633
Restricted 719,892 618,268 36,293 36,232 756,185 654,500
Unrestricted 116,437 140,917 744,935 656,784 861,372 797,701
     Total net assets $ 2,573,841 $ 2,334,125 $ 2,930,795 $ 2,702,709 $ 5,504,636 $ 5,036,834

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Government

 
 
 
The restricted portion of the City’s net assets ($756.2 million) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance, or the unrestricted net assets 
($861.4 million), may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 
At the end of the fiscal year, the City is reporting positive balances in all three categories of net assets (1-
invested in capital assets net of related debt, 2-restricted and 3-unrestricted), both for the government as 
a whole, as well as its separate Governmental and Business-Type Activities.   
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Capital Assets.  As seen above in the summarized table of Net Assets, the City’s investment in capital 
assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, was $7.0 billion, net of accumulated depreciation.  This 
represents an increase from the prior fiscal year of $626.5 million, an increase of $327.7 million for 
Governmental Activities and $298.8 million for Business-Type Activities. 
 
Major additions to capital assets during the fiscal year included the following: 
• Various street and storm sewer projects throughout the City valued at $82.7 million.  
• Land acquisition, design and construction related to the Light Rail project valued at $60.7 million. 
• Construction of the Sky Harbor Airport Consolidated Rental Car Facility valued at $47.0 million.  
• Design and construction at the Union Hills and Lake Pleasant water treatment plants valued at $40.8 

million.  
• New and Replacement water mains throughout the City valued at $39.4 million.  
• Expansion and improvements at Sky Harbor Airport Terminal 4 valued at $36.0 million.  
• New public transit buses valued at $25.1 million.  
 
The following table provides a listing of the capital assets.  
 
 

City of Phoenix 
Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 
as of June 30 
(in thousands) 

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Buildings $ 512,422 $ 508,145 $ 518,631 $ 523,257 $ 1,031,053 $ 1,031,402
Improvements 146,438 110,041 1,328,047 1,192,414 1,474,485 1,302,455
Equipment 223,719 206,813 183,838 169,991 407,557 376,804
Artwork 8,647 8,647 3,187          3,100          11,834 11,747
Land 539,214 472,424 458,071 367,918 997,285 840,342
Infrastructure 1,234,996 1,134,420 664,204      582,845 1,899,200 1,717,265
Construction-in- 
   Progress 472,439 369,709 712,672 730,299 1,185,111 1,100,008
Total $ 3,137,875 $ 2,810,199 $ 3,868,650 $ 3,569,824 $ 7,006,525 $ 6,380,023

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Government

 
 
Additional information regarding the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 8 in the Notes to the 
Financial Section of this report. 
 
Long-term Liabilities.  As shown in the summarized table of Net Assets, the City had total long-term 
liabilities or obligations of $4.3 billion (which is comprised primarily of bonded debt) at the end of the fiscal 
year.  Of this amount, general obligation bonds that are backed by the full faith and credit of the City 
comprise $1.1 billion, while municipal corporation obligations account for $2.3 billion of the total. Revenue 
bonds total $224.2 million and an additional $4.6 million are special assessment bonds where the City is 
contingently liable in the event that the assessment revenues are insufficient to satisfy the debt payments. 
 
Under Arizona law, cities can issue general obligation bonds for purposes of water, sewer, artificial light, 
open space preserves, parks, playgrounds and recreational facilities up to an amount not exceeding 20% 
of secondary assessed valuation.  General obligation bonds for all other purposes may be issued up to an 
amount not exceeding 6% of secondary assessed valuation.   
 
The City’s available debt margin at June 30, 2004 was $529.0 million in the 6% capacity and $1.35 billion 
in the 20% capacity.  Additional information regarding the debt limitations and capacities can be found in 
Note 11 on page G-63. 
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The following table illustrates the long-term obligations of the City.   
 
 

City of Phoenix 
Long-Term Liabilities 

as of June 30 
(in thousands) 

 

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
General obligation bonds $ 830,779 $ 665,303 $ 272,016      $ 304,763      $ 1,102,795   $ 970,066      
Revenue bonds 182,974 201,077 41,240        54,950        224,214      256,027      
Certificates of Participation 20,455 20,455 -                  -                  20,455        20,455        
Municipal Corporation
    Obligations 337,364 325,234 1,974,275   1,736,240   2,311,639   2,061,474   
Special assessment bonds 4,610 6,102 -                  -                  4,610          6,102          
Insurance claims payable 167,453 194,100 -                  -                  167,453      194,100      
Compensated absences 139,246 137,433 16,424        16,024        155,670      153,457      
Landfill Closure/Post-
    closure costs -               -               31,874        27,837        31,874        27,837        
Other 115,300 84,263 148,613      148,005      263,913      232,268      
Total $ 1,798,181 $ 1,633,967 $ 2,484,442 $ 2,287,819 $ 4,282,623 $ 3,921,786

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Government

 
 
 
The City’s total long-term obligations increased by $360.8 million during the fiscal year just ended, which 
represents an increase of 9.2 percent.  During the fiscal year, the City sold $200 million in Various 
Purpose General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004.  The City also refunded $50.4 million of outstanding 
general obligation bonds with the issuance of $50.9 million General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 
2004.  The Civic Improvement Corporation long term debt obligation was increased by the May 2004 sale 
of $260.0 million Rental Car Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2004; and the June 2004 
sale of $22.0 million Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004.  The City also refunded $10 
million of water system revenue bonds with the issuance of $11.3 million Junior Lien Water System 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003; and refunded $4.9 million of outstanding subordinated excise 
tax revenue bonds with the issuance of $5.7 million Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2004.   
 
The City maintains the following ratings on its general obligation debt:  “AA+” from Standard and Poor’s 
(S&P) and “Aa1” from Moody’s. Both S&P and Moody’s listed the City’s outlook as “Stable”, and noted 
well-managed financial operations, strong fund balances and reserves, and a moderate but manageable 
debt burden as the rationale for these ratings.  
 
Further detail pertaining to the City’s long-term obligations is available in Note 9 in the Notes to the 
Financial Section of this report. 
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Changes in Net Assets. Detail of the following summarized information can be found in the Statement of 
Activities. 
 
 

City of Phoenix 
Changes in Net Assets 

as of June 30 
(in thousands) 

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues:
Program revenues

Charges for services $ 187,402      $ 172,047      $ 667,995      $ 638,235      $ 855,397      $ 810,282      
Grants and contributions
    Operating 287,534      267,731      -                  -                  287,534      267,731      
    Capital 126,272      51,596        245,792      232,511      372,064      284,107      

General revenues
Excise taxes 543,709      514,570      -                  -                  543,709      514,570      
Other taxes 172,455      170,480      -                  -                  172,455      170,480      

Grants/contrib. not restricted
    to specific programs 271,298      306,175      -                  -                  271,298      306,175      

Other  29,934        88,430        (1,603)         5,355          28,331        93,785        
     Total revenues 1,618,604   1,571,029   912,184      876,101      2,530,788   2,447,130   

Expenses
General government 74,749        63,728        -                  -                  74,749        63,728        
Criminal justice 31,768        34,903        -                  -                  31,768        34,903        
Public safety 537,018      510,923      -                  -                  537,018      510,923      
Transportation 250,951      218,055      -                  -                  250,951      218,055      
Public works 30,035        24,091        -                  -                  30,035        24,091        
Community enrichment 211,238      198,131      -                  -                  211,238      198,131      
Community development 156,389      148,962      -                  -                  156,389      148,962      
Interest on long-term debt 64,531        60,370        -                  -                  64,531        60,370        
Aviation -                  -                  228,891      210,773      228,891      210,773      
Phoenix Civic Plaza -                  -                  46,687        48,142        46,687        48,142        
Water services -                  -                  210,114      206,673      210,114      206,673      
Wastewater services -                  -                  120,966      111,124      120,966      111,124      
Solid waste -                  -                  92,565        84,030        92,565        84,030        
Golf courses -                  -                  7,084          7,632          7,084          7,632          

Total expenses 1,356,679   1,259,163   706,307      668,374      2,062,986   1,927,537   
Increase in net assets
     before transfers 261,925      311,866      205,877      207,727      467,802      519,593      
Transfers (22,209) (35,895) 22,209 35,895 -                  -                  
Increase in net assets 239,716      275,971      228,086      243,622      467,802      519,593      
Net Assets - July 1 2,334,125   2,058,154   2,702,709   2,459,087   5,036,834   4,517,241   
Net Assets - June 30 $ 2,573,841   $ 2,334,125   $ 2,930,795   $ 2,702,709   $ 5,504,636   $ 5,036,834   

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Government

 
 
As can be seen, Governmental Activities increased the City’s net assets by $239.7 million, thereby 
accounting for 51.2 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the City.  Business-Type Activities 
increased the City’s net assets by $228.1 million, or 48.8 percent of the total growth in net assets.  
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The sources of the revenues shown above are portrayed in the following charts by percentage for the 
Governmental Activities and then the Business-Type Activities. 
 

Revenues by Source - Governmental 
Activities

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
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As can be seen, excise taxes, which include City sales and franchise taxes, are the largest source of 
revenue for the Governmental Activities comprising thirty-three percent of the total. 
 

 
 

Revenues by Source - Business-Type 
Activities

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
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As can be seen in this chart, charges for services account for the majority of the Business-Type Activities 
revenues. 
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2) Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements 
The Fund Financial Statements are presented in this report on page G-18.  A fund is a grouping of related 
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities 
or objectives.  The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal activities.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: Governmental Funds, Enterprise Funds and Fiduciary Funds.  
 
Governmental Funds. Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as Governmental Activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.  However, unlike the 
Government-Wide Financial Statements, which are on a full accrual basis, Governmental Fund Financial 
Statements focus on near-term inflow and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year, which is the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Reconciliations are provided on G-19 and G-21 to account for the differences between the 
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances, and the Governmental Activities portion of the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements. 
 
The City maintains twenty-eight individual Governmental Funds. Information is presented separately in 
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund and the Excise Tax Special Revenue 
Fund, both of which are considered to be major funds under GASB 34.  Data from the other twenty-six 
Governmental Funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each 
of these non-major Governmental Funds is provided in the form of combining statements later in this 
report. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all City funds.  A Budgetary Comparison Statement 
has been provided for the General Fund on page G-22 and the Excise Tax Special Revenue Fund on page
G-23 to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
Enterprise Funds.  Enterprise Funds are a type of Proprietary Fund, but are the only type of Proprietary 
Fund currently maintained by the City.  Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented 
as Business-Type Activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.  Enterprise Funds are used to 
account for the operation of the City’s Sky Harbor International Airport and two regional airports, Civic 
Plaza (convention center), water system, wastewater system, solid waste disposal and the city golf 
courses. 
 
Enterprise Fund Financial Statements provide the same type of information as the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements, only in more detail.  The Enterprise Fund Financial Statements on pages G-24 
through G-29 provide separate information for each of the six Enterprise Funds noted above as all are 
considered to be major funds of the City. 
 
Fund Financial Statement Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related budgetary and legal requirements.  The following is a brief discussion of financial highlights from 
the Fund Financial Statements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of the Governmental Fund Financial Statements is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources (modified accrual basis).  
All major Governmental Funds are presented on these financial statements, while the non-major funds 
are combined into a single column.  Combining statements for the non-major funds can be found on G-76 
and G-82.  The following table summarizes information found in the Governmental Fund Financial 
Statements. 
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City of Phoenix 
Changes in Governmental Fund Balances 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 
(in thousands) 

 
Fund Balances Net Change in Fund Balances

July 1, 2003 Fund Balances June 30, 2004
General $ 334,458          $ (30,754)          $ 303,704          
Excise Tax -                     -                     -                     
Nonmajor Governmental 717,308          96,967            814,275          
Total $ 1,051,766     $ 66,213          $ 1,117,979       

 
 
As shown in the above table, at the end of the fiscal year, the City’s Governmental Funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $1.12 billion, an increase of $66.2 million from last fiscal year.  Of the 
total governmental funds combined ending balances, approximately 47.3 percent of this amount, or 
$528.9 million, constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’s 
discretion.  The remainder of the combined fund balance is reserved: This indicates that it is not available 
for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contract and purchase orders for 
the prior year ($224.8 million), 2) to pay debt service ($347.5 million), 3) to pay for supply inventories 
($13.5 million), and 4) to pay for prepaid items ($3.2 million). 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City and accounts for many of the major functions of 
the government including general government, criminal justice, public safety, transportation, public works, 
community enrichment and community development.  As presented in the table above, the General Fund 
decreased by $30.7 million.  This decrease in fund balance was primarily due to an increase over the 
prior year in Public Safety expenditures, which includes the cost of providing both Police and Fire 
protection for the City.  The other major fund, the Excise Tax Special Revenue Fund, is used to account 
for City sales and franchise taxes.  The balance of the Excise Tax Special Revenue Fund at the end of 
each fiscal year is transferred to other funds resulting in an ending fund balance of zero as shown above. 
 
Governments have an option of including the budgetary comparison statements for the general fund and 
major special revenue funds as either part of the Fund Financial Statements within the Basic Financial 
Statements, or as required supplementary information after the Notes to the Financial Statements.  The 
City has chosen to present these budgetary statements as part of the Basic Financial Statements (pages 
G-22 and G-23). Additionally, governments are required to disclose certain information about employee 
pension funds.  The City has provided this information in Note 17 to the financial statements.  
 
The change between the original general fund budget and the final amended general fund budget for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, was a $600 thousand increase in public safety appropriations.  These 
appropriation increases reflect a small allowance for expenditure variances in the Police and Fire 
departments.  The final amended general fund budget projected fiscal year expenditures of $778.4 
million.  The actual general fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 were $731.5 
million.  The difference of budget to actual reflects expenditure reductions that were part of the City’s 
effort to address the effects of a weaker economy. 
 
Enterprise Funds.  The Enterprise Fund Financial Statements are prepared and presented using the 
same accounting basis and measurement focus as the Government-Wide Financial Statements, but in 
more detail. The following table summarizes the Enterprise Fund Financial Statements. 
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City of Phoenix 
Changes in Enterprise Fund Net Assets 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 
(in thousands) 

 
Net Assets Change in Net Assets
July 1, 2003 Net Assets June 30, 2004

Aviation $ 1,202,307 $ 115,821 $ 1,318,128
Phoenix Civic Plaza 163,915 8,244 172,159
Water System 885,680 62,523 948,203
Wastewater 450,610 38,756 489,366
Solid Waste (6,443) 3,647 (2,796)
Golf Courses 6,640 (905) 5,735
Total $ 2,702,709 $ 228,086 $ 2,930,795

 
 
As shown in the table, Net Assets for the Enterprise Funds increased in total by $228.1 million during the 
fiscal year. The Aviation and Water System comprised the majority of this total with increases of $115.8 
million and $62.5 million respectively (78.2 percent). The Aviation and Water System Funds also 
comprise 77.3 percent ($1.3 billion and $948.2 million respectively) of the total Enterprise Fund Net 
Assets at June 30, 2004. 
 
3. Basic Financial Statements - Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be 
found beginning on page G-32 of this report. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS 
 
• The seasonally adjusted unemployment rate in the Phoenix-Mesa metropolitan area as of June 2004 

registered 4.2% versus 4.7% for Arizona and 5.6% for the U.S.  In 2003, the unemployment rates 
were 5.0% in the Phoenix-Mesa area, 5.6% for Arizona and 6.0% nationally. 

• Due to a weaker economy, City Council approved nearly $72 million in expenditure reductions that 
were implemented on March 31, 2003 to achieve 15 months of savings.  

• The Phoenix area’s personal income increased 7.0%, 10.9% 3.8% and 3.0% respectively in 1999, 
2000, 2001 and 2002 (the latest official statistics available).   

• The 2004-05 total secondary assessed valuation is $10.5 billion and includes $338 million in new 
construction being added to the rolls.  This represents growth of 7.1% over 2003-04 values.  The 
City’s property tax rate for 2004-05 remains at $1.82 per $100 of assessed valuation.   

 
 
REQUESTS FOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Phoenix’ finances.  Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to the Office of the Chief Financial Officer, City of Phoenix, Calvin C. Goode 
Municipal Building, Ninth Floor, 251 W. Washington, Phoenix, Arizona, 85003. 



City of Phoenix, Arizona
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 543,729      $ 239,047      $ 782,776       
Cash Deposits 1,265          126              1,391           
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents/Trustees 93,909        -                   93,909         
Investments 526,960      10,325         537,285       
Internal Balances 150             (150)             -                  
Receivables, Net of Allowances 196,592      63,947         260,539       
Prepaid Items 3,244          4,821           8,065           
Inventories 13,491        4,159           17,650         
Restricted Assets -                 1,211,908   1,211,908    
Capital Assets, at Cost

Non-depreciable 1,363,710   1,173,930   2,537,640    
Depreciable (net) 1,774,165   2,694,720   4,468,885    

Excess of Cost Over Net Assets Acquired, Net of 
Accumulated Amortization -                 115              115              

Water Rights, Net of Accumulated Amortization -                 32,693         32,693         
Investment in Joint Use Agreement -                 386,050      386,050       

Total Assets 4,517,215     5,821,691     10,338,906   

LIABILITIES
Warrants and Accounts Payable 103,881      35,579         139,460       
Trust Liabilities and Deposits 41,312        159              41,471         
Deferred Revenue -                 4,016           4,016           
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets -                 366,343      366,343       
Utility Repayment Agreements -                 357              357              
Noncurrent Liabilities

Due Within One Year
Current Portion of Insurance Claims Payable 55,434        -                   55,434         
Current Portion of Accrued Compensated Absences 12,897        1,864           14,761         
Current Portion of Accrued Landfill Postclosure 

Care Costs -                 1,422           1,422           
Matured Bonds and Certificates Payable 58,717        73,869         132,586       
Interest Payable 32,402        56,897         89,299         
Current Portion of General Obligation Bonds 31,566        24,820         56,386         
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds 18,160        3,925           22,085         
Current Portion of Certificates of Participation 480             -                   480              
Current Portion of Municipal Corporation Obligations 10,986        46,354         57,340         
Current Portion of Special Assessment Bonds 1,511          -                   1,511           

Due in More Than One Year
Insurance Claims Payable 112,019      -                   112,019       
Accrued Compensated Absences 126,349      14,560         140,909       
General Obligation Bonds 799,213      247,196      1,046,409    
Revenue Bonds 164,814      37,315         202,129       
Certificates of Participation 19,975        -                   19,975         
Municipal Corporation Obligations 326,378      1,927,921   2,254,299    
Special Assessment Bonds 3,099          -                   3,099           
Unamortized Premium/(Discount) 24,181        11,332         35,513         
Capital Leases -                 1,798           1,798           
Utility Repayment Agreements -                 4,717           4,717           
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure 

Care Costs -                 30,452         30,452         
Total Liabilities 1,943,374     2,890,896     4,834,270     

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,737,512   2,149,567   3,887,079    
Restricted For:

Capital Projects 76,949        -                   76,949         
Debt Service 347,461      36,293         383,754       
Other Purposes 295,482      -                   295,482       

Unrestricted 116,437      744,935      861,372       
Total Net Assets $ 2,573,841     $ 2,930,795     $ 5,504,636     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Program Revenues
Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities

General Government $ 74,749       $ 13,849      $ 1,324            $ -                     
Criminal Justice 31,768       19,434      14                 -                     
Public Safety 537,018     34,069      11,300         2,757             
Transportation 250,951     24,242      138,664       118,707         
Environmental Services 30,035       694           6                   -                     
Community Enrichment 211,238     6,857        53,233         665                
Community Development 156,389     88,257      82,993         4,143             
Interest on Long-Term Debt 64,531       -                -                    -                     

Total Governmental Activities 1,356,679   187,402      287,534         126,272          

Business-Type Activities
Aviation 228,891     213,671    -                    135,170         
Phoenix Civic Plaza 46,687       10,054      -                    4,398             
Water Services 210,114     224,150    -                    55,158           
Wastewater Services 120,966     114,946    -                    50,099           
Solid Waste 92,565       98,995      -                    967                
Golf Courses 7,084         6,179        -                    -                     

Total Business-Type Activities 706,307      667,995      -                     245,792          

Total Primary Government $ 2,062,986   $ 855,397      $ 287,534         $ 372,064          

General Revenues (Expenses)
Taxes

Excise Taxes
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service
In-Lieu Property Taxes

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Investment Earnings, Net
Miscellaneous

Transfers - Internal Activities
Total General Revenues, General Expenses and Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - July 1
Net Assets - June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Continued)

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ (59,576)           $ -                       $ (59,576)           
(12,320)           -                       (12,320)           

(488,892)         -                       (488,892)         
30,662             -                       30,662            

(29,335)           -                       (29,335)           
(150,483)         -                       (150,483)         

19,004             -                       19,004            
(64,531)           -                       (64,531)           

(755,471)         -                       (755,471)          

-                      119,950           119,950          
-                      (32,235)            (32,235)           
-                      69,194            69,194            
-                      44,079            44,079            
-                      7,397               7,397              
-                      (905)                 (905)                
-                      207,480           207,480           

(755,471)         207,480           (547,991)          

543,709           -                       543,709          
76,708             -                       76,708            
94,476             -                       94,476            
1,271              -                       1,271              

271,298           -                       271,298          
3,800              (1,603)              2,197              

26,134             -                       26,134            
(22,209)           22,209            -                      
995,187           20,606             1,015,793        
239,716           228,086           467,802           

2,334,125        2,702,709        5,036,834        
$ 2,573,841        $ 2,930,795        $ 5,504,636        
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Nonmajor Total
Excise Governmental Governmental

General Tax Funds Funds
ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 84,547       $ -             $ 459,182      $ 543,729      
Cash Deposits 912            -             353            1,265          
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents/Trustees -             -             93,909       93,909        
Investments 5,540         -             521,420      526,960      
Due from Other Funds 227,583      -             4,809         232,392      
Receivables, Net of Allowance

Accounts Receivable 16,618       -             12,049       28,667        
Taxes Receivable 7,012         52,273       2,090         61,375        
Delinquent Taxes Receivable 2,087         -             2,606         4,693          
Intergovernmental 612            19,262       64,216       84,090        
Accrued Interest 45              -             1,618         1,663          
Notes Receivable -             -             16,104       16,104        

Prepaid Items 123            -             3,121         3,244          
Inventories 10,164       -             3,327         13,491        

Total Assets $ 355,243    $ 71,535     $ 1,184,804 $ 1,611,582   

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Due to Other Funds $ -             $ 71,493       $ 160,749      $ 232,242      
Warrants and Accounts Payable 37,093       42              66,746       103,881      
Insurance Claims Payable 40              -             -             40               
Trust Liabilities and Deposits 10,449       -             30,863       41,312        
Matured Bonds Payable -             -             58,717       58,717        
Interest Payable -             -             32,402       32,402        
Deferred Revenue 3,957         -             21,052       25,009        

Total Liabilities 51,539       71,535       370,529      493,603      

Fund Balances
Reserved for 

Encumbrances 10,956       -             213,883      224,839      
Debt Service 41,749       -             305,712      347,461      
Inventories 10,164       -             3,327         13,491        
Prepaid Items 123            -             3,121         3,244          

Unreserved
Designated for Insurance Claims, reported in: 

General Fund 172,812      -             -             172,812      
Special Revenue Funds -             -             4,329         4,329          

Designated for Unrealized Gain on Investments,
reported in: 

General Fund 4,646         -             -             4,646          
Special Revenue Funds -             -             2,645         2,645          
Capital Projects Funds -             -             82              82               
Debt Service Funds -             -             890            890             

Undesignated, reported in: 
General Fund 63,254       -             -             63,254        
Special Revenue Funds -             -             358,117      358,117      
Capital Projects Funds -             -             (77,831)      (77,831)       
Total Fund Balances 303,704      -             814,275      1,117,979   

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 355,243    $ 71,535     $ 1,184,804 $ 1,611,582   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

G-18



City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
   to the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Fund balances - total governmental funds balance sheet $ 1,117,979         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets 4,082,176
Accumulated depreciation (944,301)

3,137,875         

Other assets used in governmental activities are not available to pay for 
current period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.  25,009              

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental bonds payable (1,400,363)
Compensated absences (139,246)
Insurance claims payable (167,413)

(1,707,022)        

Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets $ 2,573,841         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
   in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Nonmajor Total
Excise Governmental Governmental

General Tax Funds Funds
REVENUES

City Taxes $ 71,927       $ 543,709      $ 101,316      $ 716,952      
Licenses and Permits 2,414         2,650         8,211         13,275       
Intergovernmental 55,365       230,712      364,438      650,515      
Charges for Services 38,724       -             104,343      143,067      
Fines and Forfeitures 16,892       -             -             16,892       
Parks and Recreation -             -             5,976         5,976         
Special Assessments -             -             1,641         1,641         
Investment Income

Net Decrease in Fair Value of Investments (16,536)      -             (16,053)      (32,589)      
Interest 16,800       -             19,589       36,389       

Dwelling Rentals -             -             6,488         6,488         
Other 12,964       -             13,191       26,155       

Total Revenues 198,550      777,071      609,140      1,584,761   

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating

General Government 53,314       -             6,329         59,643       
Criminal Justice 29,857       -             330            30,187       
Public Safety 509,197      -             17,404       526,601      
Transportation 54,929       -             121,189      176,118      
Community Enrichment 27,576       -             159,955      187,531      
Community Development 24,944       -             123,861      148,805      
Environmental Services 21,056       -             50              21,106       

Capital 2,580         -             444,340      446,920      
Debt Service

Principal -             -             61,325       61,325       
Interest -             -             61,828       61,828       
Bond Issuance Costs -             -             742            742            
Arbitrage Rebate and Fiscal Agent Fees -             -             34              34              
Other -             -             1,927         1,927         

Total Expenditures 723,453      -             999,314      1,722,767   
  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
   Expenditures (524,903)    777,071      (390,174)    (138,006)    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers From Other Funds 592,754      -             344,287      937,041      
Transfers to Other Funds (98,605)      (777,071)    (83,574)      (959,250)    
Proceeds

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds -             -             200,000      200,000      
Premium on General Obligation and 

Revenue Bonds -             -             8,599         8,599         
Certificates of Participation and Municipal 

Corporation Obligations -             -             20,000       20,000       
Premium on Certificates of Participation and

Municipal Corporation Obligations -             -             1,311         1,311         
Refunding Bonds -             -             42,020       42,020       
Deposit to Refunding Escrow -             -             (45,502)      (45,502)      

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 494,149      (777,071)    487,141      204,219      
     Net Change in Fund Balances (30,754)      -             96,967       66,213       

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 334,458      -             717,308      1,051,766   
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 $ 303,704    $ -           $ 814,275      $ 1,117,979 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
   Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
   to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 66,213      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense.  This is the amount by which capital acquisitions and 
contributions ($430,576) exceeded depreciation ($98,688) and loss 
on disposals of capital assets ($4,213) in the current period. 327,675    

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in 
the funds. (13,884)     

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets.  Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the 
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets.  This is the amount by which acquisitions ($271,930)
exceeded repayments and amounts refunded ($106,827). (165,103)   

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds
( $1,813 compensated absences and ($26,628) insurance claims). 24,815      

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities $ 239,716    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Budgetary Comparison Statement
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)

REVENUES
City Taxes $ 72,156        $ 72,156        $ 71,927                  $ (229)            
Licenses and Permits 2,215          2,215          2,414                    199             
Intergovernmental 55,701        55,701        55,365                  (336)            
Charges for Services 38,840        38,840        38,724                  (116)            
Fines and Forfeitures 16,440        16,440        16,896                  456             
Interest 6,480          6,480          4,100                    (2,380)         
Miscellaneous 11,402        11,402        12,030                  628             

Total Revenues 203,234      203,234      201,456                (1,778)         

EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
Current Operating

General Government 86,471        86,471        78,150                  8,321          
Criminal Justice 31,845        31,845        30,947                  898             
Public Safety 502,142      502,742      500,614                2,128          
Transportation 51,847        51,847        50,253                  1,594          
Community Enrichment 27,355        27,355        25,912                  1,443          
Community Development 29,636        29,636        24,916                  4,720          
Environmental Services 21,383        21,383        19,647                  1,736          

Capital 3,293          3,293          189                       3,104          
Lease-Purchase Payments 1,106          1,106          839                       267             
Contingency 22,700        22,700        -                            22,700        

Total Expenditures and Encumbrances 777,778      778,378      731,467                46,911        
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
 Expenditures and Encumbrances (574,544)     (575,144)     (530,011)               45,133        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Other Funds

Staff and Administrative 24,848        24,848        24,226                  (622)            
In-Lieu Property Taxes 14,624        14,624        14,071                  (553)            
Miscellaneous 578,003      578,003      577,662                (341)            

Transfers to Other Funds (103,138)     (103,138)     (97,047)                 6,091          
Recovery of Prior Years Expenditures -                  -                  1,137                    1,137          

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 514,337      514,337      520,049                5,712          
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (60,207)       $ (60,807)       (9,962)                   $ 50,845        

Fund Balance, July 1 63,166                  
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 53,204                  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Budgetary Comparison Statement 
Excise Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)

REVENUES
City Taxes $ 548,323      $ 548,323    $ 543,709             $ (4,614)         
Licenses and Permits 2,565          2,565        2,650                 85               
Intergovernmental 227,055      227,055    230,712             3,657          

Total Revenues 777,943      777,943    777,071             (872)            

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers to Other Funds

General Fund (575,816)     (575,816)   (574,322)            1,494          
Transit (93,211)       (93,211)     (92,349)              862             
Parks and Preserves (23,304)       (23,304)     (23,074)              230             
Sports Facilities (12,779)       (12,779)     (12,577)              202             
Capital Construction (18,300)       (18,300)     (17,196)              1,104          
City Improvement (16,334)       (16,334)     (17,231)              (897)            
Phoenix Civic Plaza (38,199)       (38,199)     (40,322)              (2,123)         
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses (777,943)     (777,943)   (777,071)            872             

Net Change in Fund Balance $ -                  $ -                -                         $ -                  

Fund Balance, July 1 -                         
Fund Balance, June 30 $ -                         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Phoenix  
Aviation Civic Plaza  

Current Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 60,569         $ 25,800    
Investments -                   -              
Receivables, Net of Allowances 3,669           4             
Prepaid Items 1,190           -              
Cash Deposits 126              -              
Inventories, at Average Cost 1,051           162         

Total Unrestricted Current Assets 66,605         25,966    

Restricted Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 222,616       -              
Cash Deposits -                   660         
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents/Trustees 51,509         6,945      
Investments 498,787       8,044      
Due from Other Funds -                   -              
Receivables, Net of Allowances 26,567         584         

Total Restricted Current Assets 799,479       16,233    

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, at Cost, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1,510,945    223,811  
Excess of Cost Over Net Assets Acquired, Net of Accumulated Amortization -                   -              
Water Rights, Net of Accumulated Amortization -                   -              
Investment in Joint Use Agreement -                   -              

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,510,945    223,811  
Total Assets 2,377,029    266,010  

Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets
Warrants and Accounts Payable 9,793           941         
Due to Other Funds -                   -              
Trust Liabilities and Deposits 155              -              
Utility Repayment Agreements -                   -              
Deferred Revenue 3,948           -              
Accrued Landfill Postclosure Care Costs -                   -              
Current Portion of Accrued Compensated Absences 500              159         

Total Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets 14,396         1,100      

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Warrants and Accounts Payable 28,600         1,948      
Due to Other Funds -                   -              
Trust Liabilities and Deposits -                   660         
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable -                   -              
Matured Bonds and Certificates Payable 17,160         4,265      
Interest Payable 20,207         2,681      
Current Portion of General Obligation Bonds 3,230           -              
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds 3,925           -              
Current Portion of Municipal Corporation Obligations 13,860         4,515      
Accrued Landfill Closure Costs -                   -              

Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 86,982         14,069    

Noncurrent Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds, Net of Deferred Interest Expense Adjustment 22,562         -              
Revenue Bonds, Net of Deferred Interest Expense Adjustment 37,315         -              
Municipal Corporation Obligations, Net of Deferred 
  Interest Expense Adjustment 891,242       77,650    
Unamortized Premium (Discount) 680              (172)        
Capital Leases 1,798           -              
Utility Repayment Agreements -                   -              
Rebatable Arbitrage -                   -              
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs -                   -              
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,926           1,204      

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 957,523       78,682    
Total Liabilities 1,058,901    93,851    

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 991,343       142,521  
Restricted for Debt Service 29,095         3,145      
Unrestricted 297,690       26,493    

Total Net Assets (Deficiencies) $ 1,318,128      $ 172,159  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
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(Continued)

Water Solid Golf Totals
System   Wastewater Waste Courses 2004 2003

$ 99,003           $ 30,579        $ 23,008        $ 88           $ 239,047       $ 265,634         
10,145           -                  -                 180         10,325         10,205           
38,386           13,938        7,947          3             63,947         58,160           
3,631             -                  -                 -              4,821           4,444             

-                     -                  -                 -              126              129                
2,227             613             -                 106         4,159           4,099             

153,392         45,130        30,955        377         322,425       342,671         

56,620           64,116        12,879        -              356,231       318,107         
5,874             215             54               -              6,803           6,975             

43,441           28,299        12,087        -              142,281       125,576         
106,823         5,582          58,751        1,085      679,072       483,165         

-                     -                  -                 -              -                   1,190             
312                58               -                 -              27,521         14,907           

213,070         98,270        83,771        1,085      1,211,908    949,920         

1,343,496      704,804      70,786        14,808    3,868,650    3,569,824      
115                -                  -                 -              115              136                

32,693           -                  -                 -              32,693         32,615           
99,012           287,038      -                 -              386,050       335,242         

1,475,316      991,842      70,786        14,808    4,287,508    3,937,817      
1,841,778      1,135,242   185,512      16,270    5,821,841    5,230,408      

14,984           5,845          3,971          45           35,579         30,664           
-                     -                  -                 -              -                   48                  
-                     -                  -                 4             159              161                
-                     357             -                 -              357              639                

41                  -                  -                 27           4,016           4,277             
-                     -                  1,422          -              1,422           1,090             
792                181             180             52           1,864           1,910             

15,817           6,383          5,573          128         43,397         38,789           

20,023           9,218          1,559          18           61,366         35,383           
-                     -                  -                 150         150              1,199             

1,821             215             54               -              2,750           2,980             
200,000         100,000      -                 -              300,000       160,000         
26,636           17,005        8,803          -              73,869         72,094           
17,202           13,501        3,284          22           56,897         55,845           
9,673             7,232          4,685          -              24,820         33,277           

-                     -                  -                 -              3,925           3,710             
8,815             14,495        4,669          -              46,354         38,390           

-                     -                  2,227          -              2,227           4,529             
284,170         161,666      25,281        190         572,358       407,407         

120,517         64,521        39,596        -              247,196       271,486         
-                     -                  -                 -              37,315         51,240           

460,297         408,983      80,080        9,669      1,927,921    1,697,850      
6,604             (1,843)         5,899          164         11,332         12,172           

-                     -                  -                 -              1,798           2,252             
-                     4,717          -                 -              4,717           5,132             
-                     -                  -                 -              -                   510                
-                     -                  30,452        -              30,452         26,747           

6,170             1,449          1,427          384         14,560         14,114           
593,588         477,827      157,454      10,217    2,275,291    2,081,503      
893,575         645,876      188,308      10,535    2,891,046    2,527,699      

663,492         351,159      (4,881)        5,933      2,149,567    1,954,784      
4,053             -                  -                 -              36,293         36,232           

280,658         138,207      2,085          (198)        744,935       711,693         
$ 948,203         $ 489,366      $ (2,796)        $ 5,735        $ 2,930,795      $ 2,702,709      
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
   Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Phoenix
Aviation Civic Plaza

Operating Revenues
Landing and Terminals Fees $ 117,070      $ -           
Sales -                   -           
Rentals 78,425        2,182    
Sewer Service Charges -                   -           
Sanitation and Landfill Fees -                   -           
Golf Fees -                   -           
Concessions -                   6,683    
Other 17,777        1,176    

Total Operating Revenues 213,272        10,041    

Operating Expenses
Administration and Engineering -                   8,908    
Operation and Maintenance 137,744      17,717  
Promotion -                   756       
Depreciation and Amortization 58,455        10,044  
Staff and Administrative 5,189           2,118    
Other -                   1,817    

Total Operating Expenses 201,388        41,360    
Operating Income (Loss) 11,884          (31,319)  

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Income

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (5,916)          (840)     
Interest on Investments 1,787           997       

Interest on Capital Debt (27,503)       (5,327)  
Equity Interest in Joint Use Agreement Operating Loss -                   -           
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets 399              13         

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (31,233)         (5,157)    
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers (19,349)         (36,476)  

Capital Contributions 135,170      4,398    
Transfers from Other Funds -                   40,322  
Transfers to Other Funds -                    -             

Change in Net Assets 115,821        8,244      

Net Assets, July 1 1,202,307   163,915
Net Assets, June 30 $ 1,318,128     $ 172,159  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Water Solid Golf Totals
  System Wastewater Waste Courses 2004 2003

$ -             $ -             $ -            $ -           $ 117,070  $ 111,261    
196,341  -             -            -           196,341  188,090    

-             -             -            -           80,607    75,369      
-             87,993    -            -           87,993    78,784      
-             -             92,824    -           92,824    88,441      
-             -             -            4,649    4,649      4,967        
-             -             -            1,447    8,130      8,660        

27,809    26,953    6,171      83         79,969    82,663      
224,150  114,946  98,995    6,179      667,583    638,235    

18,756    5,899      19,879    178       53,620    48,403      
102,974  44,951    47,428    5,368    356,182  329,486    

-             -             -            -           756         763           
49,747    29,100    9,374      883       157,603  154,217    

6,366      1,305      3,960      328       19,266    18,751      
-             4,392      5,540      110       11,859    11,385      

177,843  85,647    86,181    6,867      599,286    563,005    
46,307    29,299    12,814    (688)       68,297      75,230      

(5,840)    (2,144)    (553)      -           (15,293)   6,979        
6,889      2,849      1,168      -           13,690    16,546      

(26,778)  (24,772)  (6,253)    (174)     (90,807)   (92,635)     
(4,674)    (10,456)  -            -           (15,130)   (15,827)     

(819)       (91)         (131)      (43)       (672)        (2,343)       
(31,222)  (34,614)  (5,769)    (217)       (108,212)   (87,280)     
15,085    (5,315)    7,045      (905)       (39,915)     (12,050)     

55,158    50,099    967        -           245,792  232,511    
-             -             -            -           40,322    36,849      

(7,720)    (6,028)    (4,365)    -             (18,113)     (13,688)     
62,523    38,756    3,647      (905)       228,086    243,622    

885,680  450,610  (6,443)    6,640    2,702,709 2,459,087 
$ 948,203  $ 489,366  $ (2,796)    $ 5,735      $ 2,930,795 $ 2,702,709 
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Phoenix
Aviation Civic Plaza

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers $ 212,544            $ 10,233                
Payments to Suppliers (95,263)             (17,511)               
Payments to Employees (43,384)             (12,035)               
Payment of Staff and Administrative Expenses (5,189)               (2,118)                 
    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 68,708              (21,431)               

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from Other Funds -                         40,322                
Transfers to Other Funds -                         -                         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities -                         40,322                

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Debt 260,000            -                         
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (16,850)             (4,040)                 
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (37,463)             (5,474)                 
Loans to Developers -                         -                      
Loans from Other Funds -                         -                      
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (156,846)           (16,032)               
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 596                    41                       
Capital Contributions 122,038            -                      

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 171,475            (25,505)               

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investment Securities (7,189,096)        (96,330)               
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Investment Securities 6,990,103         96,574                
Interest on Investments (1,716)               166                     
Proceeds from Collections of Long-Term Receivable -                         338                     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (200,709)           748                     
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 39,474              (5,866)                 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 295,220            39,271                
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 334,694            $ 33,405                

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
  Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) $ 11,884              $ (31,319)               
Adjustments

Depreciation and Amortization 58,455              10,044                
(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Deposits 3                        -                      
Receivables 6                        201                     
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (463)                  1                      
Prepaid Items 170                    -                      
Inventories (6)                       2                         

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Warrants and Accounts Payable (1,165)               (395)                    
Trust Liabilities and Deposits (2)                       (10)                      
Deferred Revenue (270)                  -                      
Accrued Compensated Absences 96                      45                       
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs -                         -                      

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 68,708              $ (21,431)               

Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position
Contributions of Capital Assets $ -                         $ 4,398                  
Bond Capital Appreciation -                         -                      
Refunding Issuance in Excess of Bond Retirement 732                    -                         
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (1,109)               (31)                      

Total Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position $ (377)                  $ 4,367                  

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 60,569                $ 25,800                
Restricted

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 222,616              -                          
Cash with Fiscal Agents/Trustees 51,509                6,945                  
Customer and Other Deposits -                           660                     

(Total 2004 and 2003 restricted assets of  $1,211,908 and $949,920 274,125              7,605                  
include $710,646 and $503,257 of noncash assets, respectively)

$ 334,694            $ 33,405                

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Water Solid Golf Totals
System Wastewater Waste Courses 2004 2003

$ 219,591            $ 114,608         $ 98,201              $ 6,188             $ 661,365       $ 643,700        
(52,862)            (41,811)          (44,969)             (1,511)           (253,927)      (235,342)       
(65,259)            (12,818)          (24,364)             (4,073)           (161,933)      (151,631)       

(6,366)               (1,305)            (3,960)               (328)               (19,266)        (18,751)         
95,104              58,674           24,908              276                226,239       237,976        

-                        -                     -                       -                     40,322         36,849           
(7,720)               (6,028)            (4,365)               -                     (18,113)        (13,688)         
(7,720)               (6,028)            (4,365)               -                     22,209         23,161           

100,139            40,005           9                       7,297             407,450       245,888        
(26,636)            (16,780)          (7,650)               (5,370)           (77,326)        (78,292)         
(33,714)            (28,344)          (6,146)               (478)               (111,619)      (101,195)       

-                        -                     -                       -                     -                   8,000             
-                        -                     -                       (48)                 (48)               48                  

(143,300)          (73,915)          (8,464)               (1,029)           (399,586)      (396,860)       
386                   104                554                   -                     1,681           2,632             

18,359              12,996           955                   -                     154,348       153,771        
(84,766)            (65,934)          (20,742)             372                (25,100)        (166,008)       

(810,989)          (699,899)        (835,229)           (2,280)           (9,633,823)   (5,710,511)    
791,015            721,513         837,572            1,015             9,437,792    5,708,386     

1,098                195                615                   -                     358              28,064           
-                        -                     -                       -                     338              321                

(18,876)            21,809           2,958                (1,265)           (195,335)      26,260           
(16,258)            8,521             2,759                (617)               28,013         121,389        

217,143            114,689         45,269              705                712,297       590,908        
$ 200,885            $ 123,210         $ 48,028              $ 88                  $ 740,310       $ 712,297        

$ 46,307              $ 29,299           $ 12,814              $ (688)               $ 68,297         $ 75,230           

49,747              29,100           9,374                883                157,603       154,217        

(58)                    -                     -                       -                     (55)               52                  
(4,371)               (422)               (785)                  4                    (5,367)          4,104             

40                     52                  11                     -                     (359)             (279)               
(547)                  -                     -                       -                     (377)             273                

(70)                    (28)                 -                       42                  (60)               (111)               

4,103                580                1,790                2                    4,915           1,985             
(232)                  32                  (20)                    -                     (232)             6                    

4                       -                     -                       5                    (261)             1,635             
181                   61                  (11)                    28                  400              1,002             

-                        -                     1,735                -                     1,735           (138)               
$ 95,104              $ 58,674           $ 24,908              $ 276                $ 226,239       $ 237,976        

$ 36,799              $ 37,103           $ 12                     $ -                     $ 78,312         $ 67,526           
321                   61                  -                       -                     382              503                
965                   1,725             46                     -                     3,468           2,547             

(1,742)               (77)                 32                     -                     (2,927)          274                
$ 36,343              $ 38,812           $ 90                     $ -                     $ 79,235         $ 70,850           

$ 99,003              $ 30,579           $ 23,008              $ 88                    $ 239,047         $ 265,634          

56,620              64,116           12,879              -                       356,231         318,107          
43,441              28,299           12,087              -                       142,281         125,576          

1,821                215                54                     -                       2,750             2,980              
101,882            92,630           25,020              -                       501,262         446,663          

$ 200,885            $ 123,209         $ 48,028              $ 88                  $ 740,309       $ 712,297        
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2004
(in thousands)

General
Employees' Payroll
Retirement Agency  

Plan Fund

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ -                      $ 33,407            
Investments

Temporary Investments 197,966          -                      
Fixed Income 448,138          -                      
Domestic Equities 792,985          -                      
International Equities 149,380          -                      

Receivables
Accounts Receivable 51,397            -                      
Contributions Receivable 1,858              -                      
Interest and Dividends 2,443              -                      

Total Assets 1,644,167       33,407            

LIABILITIES 

Payable to the City of Phoenix 6,377              -                      
Accounts Payable 192,047          -                      
Accrued Payroll Payable -                      33,407            

  Total Liabilities 198,424          $ 33,407            

NET ASSETS 

Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $ 1,445,743       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Fund Financial Statements
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary 
   Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2003

ADDITIONS

Contributions
City of Phoenix $ 39,564       $ 27,820          
Employees 24,783       26,122          
Inter-System Transfers 373            500               

Total Contributions 64,720         54,442          
Investment Income

From Investing Activities 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair 

Value of Investments 184,205     11,292          
Interest 10,936       21,228          
Dividends 6,173         6,630            
Other 460            193               

Investment Income/(Loss) 201,774       39,343          
Less: Investment Expense 3,316           2,636            

Net Investment Income (Loss)
     from Investing Activities 198,458     36,707          

Net Income from Security Lending Activity 183            202               

Total Net Investment Income/(Loss) 198,641     36,909          

Total Additions 263,361       91,351          

DEDUCTIONS

Benefit Payments 76,949       70,234          
Refunds of Contributions 2,272         2,457            
Inter-System Transfers 600            365               
Other 340            155               

Total Deductions 80,161         73,211          

Net Increase 183,200       18,140          

Net Assets Held in Trust for
Pension Benefits

Beginning of Year, July 1 1,262,543    1,244,403     
End of Year, June 30 $ 1,445,743    $ 1,262,543     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2004
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City of Phoenix, Arizona 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 
 
The City of Phoenix was incorporated on February 25, 1881.  On October 11, 1913, voters ratified a city charter 
providing for a Council-Manager form of government.  The government of the City of Phoenix is operated by 
authority of its charter, as limited by the state legislature. 
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. 

  
 GASB No. 20 requires that governments’ proprietary activities apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as 

well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements 
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statements 
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins.  Governments 
are given the option whether or not to apply all FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 
30, 1989, except for those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The City has elected not to 
implement FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989. 

 
 The City’s other significant accounting policies are described below: 
 
 a. Reporting Entity  
  The accompanying financial statements include the City and all of its component units, collectively referred 

to as “the financial reporting entity”.  In accordance with GASB No. 14, the component units discussed 
below have been included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or 
financial relationships with the City. 

 
  City of Phoenix Employees’ Retirement Plan (“COPERS”) 
  All full-time general employees participate in COPERS, which is governed by a nine member Retirement 

Board (the “Board”).  Four statutory Board members are members of City management.  Three Board 
members are elected from and by the plan’s active members.  One Board member is a citizen and one is a 
retiree.  Employees contribute 5% of their covered compensation, with the City funding all remaining costs 
based on actuarial valuations.  COPERS is reported in the accompanying financial statements as the 
Pension Trust Fund.  Separate financial statements for COPERS can be obtained through COPERS 
administrative office at 101 S. Central Avenue, Suite 600, Phoenix, Arizona, 85004. 

 
  City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation/ 
  Phoenix Civic Plaza Building Corporation 
  These nonprofit corporations are organized under the laws of the State of Arizona to assist the City in the 

acquisition and financing of municipal projects and facilities.  Both corporations are governed by 
self-perpetuating boards of directors, who are responsible for approving the corporations’ respective bond 
sales.  Bond sales must also be ratified by the Mayor and City Council.  Although they are legally separate 
from the City, the corporations are reported as if they were part of the primary government, using the 
blending method, because their sole purpose is to finance and construct public facilities for the City.  
Separate financial statements for the corporations can be obtained from the City’s Finance Department, 
through the City Controller’s Office on the 5th Floor of 251 W. Washington Street, Phoenix, Arizona, 
85003. 
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 b. Jointly Governed Organizations  
  Regional Public Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) 
  The Authority is a voluntary association of local governments, including Phoenix, Tempe, Scottsdale, 

Glendale, Mesa and Maricopa County.  Its purpose is to create a regional public transportation plan for 
Maricopa County.  The Board of Directors consists of the mayors of those cities and a member of the 
County Board of Supervisors.  The Authority is accounted for using the equity method. 

 
  Arizona Municipal Water Users Association (“AMWUA”) 
  AMWUA is a nonprofit corporation established and funded by cities in Maricopa County for the 

development of an urban water policy and to represent the cities’ interests before the Arizona legislature. 
In addition, AMWUA contracts with the cities jointly using the 91st Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant to 
perform certain accounting, administrative and support services (see Note 16).  The City accounts for 
AMWUA using the equity method. 

 
c. Basic Financial Statements  

  
The basic financial statements constitute the core of the financial section of the City’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The basic financial statements include the government-wide financial 
statements, fund financial statements, and the accompanying notes to these financial statements.   
 
The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and statement of activities) report on 
the City and its component units as a whole, excluding fiduciary activities.  Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  All activities, both 
governmental and business type, are reported in the government-wide financial statements using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, which includes long-term 
assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.  The government-wide financial 
statements focus more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial 
position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period.   
 
Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statement.  
Net interfund activity and balances between governmental activities and business-type activities are 
shown in the government-wide financial statements.  The City does not utilize any internal service funds.  
 
Interdepartmental services performed by one department for another are credited to the performing 
department and charged to the receiving department to reflect the accurate costs of programs.  The rates 
used are intended to reflect full costs in accordance with generally accepted cost accounting principles.  
 
The government-wide Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources of the 
government (excluding fiduciary funds).  It is displayed in a format of assets less liabilities equals net 
assets, with the assets and liabilities shown in order of their relative liquidity.  Net assets are required to be 
displayed in three components: 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt, 2) restricted and 3) 
unrestricted.  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  Restricted net assets 
are those with constraints placed on their use by either: 1) externally imposed by creditors (such as 
through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or regulations of other governments, or 2) imposed 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  All net assets not otherwise classified as 
restricted, are shown as unrestricted.  Generally, the City would first apply restricted resources when an 
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.  
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Reservations or designations of net assets imposed by the reporting government, whether by 
administrative policy or legislative actions of the reporting government, are not shown on the government-
wide financial statements.   
 
The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the 
various functions and segments of the City are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Interest on general long-term debt and 
depreciation expense on assets shared by multiple functions are not allocated to the various functions.  
Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers of users who purchase, use or directly benefit from 
goods, services or privileges provided by a particular function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions 
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  
Taxes, investment income and other revenues not identifiable with particular functions or segments are 
included as general revenues.  The general revenues support the net costs of the functions and segments 
not covered by program revenues.  
 
Also part of the basic financial statements are fund financial statements for governmental funds, 
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements.  The focus of the fund financial statements is on major funds, as defined by GASB 
Statement No. 34.  Although the new model sets forth minimum criteria for determination of major funds (a 
percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of fund category and of the 
governmental and enterprise funds combined), it also gives governments the option of displaying other 
funds as major funds.  The City has opted to add some funds as major funds because of outstanding debt 
or community focus.  Other non-major funds are combined in a single column on the fund financial 
statements and are detailed in combining statements included as supplementary information after the 
basic financial statements.   
 
The governmental fund financial statements are prepared on a current financial resources measurement 
focus and modified accrual basis of accounting.  This is the traditional basis of accounting for 
governmental funds.  This presentation is deemed most appropriate to 1) demonstrate legal and covenant 
compliance, 2) demonstrate the sources and uses of liquid resources, and 3) demonstrate how the City’s 
actual revenues and expenditures conform to the annual budget.  Since the governmental fund financial 
statements are presented on a different basis than the governmental activities column of the government-
wide financial statements, a reconciliation is provided immediately following each fund statement.  These 
reconciliations explain the adjustments necessary to transform the fund financial statements into the 
governmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements.  
 
The proprietary (enterprise) fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are prepared on the same basis 
(economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting) as the government-wide 
financial statements.  Therefore, most lines for the total enterprise funds on the proprietary fund financial 
statements will directly reconcile to the business-type activities column on the government-wide financial 
statements.  Because the enterprise funds are combined into a single business-type activities column on 
the government-wide financial statements, certain interfund activities between these funds may be 
eliminated in the consolidation for the government-wide financial statements, but be included in the fund 
columns in the proprietary fund financial statements.   

 
 d. Fund Accounting 
 
  The City uses funds to report its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting 

segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is designed to demonstrate legal compliance 
and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain governmental functions or 
activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which includes 
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
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The City uses the following fund categories, further divided by fund type: 
 
  Governmental Funds 
  Governmental funds are those through which most of the governmental functions of the City are financed.  

The measurement focus is based upon determination of changes in financial position rather than upon net 
income determination. 

 
   The City reports the following major governmental funds:  
 
   General Fund 
   The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all 

financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  The 
General Fund will always be considered a major fund in the basic financial statements.  

 
   Excise Tax Special Revenue Fund 
   The Excise Tax Fund is the only special revenue fund that is presented as a major fund in 

the basic financial statements.  Revenues received for various sales and franchise taxes 
are recorded in the Excise Tax Fund and then subsequently transferred to the specific fund 
that has been budgeted to utilize the taxes.  

 
   The City reports the following non-major governmental funds: 
 
   Special Revenue Funds 
   Thirteen non-major special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 

revenue sources (other than special assessments or major capital projects) that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  

 
   Debt Service Funds 
   Five debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 

payment of, general long-term obligation principal and interest. 
 
    Capital Projects Funds 
   Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 

acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by 
proprietary funds).  The City has eight capital projects funds.  

 
   
  Proprietary Funds 
  Proprietary funds are used to account for the City’s ongoing organizations and activities, which are similar 

to those often found in the private sector and where cost recovery and the determination of net income is 
useful or necessary for sound fiscal management.  The measurement focus is based upon determination 
of net income, changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows. 

 
   Enterprise Funds  
   Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that provide services to the general 

public for a fee.  Under GASB Statement No. 34, enterprise funds are also required for any 
activity whose principal revenue sources meet any of the following criteria: 1) any activity 
that has issued debt backed solely by the fees and charges of the activity, 2) if the cost of 
providing services for an activity, including capital costs such as depreciation or debt 
service, must legally be recovered through fees and charges, or 3) it is the policy of the 
City to establish activity fees or charges to recover the cost of providing services, including 
capital costs.  The City has six enterprise funds, which are all presented as major funds in 
the basic financial statements and are used to account for the operation of the City’s Sky 
Harbor International Airport and two regional airports, Civic Plaza convention center, water 
system, wastewater system, solid waste disposal and the city golf courses.  
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Fiduciary Funds 
  Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for 

individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and other funds.  The reporting focus is upon 
net assets and changes in net assets and employs accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.  
Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements since they are not assets of 
the City available to support City programs.   

 
   Pension Trust Funds  
   Pension Trust Funds are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for the 

members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, other post 
employment benefit plans, or other employee benefit plans.  The City has one Pension Trust Fund to 
account for the activities of the City of Phoenix Employees’ Retirement Plan.  

 
   Agency Funds 
   Agency funds are used to account for assets held by a governmental unit as an agent for individuals, 

private organizations, other governmental units and other funds.  The City has one Agency Fund to 
account for accrued payroll liabilities such as withholding taxes and contributions.  

 
 e. Basis of Accounting   
  The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement 

focus.  Governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus 
whereby only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet.  Operating 
statements present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., 
expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

 
  Enterprise funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 

focus whereby all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the 
balance sheet.  Operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in 
net total assets. 

 
The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by governmental funds.  Revenues are recognized when 
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available).  “Measurable” means the 
amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  The City considers revenues to 
be available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. 

 
  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.  Principal and interest on general 

long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the 
debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year. 

 
  Revenues susceptible to accrual include property tax, privilege license tax, highway user tax, state shared 

sales tax, vehicle license tax, and interest earned on investments.  Licenses and permits, charges for 
services, fines and forfeitures, parks and recreation charges and miscellaneous revenues are recorded 
when received in cash since they are generally not measurable until actually received. 

 
  The accrual basis of accounting is followed for all enterprise funds and the Pension Trust Fund, whereby 

revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable, and 
expenses are recognized when incurred.  Employee contributions to the Pension Trust Fund are 
recognized as revenue in the period in which employee services are performed and the contributions are 
therefore earned.  Employer contributions are recognized at the same time, as the City is formally 
committed to contribute the actuarially determined amount each year.  Benefit payments received the first 
of each month by retirees are recognized as an expense of the prior month; and refunds are recognized as 
expenses when paid out, in accordance with the terms of the plan.  

 
  Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with the fund’s principal ongoing operations.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include 
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating items.   
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In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual 
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance.  There are essentially two types 
of these revenues.  In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any 
amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures 
recorded.  In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually 
revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements.  These resources are 
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 

 
  Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not measure results of operations or have a measurement 

focus. 
 
 f. Budget and Budgetary Accounting  
  An operating budget is legally adopted by ordinance each fiscal year for the General, Special Revenue 

(except for the Parks Gift Fund, which is administered by the Parks and Recreation Board, and is reported 
as part of the Parks Special Revenue Fund), Secondary Property Tax Debt Service, City Improvement 
Debt Service and Enterprise funds on a modified accrual basis plus encumbrances.  The level of legal 
budgetary control is by fund, except for the General Fund, for which the control is by program.  For the 
applicable level of control, the budget can be amended only by City Council action subject to state law 
limitations.  Transfers of sums within any specific appropriation may be made, but require the City 
Manager’s approval.  The General Fund, Development Services Fund, Transit 2000 Fund, and several 
enterprise funds include an appropriation for contingencies.  Expenditures may be made from these 
appropriations only with City Council approval. 

 
  Unexpended appropriations, including those encumbered, lapse at fiscal year end.  Since all expenditures 

must be covered by an appropriation, the City reappropriates outstanding encumbrances.  For 2003-04, 
the reappropriation budget was $784,900,000. 

 
  Expenditure Limitation 
  Since fiscal year 1982-83, the City has been subject to an annual expenditure limitation imposed by the 

Arizona Constitution.  This limitation is based upon the City’s actual 1979-80 expenditures adjusted 
annually for subsequent growth in population and inflation.  The 2003-04 expenditure limit supplied by the 
Economic Estimates Commission was $1,001,653,000.  The City increased this limit to $4,925,936,000 to 
adjust for additional voter-approved modifications, as described below. 

 
The Constitution exempts certain expenditures from the limitation.  The principal exemptions for the City of 
Phoenix are payments for debt service and other long-term obligations, as well as expenditures of federal 
funds and certain state-shared revenues.  Exemptions associated with revenues not expended in the year 
of receipt may be carried forward and used in later years.  The 1979-80 expenditure base may also be 
adjusted for the transfer of functions between governmental jurisdictions. 

  
  The Constitution provides four processes, all requiring voter approval, to modify the expenditure limitation: 
 
   1. A four-year home rule option.  
 
   2. A permanent adjustment to the 1979-80 base. 
 
   3. A one-time override for the following fiscal year.  
 
   4. An accumulation for pay-as-you-go capital expenditures.  
 
  Phoenix voters have approved four-year home rule options on a regular basis since the implementation of 

the Expenditure Limitation.  The current home rule option which was approved in 1999 allows the City 
Council, after hearings are held for each council district, to establish the annual budget as the limit.  This 
four-year home rule option will be in effect through 2003-04. In 2003 voters approved a similar home rule 
option to be in effect through 2007-08.  Previously established exclusions for pay-as-you-go capital 
projects continue to apply.  
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  The City uses only those exemptions needed to comply with the expenditure limitation.  Exemptions that 
are not needed are carried forward to future years and used for future spending capacity.  As of June 30, 
2003, non-restricted carry forwards totaled $405,452,736.  

 
  Budget Calendar 
  Each year the City Manager issues a budget calendar giving specific completion dates for various phases 

of the budget process.  Both the City Charter and State Statutes are followed by completing each step by 
the earlier of the two legal “deadlines”, described below: 

 
Action City Charter State Statutes 

 
City Manager’s proposed 
budget for ensuing year 

submitted to Council 
 

 
On or before the first 

Tuesday in June 

 
No provision 

 

Publish general summary of 
budget and notice of public 

hearing 

Publish in newspaper of 
general circulation at least 

two weeks prior to first 
public hearing 

 

No provision 
 

Public hearing and tentative 
budget adoption 

 

On or before the last day of 
June 

On or before the third Monday in 
July 

Publish budget summary and 
notice of public hearing 

No provision Once a week for two 
consecutive weeks following 

tentative adoption 
 

Public hearing and final 
budget adoption 

No provision No later than the second 
Monday in August 

 
Property tax levy adoption No later than the last 

regular Council meeting in 
July 

No sooner than fourteen days 
following final budget adoption 

and no later than the third 
Monday in August 

   
  Final adoption of the Operating Budget is by Ordinance.  Differences between the basis of accounting 

used for budgetary purposes and that used for reporting in accordance with GAAP are discussed in Note 
2. 

 
 g. Reservations and Designations  

 Reservations and designations of fund equity are recorded to signify that a portion of fund equity is not 
appropriable for expenditure, or is legally segregated or earmarked by management for specific future 
use. 

 
 h. Pooled Cash and Investments  
  The City’s cash resources are combined to form a cash and investment pool managed by the City 

Treasurer.  Excluded from this pool are the investments of COPERS and certain other legally restricted 
funds.  Interest earned by the pool is distributed monthly to individual funds based on daily equity in the 
pool. 

 
The City has adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools.  As a 
governmental entity, other than an external investment pool, the City’s investments are stated at fair value, 
except for repurchase agreements with maturities when purchased of one year or less.  Fair value is based 
on quoted market prices as of the valuation date.  
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i. Inventories  
  Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption.  Inventories in governmental funds are 

stated at average cost.  Enterprise fund inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market. 
Inventories are primarily accounted for on the consumption method.  The reserve for inventory in the 
governmental funds is equal to the amount of inventory to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is not 
available for future expenditure. 

 
 j. Capital Assets  
  All capital assets, whether owned by governmental activities or business-type activities, are recorded and 

depreciated (unless the modified approach is used) in the government-wide financial statements.  The City 
has chosen not to apply the modified approach to any networks or subsystems of infrastructure assets.  
No long-term assets or depreciation are shown in the governmental fund financial statements.     

 
Public domain infrastructure (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets that are immovable and of 
value only to the City) has both depreciable and non-depreciable components.  Non-depreciable 
infrastructure consists of sub-grade preparation.  According to the Streets Department engineers, sub-
grade preparation, which is necessary for the initial construction of a street, will not have to be replaced in 
order to maintain the streets at an acceptable level.  Therefore, the sub-grade preparation is treated as a 
permanent improvement.  
 
Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated 
useful life greater than two years.  All artwork, land and non-depreciable infrastructure is capitalized.  
Capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated 
capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as the projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of projects is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset 
constructed for the enterprise funds.  See Note 8 for presentation of capital additions and interest costs 
incurred and capitalized.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.  Major improvements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.  
 

  Property, plant and equipment is depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method and the following 
estimated useful lives: 

 
     Buildings and improvements    5 to 50 years 
     Motor vehicles and motorized equipment   3 to 25 years 
     Furniture, machinery and equipment   5 to 25 years 
     General government infrastructure     6 to 100 years 
     Mains, hydrants, meters and service connections  5 to 50 years 
 
  Gain or loss is recognized when assets are retired from service or are otherwise disposed of.  Capital 

assets transferred between funds are transferred at their net book value (cost less accumulated 
depreciation) or net realizable value, if lower, as of the date of the transfer.  

 
 k. Compensated Absences  
  Vacation and compensatory time benefits are accrued as liabilities as employees earn the benefits to the 

extent that they meet both of the following criteria: 
 
   1. The City’s obligation is attributable to employees’ services already rendered. 
 
   2. It is probable that the City will compensate the employees for the benefits 

through paid time off or some other means, such as cash payments. 
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  Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by employees, but only to the 
extent that it is probable that the City will compensate the employees through cash payments conditioned 
on the employees’ termination or retirement.  For governmental funds, a liability for these amounts is 
reported only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  For 
the government-wide financial statements, as well as the enterprise fund financial statements, all of the 
outstanding compensated absences are recorded as a liability.  

  
 l. Long-Term Obligations  
  In the government-wide financial statements, and enterprise fund types in the fund financial statements, 

long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable statement of net 
assets.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  

 
  In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 

well as bond issuance costs in the period in which the bonds are issued.  The face amount of debt issued 
is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance 
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures.  

  
 m. Fund Deficits 
   
  The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund had deficit net assets of $2,796,000 at June 30, 2004, which 

management anticipates will be recovered from future earnings. 
 
 n. Interfund Transactions  
  Interfund transactions, consisting of services performed for other funds or costs billed to other funds are 

treated as expenditures in the fund receiving the services and as a reimbursement reducing expenditures 
in the fund performing the services, except for sales of water to other City departments, which are 
recorded as revenue, and in-lieu property taxes, which are recorded as revenue in the General Fund and 
expenses in the Enterprise funds.  In addition, operating transfers are made between funds to shift 
resources from a fund legally authorized to receive revenue to a fund authorized to expend the revenue. 

 
 o. Statements of Cash Flows  
  For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with 

original maturities of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. The 
“Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments” balances, net of unrealized gains or losses, are also considered 
to be cash equivalents due to the fact that the Enterprise funds may deposit or withdraw cash at any time 
without prior notice or penalty.  Under the provisions of GASB No. 9, pension trust funds are not required 
to present statements of cash flows. 

 
 p. Use of Estimates  

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

 
 q. Comparative Data  

 Certain comparative data for the prior year have been presented in the enterprise funds’ comparative 
financial statements and in the accompanying notes to the financial statements in order to provide an 
understanding of changes in the City’s financial position and operations.  Certain prior year data have 
been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.   
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2. Budget Basis of Accounting 
 

The City’s budget is adopted on a basis other than GAAP.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual for the General and major Special Revenue Funds (Exhibits B-
5 and B-6) are presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the 
budget.  The major differences between the budget and GAAP bases are: 

 
 Budget  GAAP 
 

Encumbrances 
 

The equivalent of 
expenditures 

 

  
A reservation of fund balance 

Grant Revenues Recognized on a modified 
cash basis 

 

 Recognized on the accrual 
basis 

Investment Income Unrealized gain or loss on 
investments not recognized 

 

 Unrealized gain or loss on 
investments recognized 

Reservations of Fund Balance Not recognized 
 

 Recognized 

Designation of Fund Balance for 
Unrealized Gains on 

Investments 
 

Not recognized  Recognized 

In-Lieu Property Taxes Interfund Transfers 
 

 Revenues and expenses 

Staff and Administrative Costs Interfund Transfers  Reimbursable expenses 
 
 
 Subfunds without legally adopted budgets (and, therefore, not included in the budgetary balances) are 

reported for GAAP.  In addition, certain revenues, expenditures and transfers not recognized in the budgetary 
year are accrued for GAAP purposes. 

 
Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 on the 
budget basis to the GAAP basis are as follows (in thousands): 

 

General Special Revenue

Budget basis $ (9,962) $ -                        

Entity differences - amounts not budgeted (16,572) -                        

Transfers not recognized for budget purposes 0 -                        

Accrued/(deferred) revenue not recognized for budget
purposes (net of reversals of prior year accruals) (4) -                        

Accrued expenditures not recognized for budget
purposes (net of reversals of prior year accruals) (284) -                        

Unrealized gain or loss on investments (4,057) -                        

Encumbrances at June 30 recognized as
expenditures for budget purposes 125 -                        

GAAP basis $ (30,754) $ -                         

Excise Tax

Excess of Sources of Financial Resources
Over Uses of Financial Resources
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 Adjustments necessary to convert the fund balances at June 30, 2004 on the budget basis to the GAAP basis 
are as follows (in thousands): 

 

Excise Tax
General Special Revenue

Budget basis $ 53,204 $ -                     

Entity differences - amounts not budgeted 209,476 -                     

Transfers not recognized for budget purposes (1,569) -                     

Accrued/(deferred) revenue not recognized for budget
purposes (net of reversals of prior year accruals) 444 -                     

Accrued expenditures not recognized for budget
purposes (net of reversals of prior year accruals) 151 -                     

Unrealized gain or loss on investments 30,178 -                     

Encumbrances at June 30 recognized as
expenditures for budget pruposes 11,820 -                     

GAAP basis $ 303,704 $ -                      

Fund Balances at June 30

 
 
 
 
3. Property Tax 
 
 Levy, Assessment and Collection 
 Arizona’s property tax system provides for two separate tax systems: 
 
  1. A primary system for taxes levied to pay current operation and maintenance expenses. 
 
  2. A secondary system for taxes levied to pay principal and interest on bonded indebtedness as well as 

for the determination of the maximum permissible bonded indebtedness. 
 
 Specific provisions are made under each system for determining the full cash and limited values of property, 

the basis of assessment, and the maximum annual tax levies on certain types of property and by certain taxing 
authorities.  Under the primary system, the limited value of locally-assessed real property (residential, 
commercial, industrial, agricultural and unimproved property) may increase by more than 10% annually only 
under certain circumstances.  Under the secondary system, there is no limitation on the annual increase in full 
cash value of any property.  Primary levies are limited to a 2% increase annually plus levies attributable to 
assessed valuation added as a result of growth and annexation.  In addition, levies may be increased by an 
amount equal to payments made during the year by the City pursuant to involuntary tort judgements. 
Secondary tax levies do not have a limitation.  City of Phoenix assessed valuations for 2004 are: primary 
$9,800,420,933 and secondary $10,489,921,645. 

  
 The City Council adopts the annual tax levy not later than the last regularly scheduled meeting in July.  The 

City’s property tax is levied each year on or before the third Monday in August.  The basis of this levy is the full 
cash value as determined by the Maricopa County Assessor.  For locally assessed property, the full cash 
value is determined as of January 1 of the year preceding the tax year, known as the valuation year.  For 
utilities and other centrally valued properties, the full cash value is determined as of January 1 of the tax year.  
The City has a legal enforceable claim to the property when the property tax is levied.  The County collects all 
property taxes on behalf of the City and all other tax levying jurisdictions within the County.   
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Property Taxes Receivable for the year were as follows (in thousands):  

2003 Levy
Primary Secondary Total Prior Levies Total

Taxes Receivable, July 1 $ -            $ -            $ -              $ 5,400 $ 5,400
Current Tax Levy 76,915  94,984  171,899  -                   171,899  
Adjustments by County Assessor (80)        (198)      (278)        (437)             (715)        

76,835    94,786    171,621    4,963            176,584    
Less:  Collections (74,944) (92,337) (167,281) (3,312)          (170,593) 
    Taxes Receivable, June 30 $ 1,891 $ 2,449 $ 4,340 $ 1,651 $ 5,991

 
 
 In fiscal 2003-04, current property tax collections were $167,281,000, or 97.3% of the tax levy, and were 

recognized as revenue when received.  At fiscal year end, the delinquent property tax expected to be collected 
within 60 days was recognized as revenue and recorded as a receivable for the governmental funds.  As 
delinquent payments are received in 2004-05, the receivable will be credited until the full amount has been 
satisfied.  Any additional collections will be credited to revenue.  Property tax revenues on the government-
wide statements are recognized, net of estimated uncollectible amounts, in the period for which the taxes are 
levied.   

 
 The year end fund balance in the Secondary Property Tax Debt Service Fund must remain in that fund and be 

used for future debt service payments.  Any year that total primary tax collections, excluding delinquent 
collections, exceed the primary tax levy, the excess amount must be deducted from the maximum levy of the 
following year. 

 
 Taxes Due and Payable 
 Property taxes are due and payable at the office of the County Treasurer in two equal installments on October 

1 and March 1 following the levy date, and become delinquent the first business day of November and May, 
respectively.  Interest at 16% per annum attaches on the first and second installments following their 
delinquent dates.  Interest on delinquent taxes is retained by the County.  The County Treasurer remits to the 
City on the 15th day of each month all monies collected the previous month on property taxes due the City. 

 
 Delinquent Taxes - Sales and Redemption 
 Public auctions for sale of delinquent real estate taxes are held in the office of the County Treasurer in 

February following the May 1 date upon which the second half taxes become delinquent.  Tax bills are sold to 
the highest bidder who offers to pay the accumulated amount of tax and to charge thereon the lowest rate of 
interest.  The maximum amount of interest provided by law is 16% per annum.  The purchaser is given a 
Certificate of Purchase issued by the County Treasurer.  Five years from the date of sale, the holder of a 
Certificate of Purchase, which has not been redeemed, may demand of the County Treasurer a County 
Treasurer’s Deed.  However, at the end of three full years, a holder of a Certificate may institute a quiet title 
action.  If the suit is successful, the Court will instruct the County Treasurer to issue a County Treasurer’s 
Deed. 

 
 Redemption may be made by the owner or any interested party by payment in full of all accumulated charges 

at any time before issuance of the tax deed. 
 
 Unsecured Personal Property 
 The foregoing is applicable to real property, improvements thereon and secured personal property (personal 

property attached to real property), utilities and other centrally assessed property.  During fiscal 2003-04, 0.1% 
of the total property tax collections represented taxes on unsecured personal property, which are assessed on 
a monthly basis using different procedures than those applicable to secured property. 
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4. Cash and Investments 
 
 The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except for the investments 
 of the Pension Trust Fund (COPERS) which is held separately.  Each fund type’s portion of this pool is 

displayed on the combined balance sheet as “Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments”.  In addition, 
investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds. The Pooled Cash and Investments Account 
was comprised of the following (in thousands): 

 

  

June 30
2004 2003

Cash in Bank $ 11,054      $ 11,668       
Cash on Hand 228           226            
Cash With Fiscal Agents (1) 6,449        19,547       
Investments 1,192,614 1,202,914  

Less: SROG Equity in Pooled Cash (36,331)     (40,978)      
Less: Val Vista Equity in Pooled Cash (1,600)       (2,149)        

Total 1,172,414 1,191,228
Less: Restricted Equity in Pooled Cash (356,231) (318,107)

Unrestricted Equity in Pooled Cash $ 816,183 $ 873,121

(1) Represents cash advanced by the City to fiscal agents on June 30, 2004 for debt service
payments on refunded/defeased bonds due to bondholders on July 1, 2004. The City was
reimbursed on July 1, 2004, from proceeds of investments maturing in escrow accounts held
by the respective fiscal/escrow agents.

 
  
A summary of Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments by fund follows (in thousands): 
 

   

June 30
2004 2003

Unrestricted
General Fund $ 84,547      $ 193,501    

Non-Major Governmental Funds 459,182    388,386    

Fiduciary Funds
Payroll Agency 33,407      25,600      

Enterprise Funds 
Aviation 60,569      75,247      
Phoenix Civic Plaza 25,800      31,346      
Water System 99,003      115,628    
Wastewater 30,579      24,105      
Solid Waste 23,008      19,308      
Golf Courses 88             -                 

Total Unrestricted 816,183      873,121      

Restricted
Enterprise Funds

Aviation 222,616    184,136    
Phoenix Civic Plaza -                420            
Water System 56,620      55,023      
Wastewater 64,116      62,524      
Solid Waste 12,879      16,004      

Total Restricted 356,231      318,107      

$ 1,172,414 $ 1,191,228 
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Deposits 
 The City’s deposits during the year and at fiscal year end were entirely covered by federal depository 

insurance or by collateral held by the City’s agent in the City’s name.  The carrying amount of the City’s 
deposits at June 30, 2004 was $11,054,000 and the bank ledger balance was $13,119,000. 

 
 Cash and securities with fiscal agents and trustees totaled $236,190,000 at June 30, 2004.  The City’s 

contracts with the fiscal agents and trustees call for these deposits to be fully covered by collateral held in the 
fiscal agents’ and trustees’ trust departments but not in the City’s name.  Each trust department pledges a pool 
of collateral against all trust deposits it holds. 

 
 Investments 
 The City Charter and ordinances authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, its agencies 

and instrumentalities, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, certificates of deposit, the State 
Treasurer’s investment pool, highly rated obligations issued or guaranteed by any state or political subdivision 
thereof rated in the highest short-term or second highest long-term category and investment grade corporate 
bonds, debentures, notes and other evidences of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by a solvent U.S. 
corporation which are not in default as to principal or interest.  Investments are carried at fair value.  It is the 
City’s policy generally to hold investments until maturity.  In addition to the types of investments described 
above, COPERS is also authorized to invest in certain types of investment grade domestic preferred and 
common stocks, and real property.  The City Charter allows up to a 60% investment in common stocks.  

 
 The City’s investments are categorized as follows to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year 

end: 
 
  Category 1 Investments that are insured or registered or for which the 

securities are held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. 
 
  Category 2 Uninsured and unregistered investments for which the 

securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or 
agent in the City’s name. 

 
  Category 3 Uninsured and unregistered investments for which the 

securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust 
department or agent but not in the City’s name. 

 
All of the investments at June 30, 2004 were included in category 1, except short-term investment funds 
which, in accordance with GASB No. 3, are not categorized. 

 
 Total investments held by the City at June 30, 2004, stated at fair value, were $3,997,440.  This total is 

comprised of investments reported as “Investments”, and investments reported within “Equity in Pooled Cash 
and Investments”.  The following summarizes those amounts reported in “Investments” in the accompanying 
financial statements (in thousands):    

Governmental Enterprise Enterprise
Funds COPERS Funds Funds

U.S. Government Securities $ 325,052       $ 89,608      $ 8,171   $ 422,831      $ 666,156 
Repurchase Agreements 23,597         -                2,154   25,751        11,337   
Mortgage Backed Securities -                   33,818      -          33,818        -             
Asset Backed Securities -                   26,039      -          26,039                 -
Corporate Bonds -                   298,673    -          298,673      -             
Municipal Securities 4,902           -                -          4,902          -             
Domestic Equities -                   792,985    -          792,985      -             
International Equities -                   149,380    -          149,380      -             
Short-Term Investment Funds 173,409       197,966    -          371,375      1,579     

$ 526,960       $ 1,588,469 $ 10,325 $ 2,125,754   $ 679,072 

Value

Unrestricted Restricted
Total
Fair
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The following summarizes the portion of total investments reported in “Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments” 
in the accompanying financial statements (in thousands): 

 
 

     

U.S. Government Securities $ 878,885      
Repurchase Agreements 56,929        
Mortgage Backed Securities 253,900      
Municipal Securities 538               
Short-Term Investment Funds 2,362            

$ 1,192,614     

 
 
 
 COPERS’ investments are managed by five professional fund managers and are held by a plan custodian who 

is COPERS’ agent.  There were no situations that occurred during the year, which posed greater credit risk 
than at June 30, 2004. 

 
5. Receivables 
 

Receivables are stated net of the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts, and are summarized as follows (in 
thousands):  

 
Intergov- June 30

Accounts Taxes Interest ernmental Notes 2004 2003

Unrestricted
Governmental Activities 

General Fund $ 16,618     $ 9,099      $ 45           $ 612             $ -            $ 26,374     $ 20,627     
Excise Tax -               52,273    -             19,262        -            71,535     67,431     
Non-Major 12,049     4,696      1,618      64,216        16,104  98,683     81,465     

28,667     66,068    1,663      84,090        16,104  196,592   169,523   

Business-Type Activities 
Aviation 3,669       -             -             -                  -            3,669       3,212       
Civic Plaza 4              -             -             -                  -            4              206          
Water System 36,537     -             40           1,809          -            38,386     34,035     
Wastewater 11,696     -             -             2,242          -            13,938     13,527     
Solid Waste 7,930       -             -             17               -            7,947       7,173       
Golf Courses 3              -             -             -                  -            3              7              

59,839     -             40           4,068          -            63,947     58,160     

88,506     66,068    1,703      88,158        16,104  260,539   227,683   

Restricted 
Business-Type Activities

Aviation 12,203     -             147         14,217        -            26,567     13,496     
Civic Plaza -               -             41           543             -            584          931          
Water System -               -             312         -                  -            312          381          
Wastewater -               -             -             58               -            58            99            
Solid Waste -               -             -             -                  -                    - -               
Golf Courses -               -             -             -                  -                    - -               

12,203             - 500         14,818                - 27,521     14,907     

$ 100,709   $ 66,068   $ 2,203    $ 102,976    $ 16,104 $ 288,060   $ 242,590 
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The following is a summary of the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for all funds and the Bad Debt Expense for 
the enterprise funds (in thousands): 
 

 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

June 30
Accounts Taxes 2004 2003

Governmental 
General Fund $ 25,986     $ -             $ 25,986     $ 22,843     
Excise Tax -               8,512     8,512       14,268     
Non-Major  84            -             84            144          

Business-Type
Aviation 724          -             724          1,187       
Water System 791          -             791          751          
Wastewater 394          -             394          342          
Solid Waste 455          -             455          444          

$ 28,434     $ 8,512     $ 36,946     $ 39,979     

 
  

 
Enterprise fund Accounts Receivable included unbilled charges as follows (in thousands): 

 
 

     

June 30
2004 2003

Aviation $ 3,901 $ 3,503
Water System 15,288 14,259
Wastewater 5,285 4,892
Solid Waste 4,053 3,691

$ 28,527 $ 26,345

 
 

 
 
The City has entered into a loan agreement with Native American Connections, Inc. (NACI) for the sale of 
property to NACI.  The loan agreement has been recorded as a note receivable in the Municipal Buildings and 
Service Centers Capital Project Fund.  The note amount is $1,000,000, with a maturity date of June 30, 2040, 
and an interest rate of 5.06%.   
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The City has also entered into various loan agreements with third parties related to its public housing 
programs. These loan agreements have been recorded as notes receivable within the Public Housing Special 
Revenue Fund.  Under these agreements, the City has loaned money to nonprofit corporations for the purpose 
of establishing and/or improving public housing units.  The loans are secured by an interest in the property 
being acquired and/or improved.  The following is a summary of these notes: 
 

 

   

Note Interest Monthly Payments Balance
Amount Dated Due Rate Amount Commencing June 30, 2004

$ 250,000 12/30/93 07/01/26 2% $ 417 07/01/96 $ 241,352
250,000 05/10/94 05/01/19 4% 1,471 09/01/95 192,154
150,000 05/10/94 05/01/19 4% 883 09/01/95 115,292
248,660 01/01/95 01/01/25 2% 919 02/01/95 185,357

86,000 02/01/95 09/01/19 2% 370 03/01/95 58,357
64,000 02/01/95 09/01/19 2% 276 03/01/95 43,428

250,000 04/01/95 12/01/19 2% 1,076 06/01/95 170,435
52,350 04/01/95 05/01/10 2% 337 05/01/95 22,539

250,000 06/01/95 06/01/20 4% 1,320 07/01/95 224,734
43,521 06/01/95 07/01/15 2% 220 07/01/95 18,459

250,000 06/30/95 12/31/21 4% 1,290 01/01/96 194,616
250,000 12/31/95 05/01/26 4% 1,202 05/01/96 207,324
197,803 01/01/96 02/01/21 2% 838 02/01/96 141,293

91,000 06/27/96 12/01/26 2% 336 12/01/96 73,083
62,030 07/01/95 11/01/16 2% 316 11/01/96 42,147

250,061 09/19/96 10/01/21 2% 1,077 04/01/97 187,580
207,355 11/27/96 05/01/27 2% 766 05/01/97 167,991
225,000 12/20/96 06/01/27 2% 832 06/01/97 183,349
134,000 10/10/97 03/01/28 2% 495 04/01/98 112,293

81,766 11/20/98 05/01/19 2% 414 06/01/99 63,972
250,000 05/01/98 09/01/28 2% 924 10/01/98 216,888
250,000 07/22/99 07/01/29 4% 1,194 08/01/99 226,557
250,000 12/07/98 02/01/30 4% 1,194 03/01/00 229,585
261,053 12/22/00 02/01/37 4% 1,107 03/01/02 254,633
500,000 01/23/01 01/01/41 4% 12,782 07/01/02 488,533
272,594 04/17/00 05/01/37 4% 1,207 06/01/02 264,830
270,786 01/13/01 05/01/39 4% 1,198 06/01/04 260,035
261,053 10/15/01 12/01/32 4% 1,246 04/01/03 254,087
250,000 12/27/01 10/01/32 2% 924 11/01/02 240,737

1,000,000 06/26/01 07/01/09 6% 4,100 07/01/09 1,000,000
2,631,342 various various 4% various various 2,110,507
2,167,507 various various 4% various various 1,531,241
4,599,696 various various 4% various various 3,724,065

457,500 01/01/03 07/01/33 4% 2,184 07/01/03 449,443
480,000 02/28/03 (1) 0% (1) (1) 480,000
199,000 06/28/03 08/01/33 4% 950 08/01/03 196,385
530,865 12/13/02 04/01/33 4% 30,617 04/01/05 530,865

$ 15,104,146

(1)  The due date and payment schedule has not been determined at this time
       and is based on the compliance of specific provisions in the contract. 
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6. Interfund Transactions  
Net interfund receivables and payables between governmental activities and business-type activities in the 
amount of $150,000, are included in the government-wide financial statements at June 30, 2004.  The 
following amounts due to other funds or due from other funds are included in the fund financial statements at 
June 30, 2004 (in thousands): 

 
Due To  Due From

Unrestricted
Governmental Funds

General Fund $ -         $ 227,583   
Excise Tax 71,493   -           
Non-major Governmental 160,749 4,809       

Total Governmental Funds 232,242 232,392   

Restricted
Enterprise Funds

Water System -         -           
Solid Waste -         -           
Golf Courses 150        -           

Total Restricted 150 -           

Total Due To/Due From $ 232,392 $ 232,392

 
 
Interfund balances at June 30, 2004 are short-term loans to cover temporary cash deficits in various funds.  
This occasionally occurs prior to bond sales or grant reimbursements.  All interfund balances outstanding at 
June 30, 2004 are expected to be repaid within one year.  
 
Net transfers of $22,209,000 from governmental activities to business-type activities on the government-wide 
statement of activities is primarily the result of the monthly transfer of earmarked excise tax to the Civic Plaza 
Enterprise fund.  The following interfund transfers are reflected in the fund financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2004.  
 

Transfer Out Transfer In
Governmental Funds

General Fund $ 98,605         $ 592,754     
Excise Tax 777,071       -            
Non-major Governmental 83,574         344,287     

Total Governmental Funds 959,250         937,041      

Enterprise Funds
Civic Plaza -               40,322       
Water System 7,720           -            
Wastewater 6,028           -            
Solid Waste 4,365           -            

Total Enterprise Funds 18,113 40,322

Total Transfers $ 977,363 $ 977,363

 
   

Interfund transfers are primarily used for 1) debt service payments made from a debt service fund, but funded 
from an operating fund; 2) subsidy transfers from unrestricted general funds; or 3) transfers to move excise tax 
revenues from the excise tax fund to the various funds that receive earmarked excise tax revenues and to the 
general fund.  
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7. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 
 
 Restricted assets and liabilities payable from restricted assets are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

 
 
 

June 30
2004 2003

Restricted Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 356,231 $ 318,107
Cash Deposits 6,803 6,975
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents/Trustees 142,281 125,576
Investments 679,072 483,165
Receivables, Net of Allowances 27,521 14,907

  Subtotal 1,211,908 948,730
Due From Other Funds -           1,190

Total Restricted Assets $ 1,211,908 $ 949,920

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Warrants and Accounts Payable $ 61,366 $ 35,383
Trust Liabilities and Deposits 2,750       2,980
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable 300,000   160,000
Accrued Landfill Closure Costs 2,227       4,529

  Subtotal 366,343 202,892
Due to Other Funds 150          1,199
Matured Bonds and Certificates Payable 73,869     72,094
Interest Payable 56,897     55,845
Current Portion of General Obligation Bonds 24,820     33,277
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds 3,925       3,710
Current Portion of Municipal Corporation Obligations 46,354     38,390

Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets $ 572,358 $ 407,407
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8. Capital Assets 
 

A summary of capital asset activity for the government-wide financial statements follows (in thousands): 
 
  

Balances Balances
July 1, 2003 Additions Transfers June 30, 2004

Governmental activities:
Non-depreciable assets: 

Land $ 472,424      $ 24,672    $ (454)        $ 42,572      $ 539,214     
Infrastructure 321,791      17,083    -              4,535        343,409     
Artwork 8,647          -              -              -                8,647         
Construction-in-Progress 369,709      283,714  (43,194)   (137,789)   472,440     
  Total non-depreciable assets 1,172,571   325,469  (43,648)   (90,682)     1,363,710  

Depreciable assets: 
Buildings 744,128      4,438      (515)        22,060      770,111     
Improvements 214,899      15,874    (2,435)     30,684      259,022     
Infrastructure 1,151,981   78,505    (29,238)   31,408      1,232,656  
Equipment 415,793      50,267    (15,913)   6,530        456,677     
  Total depreciable assets 2,526,801   149,084  (48,101)   90,682      2,718,466  

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (235,983)     (22,003)   297         -                (257,689)    
Improvements (104,858)     (9,619)     1,893      -                (112,584)    
Infrastructure (339,352)     (30,871)   29,153    -                (341,070)    
Equipment (208,980)     (36,989)   13,011    -                (232,958)    
  Total accumulated depreciation (889,173)     (99,482)   44,354    -                (944,301)    
    Total depreciable assets, net 1,637,628   49,602    (3,747)     90,682      1,774,165  

Governmental activities, capital 
  assets, net $ 2,810,199   $ 375,071  $ (47,395)   $ -                $ 3,137,875  

Business-type activities:
Non-depreciable assets: 

Land $ 367,918      $ 2,357      $ (27)          $ 87,823      $ 458,071     
Artwork 3,100          -              -              87             3,187         
Construction-in-Progress 730,299      287,092  24,180    (328,899)   712,672     
  Total non-depreciable assets 1,101,317   289,449  24,153    (240,989)   1,173,930  

Depreciable assets: 
Buildings 891,520      10,185    (238)        20,102      921,569     
Improvements 1,879,645   55,082    (3,025)     156,448    2,088,150  
Hydrants, mains, etc. 883,490      64,158    (5,665)     43,078      985,061     
Equipment 323,784      21,746    (14,468)   21,361      352,423     
  Total depreciable assets 3,978,439   151,171  (23,396)   240,989    4,347,203  

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (368,262)     (34,862)   187         -                (402,937)    
Improvements (687,231)     (75,529)   2,657      -                (760,103)    
Hydrants, mains, etc. (300,645)     (21,328)   1,116      -                (320,857)    
Equipment (153,794)     (27,432)   12,640    -                (168,586)    
  Total accumulated depreciation (1,509,932)  (159,151) 16,600    -                (1,652,483) 
    Total depreciable assets, net 2,468,507   (7,980)     (6,796)     240,989    2,694,720  

Business-type activities, capital 
  assets, net $ 3,569,824   $ 281,469  $ 17,357    $ -                $ 3,868,650  

Deletions
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Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions in the government-wide financial statements 
as follows (in thousands): 
 

 

General Government $ 6,465         
Criminal Justice 720            
Public Safety 14,015       
Transportation 52,865       
Community Enrichment 17,072       
Community Development 4,801         
Environmental Services 7,940         

$ 103,878     

 
  
 
 
 Net enterprise fund interest cost incurred and the portion capitalized were as follows (in thousands): 
 
 

 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2004   2003
Incurred  Capitalized Incurred  Capitalized

Aviation $ 35,670 $ 8,899 $ 39,537 $ 11,986
Phoenix Civic Plaza 5,379 52 5,609 29
Water System 32,479 6,666    33,999 5,257       
Wastewater 28,120 5,073 28,253 4,135
Solid Waste 6,347 140 3,780 78

$ 107,995 $ 20,830 $ 111,178 $ 21,485

 
 



Notes to the Financial Statements  
(Continued)  
 

 G-53

9. Long-Term Obligations 
 
 Changes in long-term obligations during fiscal 2003-04 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

Amounts
Balances Balances Due Within

July 1 Additions (1) Reductions (2) June 30 One Year
Governmental activities 
Bonds and notes payable: 

General Obligation Bonds $ 665,303    $ 242,943      $ 77,467   $ 830,779 31,566        
Revenue Bonds

Street and Highway User Revenue 198,537    1,097         18,805   180,829 17,740        
Housing Revenue 2,540        -                 395        2,145 420            

Certificates of Participation 20,455      -                 -              20,455 480            
Municipal Corporation Obligations 325,234    20,080        7,950     337,364 10,986        
Special Assessment Bonds 6,102        -                 1,492     4,610 1,511         

1,218,171 264,120      106,109 1,376,182 62,703        
Deferred Loss on Refunding 20,205      3,317         2,206     21,316 -                 

Total bonds and notes payable 1,238,376 267,437      108,315 1,397,498 62,703        
Other liabilities: 

Insurance Claims Payable 194,100    146,899      173,546 167,453 55,434        
Accrued Compensated Absences 137,433    139,246      137,433 139,246 12,897        

Total other liabilities 331,533    286,145      310,979 306,699 68,331        
Total governmental activities $ 1,569,909 $ 553,582      $ 419,294 $ 1,704,197 131,034      

Business-type activities 
Bonds and notes payable: 

General Obligation Bonds 304,763 10,443        43,190 272,016 24,820        
Revenue Bonds 54,950 -                 13,710 41,240 3,925         
Municipal Corporation Obligations 1,736,240 281,283      43,254 1,974,269 46,354        

2,095,953 291,726      100,154 2,287,525 75,099        
Deferred Loss on Refunding 45,344 2,043         3,469     43,918 -                 
Cummulative capital appreciation on 
   general obligation minibonds (4,140) (382)           (1,136)    (3,386) -                 

Total bonds and notes payable 2,137,157 293,387 102,487 2,328,057 75,099        
Other liabilities: 

Accrued Compensated Absences 16,024 16,424        16,024   16,424 1,864         
Capital Leases (3) 2,252 4                458        1,798 -                 
Utility Repayment Agreements (3) 5,132 -                 415        4,717 -                 
Rebatable Arbitrage 510 -                 510        -                    -                 
Accrued Landfill Closure and
   Postclosure Care Costs 27,837 4,751         714        31,874 1,422         

Total other liabilities 51,755 21,179 18,121 54,813 3,286         
Total business-type activities $ 2,188,912 $ 314,566 $ 120,608 $ 2,382,870 78,385        

(1) Additions include $382,000 for accrued interest on capital appreciation enterprise general obligation minibonds.
(2) For the Governmental Activities, Insurance Claims Payable and Compensated Absences are generally 

liquidated by the General Fund. 
(3) The amount excludes the current portion of the liability.

 
 The amounts reported above have been reduced by deposits made with the City’s fiscal agent for July 1, 

2004 maturities, a portion of which is included in restricted assets for the Enterprise Funds.  These deposits 
were as follows (in thousands): 

Principal Interest Total
Governmental Funds

General Obligation Bonds $ 31,965 $ 19,332 $ 51,297
Street and Highway User Revenue Bonds 18,805 4,745 23,550
Certificates of Participation -             -              -              
Municipal Corporation Obligations 7,947 8,178 16,125
Special Assessment Bonds -             147 147

58,717 32,402 91,119
Enterprise Funds

General Obligation Bonds 33,276 8,908 42,184
Revenue Bonds 3,710 1,389 5,099
Municipal Corporation Obligations 36,883 46,600 83,483

73,869 56,897 130,766

$ 132,586 $ 89,299 $ 221,885
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Issues of long-term debt, excluding deferred losses of $65,234 and accumulated appreciation on general 
obligation mini-bonds of ($3,386) were as follows at June 30, 2004 (dollars in thousands):  
 

Net Effective Average Discount
Issue Maturity Interest Interest Life Original Balance (Premium)
Date  Purpose Dates Rate Rate (Years) Amount Outstanding (2)

General Obligation Bonds
12/01/89 Various Improvements 7/1/00-10    7.01 (1) 14.7 $ 12,242 $ 2,456 $         -
12/06/91 Sanitary Sewer 7/1/95-11    4.62    4.56 13.9 30,000 17,845         -
04/01/92 Refunding 7/1/95-13    6.31    6.27 10.6 237,945 19,030         -
04/15/93 Refunding 7/1/95-16    5.48    5.45 13.4 335,165 127,820         -
09/15/93 Refunding 7/1/94-16    5.11    5.12 15.2 70,550 10,975 (30)
12/01/93 Water Improvements 7/1/04-14    5.03    4.98 13.8 17,229 8,713         -
01/01/95 Various Improvements 7/1/97-12    5.93    5.94 11.4 30,000 1,920         -
07/01/95 Refunding 7/1/10-19    5.59    5.56 19.9 85,000 34,520         -
11/01/95 Various Improvements 7/1/01-20    5.26    5.35 17.0 60,000 23,160         -
02/01/96 Refunding 7/1/96-14    4.86    4.85 10.3 35,280 20,425         -
01/15/97 Various Improvements 7/1/99-20    5.39    5.32 14.7 32,000 13,655 3
01/15/98 Various Improvements 7/1/01-22    4.74    4.67 15.9 75,000 57,020 27
01/15/99 Refunding 7/1/99-20    4.47    4.44 12.4 163,820 152,040 (562)
02/01/99 Various Improvements 7/1/01-23    4.77    4.74 15.8 58,000 38,920 (37)
07/15/00 Various Improvements 7/1/03-25    5.48    5.42 16.9 50,000 30,955 (14)
12/07/01 Sanitary Sewer 7/1/03-21    3.70    3.70 18.0 6,075 5,615         -
05/22/02 Various Improvements-Taxable 7/1/08-10    5.65    5.66 7.1 10,000 10,000         -
05/22/02 Refunding 7/1/03-18    4.46    4.37 8.4 144,495 118,590 (602)
05/22/02 Various Improvements 7/1/11-27    5.11    5.11 18.3 89,970 83,120         -
05/22/02 Refunding 7/1/14-15    4.83    4.77 12.4 14,680 8,525         -
05/21/03 Refunding 7/1/05-16    3.36    3.25 9.1 83,320 83,320 (1,729)
03/01/04 Various Improvements 7/1/09-28    4.24    4.22 16.3 200,000 200,000 (393)
03/01/04 Refunding 7/1/11-19    3.94    3.74 11.7 50,870 50,870 (164)

Total General Obligation Bonds 1,891,641 1,119,494 (3,501)

Revenue Bonds
02/01/92 Street/Highway Improvements 7/1/07    6.55    6.76    17.8 55,490 5,815         -
03/15/92 Street/Highway Refunding 7/1/93-11    6.50    6.72    13.4 117,880 10,060         -
12/15/92 Street/Highway Refunding  (3) 7/1/94-13    7.96    6.33    15.0 58,226 16,661         -
05/01/94 Airport Improvements  (3) 7/1/03-12    6.44    6.52    14.1 31,500 26,575 121
05/01/94 Airport Refunding  (3) 7/1/95-12    5.56    5.65      5.7 36,400 2,250 13
05/01/94 Airport Refunding  (3) 7/1/95-12    6.31    6.41    11.1 21,650 12,415 58
08/01/95 Municipal Housing Refunding 12/1/95-09    6.06    6.03      7.7 4,960 2,145         -
01/01/99 Street/Highway Refunding 7/1/99-11    4.40    4.65 9.1 10,375 9,200         -
05/10/02 Street/Highway Refunding (3) 7/1/03-11    3.61    3.76 5.3 123,125 99,415         -
05/28/03 Street/Highway Refunding 7/1/05-11    2.76    2.56 6.2 47,360 47,360         -

Total Revenue Bonds 506,966 231,896 192

Certificates of Participation
06/01/93 Amphitheatre Refunding  (3) (4b) 8/1/95-19    5.43    5.89    16.8 14,080 10,900         -
07/01/93 Amphitheatre, Stadium and

Housing (3) (4b) 8/1/94-23    5.18    5.67    18.5 11,975 9,555         -
Total Certificates of Participation 26,055 20,455         -

(Continued)
(1) Effective rate equals the net interest rate.
(2) Enterprise Funds only.
(3) Insured by a municipal bond insurance policy, a reserve account surety bond, a debt service reserve fund, or an 

irrevocable direct pay letter of credit.
(4) The City has pledged excise taxes as security.  The taxes pledged are as follows:

        (a) Senior lien pledge on all outstanding excise tax obligations.
        (b) Subordinated junior lien pledge on all outstanding excise tax obligations.

(5) The City has pledged excise taxes on a senior lien basis as security; however, debt service requirements on these 
obligations are paid from airport revenues.

(6) The City has pledged designated Water System revenues as security.  This pledge is junior to the pledge of net operating
revenues for payment of the City's outstanding water revenue bonds.

(7) The City has pledged designated Wastewater System revenues, subject to annual appropriation.

Unamortized

 
 



Notes to the Financial Statements  
(Continued)  
 

 G-55

 
Net Effective Average Discount

Issue Maturity Interest Interest Life Original Balance (Premium)
Date Purpose Dates Rate Rate (Years) Amount Outstanding (2)

Municipal Corporation Obligations
09/01/92 Wtr. Rights Land Acq. Ref. (3) (6) 8/1/97-17    6.07    6.16    18.4 $ 31,485 $ 27,775 $ 355
09/01/92 Superblock Refinancing (3)  (4b) 8/1/00-17    6.11    6.21    20.2 15,560 15,010         -
01/01/93 Wastewater System   (7) 7/1/97-05    6.24    6.36    21.1 250,000 6,240 10
06/01/93 Patriots Sq. Park. Garage Ref. (3) (4b) 7/1/96-09    5.25    5.61    10.4 14,350 6,395         -
10/01/93 Wastewater Refunding  (7) 7/1/99-23    4.87    5.27    22.1 235,735 228,860 5,212
01/01/94 Water System Improvements  (6) 7/1/95-24    5.45    5.49    19.5 110,000 2,635         -
05/01/94 Airport Refunding  (5) 7/1/95-14    6.09    6.13    11.7 33,705 21,360 66
08/01/94 Civic Plaza (4a) 7/1/05-14    5.98     (1)   16.0 43,250 43,250         -
08/01/94 Civic Plaza Refunding (4a) 7/1/96-05    5.09    5.76    6.4 24,395 765         -
11/01/94 Municipal Facilities (3) (4b) 7/1/95-05    6.53    6.47    7.2 33,410 630         -
04/25/95 Airport Improvements (3) (9) 6/1/10-20     (8)     (8)   22.0 31,000 31,000         -
06/15/96 Water System Improvements  (6) 7/1/00-08    5.82    5.78 15.2 150,000 11,340 (1)
01/15/97 Municipal Facilities Refunding (3) (4b) 7/1/99-21    5.47    5.43 14.4 9,935 9,455         -
07/01/97 Wastewater System   (3) (12) 7/1/03-22    5.35    5.32 17.2 75,000 22,170 (40)
01/01/98 Civic Plaza East Garage (3) (4b) 7/1/00-22    6.66    6.63 16.2 43,000 38,150 173
01/15/98 Multipurpose Arena Refunding (3) (4b) 7/1/98-19    6.83    6.64 14.1 48,740 42,320         -
02/01/98 Airport Refunding (5) 7/1/98-14    4.67    4.68 9.6 38,355 26,415 (288)
05/01/98 Water System Refunding (3) (6) 7/1/99-19    5.05    5.03 16.3 109,155 106,280 600
08/01/98 Airport Revenue (10) 7/1/03-25    5.06    5.08 18.1 165,000 155,245 (91)
06/01/99 Phoenix Municipal Courthouse (4a) 7/1/05-29    5.35    5.32 20.7 79,000 79,000         -
06/01/99 Adams Street Garage (4a) 7/1/05-29    5.34    5.31 20.7 15,000 15,000         -
02/01/00 Bus Acquisition Special Revenue (3) (13) 7/1/00-12    5.40    5.42 6.7 18,320 12,230         -
06/01/00 Wastewater System Revenue (3) (12) 7/1/05-24    5.97    5.91 16.4 135,000 25,690 (61)
08/01/00 Municipal Facilities Revenue (3) (4b) 7/1/01-20    5.11    4.94 8.2 65,000 41,990 (110)
07/01/01 Wastewater System Refunding (12) 7/1/02-24    5.06    5.02 16.4 166,260 164,315 (2,332)
08/01/01 Water System Refunding (3) (6) 7/1/02-24    4.88    4.68 14.1 99,980 97,970 (4,433)
04/01/02 Water System Revenue (3) (6) 7/1/07-26    5.10    5.08 16.3 220,000 220,000 (2,176)
05/01/02 Airport Sr. Lien Refunding (3) (10) 7/1/08-13    4.91    4.82 9.5 23,225 23,225 (1,160)
05/01/02 Airport Sr. Lien Revenue (3) (10) 7/1/14-32    5.40    5.53 22.7 231,390 231,390 2,265
05/01/02 Airport Jr. Lien Revenue (3) (11) 7/1/05-29    5.45    5.54 17.8 159,565 159,565 (888)
04/25/03 New City Hall Refunding (4a) 7/1/04-29    4.53    4.43 15.6 47,600 46,480         -
04/30/03 Solid Waste Improvements (3)(14) 7/1/04-23    4.38    4.17 12.3 80,000 77,925 (5,197)
04/30/03 Municipal Facilities (3)(4b) 7/1/05-25    4.13    4.03 11.8 25,000 25,000         -
04/30/03 Municipal Facilities (Taxable) (3)(4b) 7/1/09-33    5.64     (1) 20.8 25,000 25,000         -
04/30/03 Municipal Facilities (Taxable) (3)(4b) 7/1/09-33    5.65    5.66 20.8 10,000 10,000         -
10/01/03 Water System Refunding (6) 7/1/05-22    4.47    4.53 15.6 11,325 11,325 212
06/01/04 Excise Tax Revenue (3)(4b) 7/1/06-25    4.44    4.14 8.4 22,000 22,000 (67)
06/01/04 Excise Tax Revenue Refunding (3)(4b) 7/1/15-25    4.98    4.89 16.6 5,700 5,700 (71)
06/02/04 Rental Car Facility (Taxable) (3)(15) 7/1/07-29    6.12    6.20 16.5 260,000 260,000         -

Total Municipal Corporation Obligations 3,161,440 2,349,100 (8,022)

Special Assessment Bonds
Various Unredeemed Matured Bonds          -         -         - 44 44         -
1990 Various Improvements 1/1/00-06 6.90-7.00 (1)    10.0 5,300 1,065         -
1992 Various Improvements 1/1/02-07 6.50-6.90 (1)    10.0 4,724 1,170         -
1993 Various Improvements 1/1/02-09 5.38-6.90 (1)    10.0 2,788 1,075         -
1994 Various Improvements 1/1/95-04    6.90 (1)    10.0 0 0         -
1995 Various Improvements 1/1/95-05 6.35-6.90 (1)    10.0 3,336 365         -
1996 Various Improvements 1/1/97-06    6.90 (1)    10.0 327 67         -
1997 Various Improvements 1/1/98-07    6.90 (1)    10.0 327 64         -
1999 Various Improvements 1/1/00-09    6.90 (1)    10.0 278 138         -
2000 Various Improvements 1/1/01-10    6.90 (1)    10.0 274 164         -
2001 Various Improvements 1/1/02-11    6.90 (1)    10.0 174 121
2002 Various Improvements 1/1/03-12    6.90 (1)    10.0 268 215
2003 Various Improvements 1/1/04-13    6.90 (1)    10.0 136 122

Total Special Assessment Bonds 17,976 4,610         -
$ 5,604,078 $ 3,725,555 $ (11,331)

(8) Variable rate demand bonds.  The interest rate cannot exceed 18%.
(9) The City has pledged excise taxes on a subordinated junior lien basis as security; however, debt service requirements

on these obligations are paid from airport revenues.
(10) The City has pledged net airport revenues on a senior lien basis as security for these bonds.
(11) The City has pledged designated airport revenues as security.  This pledge is junior to the pledge of net airport

revenues for payment of the City's outstanding senior lien airport bonds.
(12) The City has made a junior lien pledge of Wastewater System revenues as security for these bonds. 
(13) Debt service requirements on these obligations are payable soley from certain federal grants received from the Federal 

Transit Adminsitration, as well as matching funds from the City. 
(14) The City has pledged excise taxes on a subordinated junior lien basis as security; however, debt service requirements

on these obligations are paid from Solid Waste revenues.
(15) The City has made a first priority pledge of a $4.50 per day car rental usage fee to be paid by rental car customers arriving

at Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport as security for the bonds. 

Unamortized

 



Notes to the Financial Statements  
(Continued)  
 

 G-56

 
 The City has complied with all significant financial covenants of its bonded indebtedness.  A brief 

description of the City’s long-term obligations follows. 
 
 General Obligation Bonds 
 As a general rule, the City has given priority to using general obligation bonds for capital programs of general 

government departments (non-enterprise departments).  These include fire, police, library, parks and 
recreation, mountain preserves, and storm sewers.  The annual debt service on these bonds is paid from 
secondary property taxes.  Under State law, the City’s secondary property tax levy can only be used for 
payment of principal and interest on long-term debt. 

 
 The City has also used general obligation bonds for airport, solid waste, sanitary sewer and water purposes, 

when deemed appropriate, with annual debt service on these bonds paid from the revenues of these 
enterprises, not from property taxes or other general revenues.  This has been the case with the water system 
since 1942, with airport operations since 1967, with the sanitary sewer system since 1981, and with solid waste 
operations since 1991. 

 
In March 2004, the City sold $200,000,000 in long-term fixed rate general obligation bonds.  The bond 
proceeds were used for various purpose projects.  The bonds have an average life of 16.3 years and were sold 
at a true interest cost of 4.22%.  
 
The City also refunded $50,410,000 of outstanding general obligation bonds with the issuance of $50,870,000 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004.  The refunding bonds were issued at a true interest cost of 
3.74% and produced present value debt service savings, net of transaction costs, of $3,263,317.   

 
 

 Revenue Bonds 
 In addition to general obligation bonds, under Arizona State law the City is authorized to issue voter-approved 

highway user revenue and utility revenue bonds, which in Phoenix’s case include water revenue and airport 
revenue bonds.  The water and airport revenue bonds are secured by a pledge of revenues from these 
enterprises, and do not constitute a general obligation of the City backed by general taxing authority.  The 
highway user revenue bonds are secured by State-shared gas taxes and other highway user fees and charges, 
and are also not a general obligation of the City. 

 
 The City has also issued a relatively small amount of public housing revenue bonds since 1974.  Debt service 

on these bonds is paid with housing assistance payments from the federal government and from tenant income 
derived from the operation of the various housing projects. 

  
 
 Certificates of Participation 
 The City has pledged excise taxes as security for the certificates of participation.  The pledge is subordinate to 

the pledge on all outstanding senior lien and junior lien excise tax obligations. 
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Municipal Corporation Obligations 

 The City has entered into certain agreements with the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation (the 
“CIC”) and the Phoenix Civic Plaza Building Corporation, affiliated nonprofit corporations, for the construction 
and acquisition of certain facilities and equipment.  Under the terms of these agreements, the corporations 
issued bonds or certificates of participation to finance the facilities, and the City agreed to make lease and 
purchase payments sufficient to pay principal and interest on the outstanding obligations.  The City also pays 
all expenses of operating and maintaining the facilities and equipment. 
 
In October 2003, the CIC issued $11,325,000 Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2003 to refund $10,000,000 of City of Phoenix Water System Revenue Bonds.  The refunding bonds were 
issued at a true interest cost of 4.53% and produced present value debt service savings, net of transaction 
costs, of $846,437.   
 
In May 2004, the CIC issued $260,000,000 Rental Car Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2004.  
Proceeds of the bonds will be used to pay the majority of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, and 
equipping certain facilities, infrastructure, site development and equipment necessary for the operation of a 
consolidated rental car center adjacent to Sky Harbor International Airport.  The bonds have an average life of 
16.5 years and were sold at a true interest cost of 6.20%.  
 
In June 2004, the CIC issued $22,000,000 Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004.  Proceeds 
of the bonds will be used to fund the acquisition of certain equipment and real property which have been 
acquired or are expected to be acquired and to fund the construction of certain improvements.  The bonds 
have an average life of 8.4 years and were sold at a true interest cost of 4.14%.   

 
The City also refunded $4,880,000 of outstanding subordinated excise tax revenue bonds, with the issuance of 
$5,700,000 Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004.  The refunding bonds were 
issued at a true interest cost of 4.89% and were issued to restructure bonds originally issued for the Golf 
Enterprise Fund.   
 
 
Special Assessment Bonds 

 Proceeds from special assessment bonds are used for improvements such as paving, sidewalks and sewers. 
Payments made by the assessed property owners are pledged to pay debt service on the bonds.  In the event 
of default by a property owner, the lien created by the assessment is sold at public auction and the proceeds 
are used to offset the defaulted assessment.  If there is no purchase at the public auction, the City is required to 
buy the property with funds appropriated from the General Fund. 
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 Debt Service Requirements 
 Debt service requirements, including principal, interest and reserve contributions are as follows (in 

thousands): 
 
 

City of Phoenix Bonds     
 Highway Total Total

Fiscal  General  User Housing  Airport Other Ob- Debt
Years  Obligation  Revenue Revenue  Revenue Totals ligations (1) Service

2005 $ 113,118 $ 26,406 $ 547 $ 6,489 $ 146,560 $ 192,367 $ 338,927
2006 110,427 31,246 542 6,492 148,707 186,779 335,486
2007 109,691 31,241 553 6,493 147,978 195,766 343,744
2008 118,310 31,245 543 6,488 156,586 197,501 354,087
2009 114,174 31,240 320 6,489 152,223 199,010 351,233

2010-14 473,961 106,492         - 21,512 601,965 984,143 1,586,108
2015-19 343,365             -         -            - 343,365 925,506 1,268,871
2020-24 182,988             -         -            - 182,988 736,127 919,115
2025-29 88,416             -         -            - 88,416 374,657 463,073
2030-34            -             -         -            -              - 69,385 69,385

1,654,450 257,870 2,505 53,963 1,968,788 4,061,241 6,030,029
Less:  Interest (534,956) (69,359) (360) (12,723) (617,398) (1,687,076) (2,304,474)

$ 1,119,494 $ 188,511 $ 2,145 $ 41,240 $ 1,351,390 $ 2,374,165 $ 3,725,555

Authorized $ 2,777,370 $ 457,456 $ 4,960 $ 95,490 $ 3,335,276

Unissued $ 464,107 $             - $         - $            - $ 464,107

Interest Rates on
Outstanding Bonds 2.8 - 7.4% 3.3 - 7.6% 5.2 - 6.3% 4.7 - 8.7%

(1)  Other obligations consist of the following (in thousands):

Certificates  Special Total
Fiscal of Muni. Assess. Other 
Years Participation Corp.  Bonds Obligations

2005 $ 3,763 $ 186,805 $ 1,799 $ 192,367
2006 1,874 183,538 1,367 186,779
2007 1,883 193,160 723 195,766
2008 1,889 194,893 719 197,501
2009 1,881 196,752 377 199,010

2010-14 9,407 974,521 215 984,143
2015-19 8,361 917,145         - 925,506
2020-24 2,889 733,238         - 736,127
2025-29            - 374,657         - 374,657
2030-34            - 69,385         - 69,385

31,947 4,024,094 5,200 4,061,241
Less:  Interest (11,492) (1,674,994) (590) (1,687,076)

$ 20,455 $ 2,349,100 $ 4,610 $ 2,374,165
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 Capital Leases 
 The City has entered into a lease agreement with an independent third-party for the purpose of acquiring 

structural improvements at Sky Harbor International Airport.  The leased assets totaled $4,332,000 at 
June 30, 2004.  Interest on the capital lease in the amount of $1,798,000 has been fully expensed and is 
included in the amount reported as a component of the capital leases obligation.  The following is a 
schedule of future minimum lease payments, as of June 30, 2004 (in thousands): 

 
Aviation

Years Ending Enterprise
June 30 Fund

 2005 $ 458
 2006 458
 2007 458
 2008 424

Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,798
Less:  Current Portion (458)

Future Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,340

 
 

 Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 
 The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund (“Solid Waste”) currently operates one landfill, the Skunk Creek Landfill, 

and monitors four additional closed landfills.  Federal and state regulations require that certain postclosure 
care costs be incurred to maintain and monitor closed landfills for thirty years after closure to mitigate and 
prevent future environmental damage. In addition, numerous costs are incurred in the process of closing a 
landfill.  These closure costs include the capping of the landfill with soil, installing such items as drainage 
and monitoring systems, and remediation of any environmental damage caused by the landfill.  These costs 
are estimated based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care for the landfills at 
June 30, 2004 and are subject to change due to inflation, technology changes and applicable legal or 
regulatory requirements. 

 
 Total closure and postclosure care costs for the Skunk Creek Landfill (which is still operating) are currently 

estimated to be $44,625,000, including $12,634,000 that has already been paid out and an estimated 
$31,991,000 that will be paid out in future years.  Of the unpaid amount, $28,472,000 has been recorded as 
a liability in the accompanying financial statements based on the use of approximately 89% of the estimated 
capacity of the landfill.  The accrual for these costs for fiscal 2003-04 was increased by $953,000.  The 
Skunk Creek Landfill is expected to be closed in the year 2005. 

 
 Total closure and postclosure care costs for the four closed landfills are currently estimated to be 

$55,033,000, including $49,404,000 that has already been paid out and an estimated $5,629,000 that will be 
paid out in future years as postclosure care efforts continue.  The entire unpaid amount has been reported 
as a liability in the accompanying financial statements.  The accrual for these costs was increased by 
$780,000 during fiscal 2003-04 in connection with these landfills. 

  
Of the liabilities discussed above, $2,227,000 is included in liabilities payable from restricted assets.   

 
Certain environmental remediation costs associated with one of the closed landfills are recoverable from 
third parties.  The City has recovered a total of $29,015,000 from third parties.  These recoveries are used to 
reduce remediation expense in the year the recovery is assured.  A total of $10,990,000 (which includes 
recoveries and applicable interest earnings) has been included in restricted assets on the Enterprise Fund 
balance sheet.  Any postclosure care costs not recovered from third parties will be funded from revenues of 
the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund.  
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10. Refunded and Refinanced Obligations 
 
 Future debt service on refunded bonds has been provided through advanced refunding bond issues 

whereby refunding bonds are issued and the net proceeds, plus any additional resources that may be 
required, are used to purchase securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government.  These 
securities are then deposited in an irrevocable trust under an escrow agreement which states that all 
proceeds from the trust will be used to fund the principal and interest payments of the previously issued 
debt being refunded.  The trust deposits have been computed so that the securities in the trust, along with 
future cash flows generated by the securities, will be sufficient to service the previously issued bonds. 

 
 During fiscal 2003-04, the City issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, and Junior Lien 

Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 to reduce the present value of future debt service 
payments.  These savings were available due to improved municipal bond market conditions (i.e., lower 
interest rates) during the year.  The City also issued Subordinated Junior Lien Excise Tax Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 to refinance and restructure a portion of debt of the Golf Enterprise Fund.  
The effects of the refundings and refinancings are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):  

 

Junior Lien  Subordinate
Water System Excise Tax

Revenue Revenue

Series 2004 2003 2004

Closing Date 04/01/04 10/21/03 06/22/04

Net Interest Rate 3.94% 4.47% 4.98%

Refunding Bonds Issued $ 50,870 $ 11,325 $ 5,700
Premium (Discount) 4,598 (309) 41
Issuance Costs and Insurance (105) (155) (174)

Net Proceeds $ 55,363 $ 10,861 $ 5,567

Refunded Amount $ 50,410 $ 1,000 $ 4,880

Decrease in Debt Service $ 3,487 $ 859 $ N/A

Economic Gain $ 3,263 $ 846 $ N/A

Number of Years Affected 16 19 22

General

Bonds
Obligation

Civic 
Improvement
CorporationCity of Phoenix
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The General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, refunded bonds issued for property tax supported 
projects as well as various enterprise supported projects.  The effect of the refunding on these various funds 
is as follows (in thousands):   

 
Decrease Number of
in Debt Economic Years

Fund Issue Service Gain Affected

Secondary Property Tax G.O. Refunding, Series 2004 $ 3,457 $ 2,964 16
Solid Waste G.O. Refunding, Series 2004 8 11 12
Wastewater System G.O. Refunding, Series 2004 6 7 12
Water System G.O. Refunding, Series 2004 16 281 16

$ 3,487 $ 3,263

 
 
The refunding discussed above resulted in the recognition of accounting gains and (losses) (the difference 
between the dollar amount required for the refunding and the net carrying amount of the refunded debt) of 
$165,000 in the Secondary Property Tax Fund, $30,000 in the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, ($15,000) in the 
Wastewater Enterprise Fund and ($580,000) in the Water System Enterprise Fund.  These accounting gains 
and losses are deferred and amortized (using the straight-line method) as a component of interest expense 
over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.  The deferred amounts 
are reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from or addition to the new debt 
liability.  
 
The deferred and amortized amounts of accounting losses on bond refundings (which are netted against 
outstanding bond obligations) at June 30, 2004, are summarized as follows (in thousands):  

 
 

Deferred Deferred
Amount Reductions due Amount
July 1 Additions to Refundings Amortization June 30

General Government
General Obligation $ 9,421    $ 3,317     $ -                         $ (923)       $ 11,815 
Revenue 8,779    -             -                         (1,203)    7,576   
Civic Improvement Corporation 2,005    -             -                         (80)         1,925   

$ 20,205  $ 3,317     $ -                         $ (2,206)    $ 21,316 
Enterprise Funds 

Aviation
General Obligation $ 2,006    $ -             $ -                         $ (193)       $ 1,813   
Civic Improvement Corporation 3,637    -             -                         (539)       3,098   

Golf 
Civic Improvement Corporation -            541        -                         -            541      

Water
General Obligation 3,849    279        -                         (495)       3,633   
Civic Improvement Corporation 7,735    950        -                         (472)       8,213   

Wastewater
General Obligation 2,892    95          -                         (478)       2,509   
Civic Improvement Corporation 25,043  -             -                         (1,246)    23,797 

Solid Waste
General Obligation 182       178        -                         (46)         314      

$ 45,344  $ 2,043     $ -                         $ (3,469)    $ 43,918 
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 Advanced refunding arrangements at June 30, 2004 were as follows (in thousands): 
 

Refunded Bonds Assets
Date Issue Balance Held in

Refunded Dates Type  Outstanding  Trust (1)
  05/07/86 03/01/81 - General Obligation

12/01/85 Aviation $ 21,075 $ 23,535

  03/04/92 05/15/86 - Junior Lien Street and
07/01/90 Highway User Revenue $ 13,355 $ 12,999

  12/16/92 03/15/87 - Junior Lien Street and
02/01/92 Highway User Revenue $ 7,750 $ 10,213

  04/27/93 12/01/78 - General Obligation
12/06/91 General Government $ 10,953

Water System 1,625
Sanitary Sewer 495

$ 13,073 $ 20,720

   02/28/96 01/01/90 - General Obligation
01/01/95 General Government $ 1,690

Solid Waste 250
$ 1,940 $ 2,509

06/10/98 06/15/96 Civic Improvement Corporation
Water System Revenue $ 102,385 $ 103,967

02/17/99 01/01/89 - General Obligation
01/30/96 General Government $ 30,545

Solid Waste 1,325
Water System 15,990

$ 47,860 $ 48,896
07/10/01 07/01/97 - Civic Improvement Corporation

06/01/00 Wastewater System Revenue $ 157,665 $ 165,188

08/30/01 01/01/94 - Civic Improvement Corporation
06/15/96 Water System Revenue $ 99,915 $ 104,923

06/05/02 02/01/92 - Junior Lien Street and
12/15/92 Highway User Revenue $ 2,500 $ 2,899

06/12/02 04/01/91 - General Obligation
07/15/00 General Government $ 65,690

Sanitary Sewer 2,310
Solid Waste 7,310

$ 75,310 $ 82,446
  06/11/03 11/01/95 General Obligation

General Government $ 7,815 $ 8,368

04/01/04 07/01/95 - General Obligation
06/01/02 General Government $ 42,185

Sanitary Sewer 745
Solid Waste 1,380
Water 6,100

$ 50,410 $ 54,289

(1) Assets held in trust for advanced refunded bonds reflect the market value of those assets.  
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11. Legal Debt Margin 
 
 As discussed in Note 3, secondary property taxes are used to finance bond principal and interest 

payments. Under Arizona law, general obligation bonds for water, sewer, artificial light, open space 
preserves, parks, playgrounds and recreational facilities may not exceed 20% of a city’s secondary 
assessed valuation. General obligation bonds for all other purposes may not exceed 6% of the secondary 
assessed valuation. The total debt margin available at July 1, 2004 was as follows (in thousands): 

 
 

  

Six Percent Bonds $ 529,028
Twenty Percent Bonds 1,354,731

$ 1,883,759

 
 
 
12. Risk Management 
 
 The City maintained a $7,500,000 self-insured retention during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, for 

most public liability exposures.  Losses exceeding that amount are covered by commercial insurance. 
Effective July 1, 2003, the self-insured retention amount was decreased to $5,000,000 for transit operations 
but remained at $7,500,000 for other city operations.  Airport and aircraft liability exposures, as well as 
other specialty liability exposures, are fully insured through the purchase of commercial insurance.  For the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, workers’ compensation claims for Phoenix Transit employees were self-
insured up to a $350,000 self-insured retention, and commercial insurance is purchased for losses 
exceeding that amount.  The self-insured retention remains the same for the year beginning July 1, 2004.   
 
Unemployment and long-term disability benefits are fully self-insured.  Beginning April 1, 2003, the City’s 
workers’ compensation program became self-insured.  Excess workers’ compensation insurance is 
purchased above a $15,000,000 self-insured retention.  Employee medical and dental benefits are insured 
by a commercial health insurance provider through a loss sensitive, minimum premium funding 
arrangement.  Claims are reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements when it is 
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated.  This 
determination is based on reported pending claims, estimates of claims incurred but not reported, and 
actuarial analyses of the total value of outstanding claims and claim related expenses.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2004, there were no reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year.  Settled claims have 
not exceeded insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years. 

 
 The City reports its self-insurance activities in the General Fund, the Transit Special Revenue Fund (for 

transit related claims only) and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets, with the other funds 
reimbursing the General Fund for their share of the cost of the City’s self-insurance program.  At June 30, 
2004, claims payable totaled $167.4 million.  Changes in this liability for the last two fiscal years follow (in 
thousands): 

 

   

Year Ended June 30
2004 2003

Claims Payable, July 1 $ 194,100 $ 160,713
Current Year Claims and Changes

in Estimates 146,899 163,933
Claim Payments (173,546) (130,546)

Claims Payable, June 30 $ 167,453 $ 194,100
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Claims that are expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources are accounted for in the 
General Fund.  All other claims are accounted for in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.  These 
balances were as follows (in thousands): 

 
 

   

June 30
2004 2003

Amounts due within one year $ 55,434 $ 78,495
Amounts due in more than one year 112,019 115,605

$ 167,453 $ 194,100

 
 

In addition, assets of $172,812,102 and $4,328,665 are held in the General Fund and Transit Special 
Revenue Fund, respectively, at June 30, 2004 for purposes of funding the claims liability reported in the 
Government Wide Statement of Net Assets.  As a result, $172,812,102 of the General Fund balance and 
4,328,665 of the Transit Special Revenue Fund balance are designated for payment of claims. 

 
13. Operating Leases 
 
 The City’s public housing program leases housing facilities that are, in turn, subleased to low income and 

elderly tenants.  These lease obligations are subsidized by the federal government.  Total rental expense 
for these leases was $37,111,663 and $34,292,244 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively.  In addition, $3,139,700 was paid during fiscal year 2002-04 on contracts, which the Housing 
Department administers for HUD. 

 
 The City also leases certain airport facilities to third parties.  Minimum future rentals on non-cancelable 

operating leases at June 30, 2004 were as follows (in thousands): 
 

      

Years Ending
June 30

2005 $ 26,314
2006 16,214
2007 15,725
2008 14,966
2009 7,725

2010-2014 172,973
$ 253,917

 
 
 The above amounts do not include contingent rentals, which also may be received under the airport 

facilities leases, primarily as a percentage of sales in excess of stipulated minimums.  Contingent rentals 
amounted to $19,859,985 and $17,431,903 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively.  A summary of the assets leased to third parties under the airport operating lease agreements 
at June 30, 2004 is as follows (in thousands): 

 

     

Buildings $ 497,128
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (255,740)

$ 241,388
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14. Contractual and Other Commitments 
 
 Public Transit 
 The City provides public transit service through the following private contractors: ATC/VANCOM 

Management Services Inc., Laidlaw Transit Services, and Arnett Transportation Services.  In addition, the 
City purchases fixed route bus service from the Regional Public Transportation Authority. The services 
provided by these contractors, the expiration dates of the current agreements and the estimated contract 
amount to be provided by the City through June 30, 2005 are as follows (in thousands): 

 
 

Expiration Estimated
Contractor Type of Service Date Annual Subsidy

Laidlaw Transit Services Bus Service June 30, 2006 $ 11,521

MV Transportation Services Dial-a-Ride June 30, 2006 9,347

Arnett Transportation Svcs. Downtown Area Shuttle June 30, 2005 584

ATC/VANCOM Management
Services, Inc. Bus Service June 30, 2007 66,032

Regional Public
Transportation Authority Bus Service June 30, 2004 4,902

MV Transportation Services ALEX June 30, 2006 882

$ 93,268

 
 

 
   
 Approximately 9.1% of the total net transit costs will be reimbursed to the City by adjacent communities and 

the RPTA.  In addition, the City will apply for funding to support daily operations from the Department of 
Transportation, Federal Transit Administration.  This grant is expected to fund approximately 6.2% of the 
total transit costs for fiscal 2004-05.  The City has been the designated recipient for these grants since 
1975. 

 
 Plan Six Funding Agreements 
 The Plan Six Funding Agreement provides for a cost sharing arrangement to ensure timely completion of 

the Plan Six facilities of the Central Arizona Project.  These facilities include the new Waddell Dam on the 
Agua Fria River and modifications of the Roosevelt and Stewart Mountain dams on the Salt River.  The 
parties to this agreement include the United States government, the State of Arizona, the Central Arizona 
Water Conservation District, Maricopa County Flood Control District, the Salt River Project, and the cities of 
Phoenix, Chandler, Glendale, Mesa, Scottsdale, Tempe and Tucson.  The Plan Six Funding Agreement 
does not constitute a joint venture as cost sharing projects are not considered joint ventures as the 
participating governments do not retain an on-going financial interest or responsibility in the project, in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity”.   

 
 Deposited funds from prior fiscal years are held in the State Treasurer’s trust for Plan Six and, as 

disbursements are made from this fund, the City records an asset (water rights).  Upon completion, the City 
will amortize this asset over a 40-year life.  No further contributions are required. 
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 Other Contracts 
 The City’s enterprise funds have entered into construction contracts having remaining commitments at 

June 30, 2004 as follows (in thousands): 
 

   

Aviation $ 324,476
Phoenix Civic Plaza 123,736
Water System 98,311
Wastewater 140,311
Solid Waste 22,652

$ 709,486

 
 These commitments have not been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.  Only the currently 

payable portions of these contracts have been included in accounts payable in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

 
 
15. Contingent Liabilities 
 
 Pending Litigation 
 The City is contingently liable in respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the ordinary course of its 

operations.  As discussed in Note 12, the City is primarily self-insured, and has accrued a liability for 
estimated claims outstanding.  As with any risk retention program, however, the City is contingently liable in 
respect to claims beyond those currently accrued.  In the opinion of City management, based on the advice 
of the City Attorney, the outcome of such claims will not have a material adverse effect on the City’s 
financial position, results of operations or liquidity at June 30, 2004. 

 
 Public Housing Notes Payable 
 Excluded from the City’s long-term obligations in the accompanying financial statements are Public 

Housing Notes Payable.  These obligations were incurred in connection with the City’s public housing 
activities, but are entirely supported by the federal government.  The City would be obligated to pay the 
debt service on these bonds only in the event of default by the federal government.  The outstanding 
balances on these notes at June 30, 2004 were $931,202. 

 
 Sick Leave 
 Sick leave is continuously accumulated at the rate of 15 days per year but can only be taken in the event of 

illness.  With the exception of police, firefighters, and supervisory, professional, middle management and 
executive employees, sick leave is not convertible to a cash benefit.  However, upon retirement, for every 
173 hours of unused sick leave, one month of creditable service is allowed in determining a General 
Employee Retirement Plan pension.  A balance of over 80 hours after making the above calculation will 
allow an extra month of creditable service.  The dollar amount of any cash payment as described below is 
included in the final average compensation, but the hours used are excluded from credited service. 

 
 Police who have accumulated 900 qualifying hours or more of unused sick leave at the time of normal 

service retirement are eligible to receive a payment equal to 35% or more (depending on the number of 
qualifying hours) of their base hourly rate for hours in excess of 450 hours.  Police also have the option of 
monthly conversion of sick leave accrual to pay as salary for a minimum of three years and maximum of six 
years if they have at least 1,714 unused hours.   

 
 Firefighters who have accumulated 900 qualifying hours or more of unused sick leave at the time of normal 

service retirement (1,260 qualifying hours or more for employees not on a 40 hour per week work schedule) 
are eligible to receive a payment equal to 35% or more (depending on the number of qualifying hours) of 
their base hourly rate for hours in excess of 450 hours (630 hours for employees not on a 40 hour per week 
work schedule).  Firefighters also have the option of monthly conversion of sick leave accrual to pay as 
salary for a minimum of three years and maximum of six years.  Firefighters must have 17 years of service 
and at least 2,400 unused hours for 56-hour employees or the 40-hour employee equivalent.  
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Supervisory and Professional, Middle Management, Executive, Confidential Office and Clerical, Field Unit 
1, Field Unit 2, and Office and Clerical employees who have accumulated 750 qualifying hours or more of 
unused sick leave at the time of normal service retirement are eligible to receive a payment equal to their 
base hourly rate for 25% of the hours in excess of 250 hours.   
 

 Sick leave is accrued as a liability as it is earned by the employees only if the leave is attributable to past 
service and it is probable that the employees will be compensated through cash payments conditioned on 
the employees’ termination or retirement.  In accordance with these criteria, a portion of the sick leave 
accumulated by police, firefighters, and general employees as described above has been accrued as a 
liability in the accompanying financial statements. The June 30, 2004, actuarial valuation of the sick leave 
liability was based on the termination method, with the liability pro-rated based on the current service of a 
participant.  The projected sick leave benefit payment under the termination method is calculated as the 
maximum sick leave hours eligible for payment multiplied by the probability of an individual employee 
reaching retirement multiplied by the employee’s projected salary at first eligibility for retirement pro-rated 
based on the employee’s current service to date over the projected service to retirement increased by the 
cost of salary-related fringe benefits. 

 
The sick leave benefit balances (both accrued and unaccrued) at June 30 were as follows (in thousands): 

 

    

June 30
2004 2003

General $ 136,026 $ 129,733
Police 100,698 42,140
Fire 43,524 95,835

280,248 267,708
Less:  Amounts Accrued 
   as a Liability (90,208) (91,026)

$ 190,040 $ 176,682

 
Liabilities Under Grants 

 The City participates in a number of federal and state-assisted grant programs.  The audits of these 
programs for earlier years and the year ended June 30, 2004 have not been completed in all cases; 
accordingly, final determination of the City’s compliance with applicable grant requirements will be 
established at some future date.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies cannot be determined at this time; although City management believes any such claims 
would be immaterial to the City’s financial position at June 30, 2004. 

 
16. Joint Use Agreements 
 

Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMRI) 
 

 The City currently participates with the cities of Tempe, Mesa, and Glendale in a joint powers agreement for 
the design, construction and operation of a light rail transit system.  The Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMRI) is 
the management agency that was incorporated to administer the joint powers agreement between the 
cities.  The VMRI has oversight responsibility for the planning, designing, construction and operation of a 
regional mass transit light rail system.  The agreement provides voting rights for members of the 
representative cities related to strategic initiatives including passage of an annual budget.   

 
 The City has an ongoing financial responsibility as a result of the joint powers agreement to participate in 

the cost to construct and operate the light rail project less any Federal reimbursements and operating fares.  
The City’s share of costs is determined based on the number of rail mileage located within each City, plus 
dedicated local costs.  VMRI does not report any allocated equity interest for any participating city at this 
time.  Therefore, the City does not have an equity interest at June 30, 2004.   

 
 Separate financial statements may be obtained from Valley Metro Rail, Inc., 411 N. Central Avenue, Suite 

200, Phoenix, Arizona  85004.   
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Wastewater 
 

 Phoenix participates with the cities of Glendale, Mesa, Scottsdale and Tempe in the Subregional Operating 
Group (“SROG”) Agreement for the construction, operation and maintenance of jointly used facilities, 
including the 91st Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant, the Salt River Outfall Sewer, the Southern Avenue 
Interceptor and related transportation facilities.  As lead agency, the City of Phoenix is responsible for the 
planning, budgeting, construction, operation and maintenance of the plant.  Phoenix provides all 
management personnel and financing arrangements and accepts federal grants on behalf of the 
participants.  The other participants pay for costs of operation and maintenance based on sewage flows 
and strengths, and for purchased capacity in plant and related transportation facilities based on approved 
engineering billing schedules. 

 
 The City of Phoenix holds title to the land comprising the plant site and rights of way.  The City’s investment 

under the joint use agreement is included in the Wastewater Enterprise Fund financial statements as part of 
the total wastewater system.  The SROG members participate in each facility at varying rates depending on 
their needs at the time each facility was constructed.  The system has no bonded debt outstanding. 
Summary financial information on the joint use agreement as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2004 and 2003 is provided below (in thousands). 

 
 

   

June 30
2004 2003

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 36,331 $ 40,978
Receivables 26,218 21,607
Inventories, at average cost 705 680
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 542,472 455,450

Total Assets 605,726 518,715

Liabilities (52,147) (50,872)

Net Assets $ 553,579 $ 467,843

Total Revenues $ 134,475 $ 102,136
Total Expenses (48,739) (45,449)

Increase in Net Assets $ 85,736 $ 56,687

 
  
 
 Separate financial statements for the activity under the joint use agreement can be obtained through the 

AMWUA office at 4041 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012. 
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Water 
 
Phoenix participates with the City of Mesa in the Val Vista Water Treatment Plant and Transmission Line 
agreement for the construction, operation and maintenance of the jointly used facilities.  As lead agency, 
the City of Phoenix is responsible for the planning, budgeting, construction, operation and maintenance of 
the Plant.  Phoenix provides all management personnel and financing arrangements.  The City of Mesa 
pays for costs of operation and maintenance based on flows and purchased capacity, and for purchased 
capacity in the Plant and related transmission line based on approved engineering billing schedules. 
 
The City’s investment under the joint use agreement is included in the Water Enterprise Fund financial 
statements as part of the total water system.  The plant has no bonded debt outstanding.  Summary 
financial information on the joint use agreement as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and 
2003 is provided below (in thousands). 

 
 
 
 
 

   

June 30
2004 2003

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,601 $ 2,149
Receivables 4,759 2,554
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 160,436 155,457

Total Assets 166,796 160,160

Liabilities (3,544) (2,152)

Net Assets $ 163,252 $ 158,008

Total Revenues $ 26,034 $ 18,328
Total Expenses (20,990) (18,467)

Increase (decrease) in Net Assets $ 5,044 $ (139)

 
 
Separate financial statements for the activity under the joint use agreement can be obtained through the 
City of Phoenix, Finance Department, Utilities Accounting Division, 305 W. Washington Street, Phoenix, 
Arizona 85003. 
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17. Pension Plans 
 
 Plan Descriptions 
 Substantially all full-time employees and elected officials of the City are covered by one of three 

contributory pension plans.  In addition to normal retirement benefits, all of the plans also provide for 
disability and survivor benefits, as well as deferred pensions for former employees.  Pension benefits vest 
after five years for general City employees and elected officials and after ten years for public safety 
employees. 

 
 The City of Phoenix Employees’ Retirement Plan (“COPERS”) is a single-employer defined benefit pension 

plan for all full-time classified civil service general City employees.  Members are eligible for retirement 
benefits upon meeting one of the following age and service requirements: 

 
  1. Age 60 years, with ten or more years of credited service. 
 
  2. Age 62 years, with five or more years of credited service. 
 
  3. Any age, which added to years of credited service equals 80 (Rule of 80). 
 

The Plan is authorized by and administered in accordance with Chapter XXIV of the Charter of the City of 
Phoenix.  Authority to make amendments to the plan rests with City voters.  The Plan is administered by a 
nine-member Retirement Board.  COPERS has been included as part of the City’s reporting entity as a 
pension trust fund.  Copies of the separately issued COPERS financial report, which includes financial 
statements and required supplemental information, may be obtained from COPERS, Barrister Place, 101 
South Central Avenue, Suite 600, Phoenix, Arizona 85004. 

 
 The Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (“APSPRS”) is an agent multiple-employer 

defined benefit pension plan for all sworn police officers and fire fighters.  Members are eligible for normal 
retirement benefits after 20 years of service or at age 62 with completion of 15 years of service.  It is 
authorized by and administered in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4, 
Section 38.841-855.  Authority to make amendments rests with the Arizona State Legislature.  The Plan is 
administered by local boards consisting of the City Mayor, two members elected by employees and two 
citizens appointed by the mayor and approved by the City Council.  The same board administers both the 
Fire Fighters and Police pension plans for the City. 

 
 The Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan of Arizona (“EORPA”) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 

benefit pension plan for all elected officials of the City.  Members are eligible for retirement benefits upon 
meeting one of the following age and service requirements: 

 
  1. Age 60 years, with 25 or more years of credited service. 
 
  2. Age 62 years, with ten or more years of credited service. 
 
  3. Age 65 years, with five or more years of credited service. 
 
  4. Age 50 years, with ten or more years of credited service (reduced pension). 
 
 
 Benefits are based on 4% of the member’s final annual salary multiplied by the years of credited service. 

The maximum is 80% of the member’s final annual salary.  Benefits for early retirees (option 4 above) are 
reduced by 3/12 of 1% for each month that early retirement precedes age 65.  EORPA is authorized by and 
administered in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 3, Section 802 as 
amended.  The authority to make amendments rests with the Arizona State Legislature.  The Plan is 
administered by the Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System. 

 
 Copies of the publicly available financial reports for the APSPRS and EORPA may be obtained from 

Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, 1020 East Missouri, Phoenix, Arizona 85014-2613. 
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Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost (Unaudited) 

 The City contributes an actuarially determined amount to COPERS to fully fund benefits for active members 
and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liability as a level percent of projected member payroll over an open 
period of 20 years from July 1, 2004.  The employee contribution rate is 5% of compensation. 

 
In addition to funding the plan for benefits, the City pays the administrative costs of the plan as a City 
expense.  Investment expenses are paid by the plan from investment earnings. 
 
Contribution rates for APSPRS are specified by State statute, with a 7.65% employee share and an 
employer’s share equal to a level percent of compensation to fund normal cost and unfunded accrued 
liability over an open period of 20 years from July 1, 2004.  Optionally, the employer may increase its 
contributions in order to lower the employees’ share. 

 
 Contribution rates for EORPA are specified by State statute, with a 7% employee share and an employer’s 

share equal to a level percent of compensation to fund normal cost and unfunded accrued liability over an 
open period of 20 years from July 1, 2004. 

 
The City’s annual pension costs for the current year and related information for each plan is as follows: 
 
 

 

APSPRS
  COPERS Police Fire   EORPA 

Contribution Rates:
City 9.17% 6.43% 6.59% 13.49%
Plan Members 5.00% 7.65% 7.65% 7.00%

Annual Pension Costs
(thousands) (1) 39,564$     11,059$     5,714$        57$         

Contributions Made
(thousands) 39,564$     11,059$     5,714$        57$         

Actuarial Valuation Date 6/30/04 6/30/03 6/30/03 6/30/03

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age, Entry Age, Entry Age, Entry Age,
Normal Normal Normal Normal

Cost Cost Cost Cost

Amortization Method Level Level Level Level
Percentage Percentage Percentage Percentage
of Payroll, of Payroll, of Payroll, of Payroll,

Open Open Open Open

Remaining Amortization Period 20 years 20 years 20 years 20 years

Asset Valuation Method 4-year 4-year 4-year 4-year
smoothed smoothed smoothed smoothed

market market market market

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 8.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0%
Projected Salary Increases * 5.0 - 9.0% 6.5 - 9.5% 6.5 - 9.5% 7.0%

* Includes Inflation at 4.5% 5.5% 5.5% 5.5%

Cost-of-Living Adjustments - - - -

(1) A fire premium tax levied by the State is credited toward the City's contribution.  This amount reported
above is before the fire premium tax credit allowance.  
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Three-year trend information follows: 

 

   

Contributions Required and Contributions Made
Fiscal Annual Percentage   Net 
Year Pension Of APC   Pension

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed   Obligation

General City 6/30/04 $ 39,563,747 100 % N/A
   Employees 6/30/03 27,819,507 100 N/A

6/30/02 28,294,889 100 N/A

Public Safety 6/30/04 $ 11,059,483 100 % N/A
   Employees - Police 6/30/03 4,351,071 100 N/A

6/30/02 3,264,728 100 N/A

Public Safety 6/30/04 $ 5,713,553    100 % N/A
   Employees - Fire 6/30/03 2,885,365    100 N/A

6/30/02 -               100 N/A

Elected Officials 6/30/04 $ 57,496 100 % N/A
6/30/03 26,575 100 N/A
6/30/02 24,015 100 N/A  

 
 
 
 

 

Schedule of Funding Progress (in thousands)
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a

Funding Liability Unfunded Annual Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Percent Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Funded Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b - a) (a/b) (c) (b - a)/(c)

General City 6/30/04 $ 1,417,774 $ 1,684,795 $ 267,021 84.2 % $ 445,348 60.0 %
   Employees 6/30/03 1,330,584 1,504,125 173,541 88.5 416,472 41.7

6/30/02 1,273,731 1,390,273 116,542 91.6 404,414 28.8

Public Safety 6/30/04 $ (1) $ (1) $ (1) (1) % $ (1) (1) %
   Employees - Police 6/30/03 1,087,091 1,087,407 316 100.0 163,889 0.2

6/30/02 1,075,571 938,886 (136,685) 114.6 161,091 N/A

Public Safety 6/30/04 $ (1) $ (1) $ (1) (1) % $ (1) (1) %
   Employees - Fire 6/30/03 631,030 623,043 (7,987) 101.3 84,662 N/A

6/30/02 616,332 537,155 (79,177) 114.7 86,243 N/A

(1) Information not available  
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18. Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
 The City offers its employees a Deferred Compensation Plan (“Plan”) created in accordance with Internal 

Revenue Code Section 457.  The plan permits the employees to defer a portion of their salaries until future 
years.  The amount deferred is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or 
unforeseeable emergency.  

 
 A 1996 federal law requires all assets and income of Internal Revenue code Section 457 deferred 

compensation plans to be held in trust, custodial accounts, or annuity contracts for the exclusive benefit of 
the participants and their beneficiaries.  On September 23, 1998, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 
S-25613 which amended the City’s Plan to comply with the 1996 federal law.  The Ordinance establishes a 
trust into which all assets of the Plan were transferred December 4, 1998.  The Plan was administered by 
the International City Management Association Retirement Corporation (“ICMA-RC”) from December 4, 
1998 through April 6, 2004.  Beginning April 7, 2004, Nationwide Investment Services Corporation became 
the Plan administrator.   

 
19. Postemployment Health and Life Insurance Benefits 
 
 In accordance with the compensation plan adopted by the City Council each fiscal year, the City offers 

continuation of group medical and conversion of group life insurance to retirees or to those on long-term 
disability benefits.  At June 30, 2004, approximately 4,728 former employees were eligible for these 
benefits.  If converted, the life insurance premium must be paid in full by the retiree, but the City continues 
to contribute toward the medical insurance premium.  Continuation of the City’s contribution towards 
medical coverage is dependent on the annual budget authorization by the City Council. 

 
 Medical insurance benefits are the same as those offered to active employees and include hospital, doctor 

and prescription drug charges.  Retirees may choose single or family coverage.  The City contribution to 
the medical insurance varies with length of service, from $117 per month for retirees with less than five 
years of active credited service to $202 per month for retirees with 25 or more years of active credited 
service.  

 
 General retirees who were supervisory level or above and who retired before July 1, 1996, with 500 hours 

or more of unused sick leave were eligible for an additional City contribution of $20 per month.  Police and 
Fire retirees who were supervisors or above, and who retired between August 1979 and July 1984 with 
1,000 hours or more of sick leave, were eligible for an additional City contribution of $30 per month.  
Beginning August 1, 1998, all general retirees in the Supervisory, Professional, Middle Manager, Executive 
and City Manager categories may have an additional $100 monthly benefit added to their medical insurance 
contribution if they meet the following conditions: a) they enroll in the City’s medical insurance; b) they 
enroll for family coverage; c) no one in the family is eligible for Medicare; and d) the retiree is under the age 
of 65. 

 
 The total medical insurance premium is collected from retirees monthly.  The City provides a pay-as-you-go 

contribution.  The cost to the City for retiree medical insurance for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and 
2003 was $9,844,324and $9,280,498, respectively.  All eligible retirees receive the City’s medical insurance 
contribution in cash.  This medical insurance contribution is tax free when used for eligible health-related 
expenses during the calendar year in which it is received.  If all the tax-free medical insurance contribution 
is not used for health-related expenses, the money must be returned to the City. 

 
 The City offers a flexible medical insurance plan which provides the services of a staff model type of health 

maintenance organization (“HMO”), an independent practice association type of health maintenance 
organization (“IPA”), a preferred provider network (“PPO”) and an indemnity plan.  Coverage is provided for 
retirees, covered surviving dependents and other eligible dependents.  If a retiree with family coverage 
dies, coverage for dependents may be continued.  The length of coverage is dependent upon the survivor’s 
pension.  The City’s contribution for surviving dependents is the same as for a retiree except that it does 
not include the sick leave conversion benefit. 
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  Long-term disability benefits are available to all regular, benefit-eligible employees who meet certain age 
requirements and have been employed by the City for at least 12 consecutive months.  Employees 
receiving long-term disability benefits are entitled to continuation of group medical, dental and life insurance 
for a specified period.  The cost of these benefits for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 was 
approximately $313,000 and $379,000, respectively.  The City funds this cost on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

 
20. Subsequent Events  
 

Bond Issuances  
 

  On July 1, 2004, the City of Phoenix issued $27,775,000 in Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 
17 relating to the Arizona Municipal Financing Program of 1992.  These bonds were issued at a true 
interest cost of 4.125% and were delivered on July 21, 2004.  

 
 On July 1, 2004, the City of Phoenix issued $35,465,000 in Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 

18 relating to the Arizona Municipal Financing Program of 1992.  These bonds were issued at a true 
interest cost of 4.707% and were delivered on July 21, 2004.  

 
 On December 10, 2004, the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation issued $500 million Transit 

Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004.  These bonds were issued at a true interest cost of 4.087% and 
were delivered on December 10, 2004.  
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Cable Highway Local Trans-
Communi- User portation Municipal

cations Revenue Assistance Transit Court
ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ -             $ 64,731       $ -             $ 155,149     $ 7,459         
Cash Deposits 60              293            -             -             -             
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents/Trustees -             -             -             -             -             
Investments -             -             -             -             -             
Due from Other Funds -             -             -             -             -             
Receivables, Net of Allowance

Accounts Receivable 1,980         -             -             310            -             
Taxes Receivable -             -             -             -             -             
Delinquent Taxes Receivable -             -             -             -             -             
Intergovernmental -             9,675         -             8,965         5                
Accrued Interest -             -             -             -             -             
Notes Receivable -             -             -             -             -             

Prepaid Items -             -             -             -             -             
Inventories -             1,103         -             1,660         -             

Total Assets $ 2,040         $ 75,802       $ -             $ 166,084     $ 7,464         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Due to Other Funds $ 1,920         $ -             $ -             $ -             $ -             
Warrants and Accounts Payable 25              4,276         -             11,521       531            
Trust Liabilities and Deposits 60              3,633         -             -             805            
Matured Bonds Payable -             -             -             -             -             
Interest Payable -             -             -             -             -             
Deferred Revenue -             -             -             17              -             

Total Liabilities 2,005         7,909         -             11,538       1,336         

Fund Balances
Reserved

Encumbrances 42              26,095       -             8,250         519            
Debt Service -             -             -             8,355         -             
Inventories -             1,103         -             1,660         -             
Prepaid Items -             -             -             -             -             

Unreserved
Designated for Insurance Claims -             -             -             4,329         -             
Designated for Unrealized Gain on Investments -             359            4                947            42              
Undesignated (7)               40,336       (4)               131,005     5,567         

Total Fund Balances 35              67,893       -             154,546     6,128         
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,040         $ 75,802       $ -             $ 166,084     $ 7,464         

Special Revenue Funds
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(Continued)

Parks Develop-
and ment Public Sports Capital Other

Library Recreation Services Grants Housing Facilities Construction Restricted Total

$ 1,164         $ 39,834       $ 109,217     $ -             $ -             $ 11,467       $ 27,693       $ 5,923         $ 422,637     
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             353            
-             -             -             86              2,661         43              -             -             2,790         
-             -             -             -             45,007       -             -             -             45,007       
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             

-             21              3,646         1,041         827            -             10              -             7,835         
-             93              -             -             -             -             -             -             93              
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             
-             9                20              18,430       8,683         -             -             -             45,787       
-             -             -             -             186            -             -             -             186            
-             -             -             -             15,104       -             -             -             15,104       
-             14              -             -             3,107         -             -             3,121         
153            345            -             -             66              -             -             -             3,327         

$ 1,317         $ 40,316       $ 112,883     $ 19,557       $ 75,641       $ 11,510       $ 27,703       $ 5,923         $ 546,240     

$ -             $ -             $ -             $ 4,099         $ 20,318       $ -             $ -             $ -             $ 26,337       
836            2,161         1,941         4,812         3,684         1                3,053         146            32,987       
(18)             2                3,739         3,110         18,702       -             -             29              30,062       
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             
-             2                5,640         7,536         11              -             -             -             13,206       
818            2,165         11,320       19,557       42,715       1                3,053         175            102,592     

452            4,936         2,911         5,171         804            684            9,135         186            59,185       
-             2,089         -             -             -             875            1,605         -             12,924       
153            345            -             -             66              -             -             -             3,327         
-             14              -             -             3,107         -             -             -             3,121         

-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             4,329         
13              338            699            -             -             60              160            23              2,645         

(119)           30,429       97,953       (5,171)        28,949       9,890         13,750       5,539         358,117     
499            38,151       101,563     -             32,926       11,509       24,650       5,748         443,648     

$ 1,317         $ 40,316       $ 112,883     $ 19,557       $ 75,641       $ 11,510       $ 27,703       $ 5,923         $ 546,240     

Special Revenue Funds
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)
Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Parks,
Street Police Recreation

Improve- and Fire Storm and Public
ments Protection Sewers Libraries Housing

ASSETS 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ -             $ -             $ -             $ -             $ -             
Cash Deposits -             -             -             -             -             
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents/Trustees -             -             -             -             -             
Investments 9,592         35,739       17,212       15,420       12,229       
Due from Other Funds -             -             4,809         -             -             
Receivables, Net of Allowance

Accounts Receivable 88              -             2                1                -             
Taxes Receivable -             -             -             -             -             
Delinquent Taxes Receivable -             -             -             -             -             
Intergovernmental 1,099         20              -             -             602            
Accrued Interest -             -             -             -             -             
Notes Receivable -             -             -             -             -             

Prepaid Items -             -             -             -             -             
Inventories -             -             -             -             -             

Total Assets $ 10,779       $ 35,759       $ 22,023       $ 15,421       $ 12,831       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Due to Other Funds $ 11,346       $ 21,318       $ -             $ 2,884         $ 11,764       
Warrants and Accounts Payable 2,313         8,172         1,266         2,278         296            
Trust Liabilities and Deposits -             -             -             723            2                
Matured Bonds Payable -             -             -             -             -             
Interest Payable -             -             -             -             -             
Deferred Revenue -             -             -             -             -             

Total Liabilities 13,659       29,490       1,266         5,885         12,062       

Fund Balances
Reserved

Encumbrances 9,891         20,788       4,697         13,178       7,693         
Debt Service -             -             -             -             -             
Inventories -             -             -             -             -             
Prepaid Items -             -             -             -             -             

Unreserved
Designated for Insurance Claims -             -             -             -             -             
Designated for Unrealized Gain on Investments 6                15              26              7                6                
Undesignated (12,777)      (14,534)      16,034       (3,649)        (6,930)        

Total Fund Balances (2,880)        6,269         20,757       9,536         769            
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 10,779       $ 35,759       $ 22,023       $ 15,421       $ 12,831       

Capital Projects Funds
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(Continued)

General
Municipal Sports Obligation/
Buildings and Secondary Streets City

and Service Cultural Property and Public Improve-
Centers Transit Facilities Total Tax Highways Housing ment

$ -             $ -             $ -             $ -             $ 33,002       $ 20              $ -             $ 1,941         
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             51,297       23,550       -             16,125       

95,593       515            34,012       220,312     253,775     -             -             2,326         
-             -             -             4,809         -             -             -             -             

35              1                -             127            -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             1,997         -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             2,606         -             -             -             
-             16,708       -             18,429       -             -             -             -             
365            -             -             365            1,004         -             -             47              

1,000         -             -             1,000         -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             

$ 96,993       $ 17,224       $ 34,012       $ 245,042     $ 343,681     $ 23,570       $ -             $ 20,439       

$ 3,619         $ 45,647       $ 37,834       $ 134,412     $ -             $ -             $ -             $ -             
1,505         7,369         8,757         31,956       13              -             -             1,790         

-             -             -             725            -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             31,965       18,805       -             7,947         
-             -             -             -             19,332       4,745         -             8,178         

1,000         -             -             1,000         2,606         -             -             -             
6,124         53,016       46,591       168,093     53,916       23,550       -             17,915       

6,742         61,742       29,967       154,698     -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             289,265     (123)           -             2,277         
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             
-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             

-             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             
5                -             17              82              500            143            -             247            

84,122       (97,534)      (42,563)      (77,831)      -             -             -             -             
90,869       (35,792)      (12,579)      76,949       289,765     20              -             2,524         

$ 96,993       $ 17,224       $ 34,012       $ 245,042     343,681     $ 23,570       $ -             $ 20,439       

Capital Projects Funds Debt Service Funds
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)
Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Special
Assess-

ment Total 2004 2003
ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,582         $ 36,545       $ 459,182     $ 388,386     
Cash Deposits -             -             353            243            
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents/Trustees 147            91,119       93,909       76,591       
Investments -             256,101     521,420     433,801     
Due from Other Funds -             -             4,809         9,704         
Receivables, Net of Allowance

Accounts Receivable 4,087         4,087         12,049       15,151       
Taxes Receivable -             1,997         2,090         1,937         
Delinquent Taxes Receivable -             2,606         2,606         2,393         
Intergovernmental -             -             64,216       47,639       
Accrued Interest 16              1,067         1,618         1,111         
Notes Receivable -             -             16,104       13,234       

Prepaid Items -             -             3,121         2,780         
Inventories -             -             3,327         3,693         

Total Assets $ 5,832         $ 393,522     $ 1,184,804  $ 996,663     

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Due to Other Funds $ -             $ -             $ 160,749     $ 97,212       
Warrants and Accounts Payable -             1,803         66,746       50,951       
Trust Liabilities and Deposits 76              76              30,863       28,787       
Matured Bonds Payable -             58,717       58,717       40,959       
Interest Payable 147            32,402       32,402       26,216       
Deferred Revenue 4,240         6,846         21,052       35,230       

Total Liabilities 4,463         99,844       370,529     279,355     

Fund Balances
Reserved

Encumbrances -             -             213,883     166,698     
Debt Service 1,369         292,788     305,712     246,426     
Inventories -             -             3,327         3,693         
Prepaid Items -             -             3,121         2,780         

Unreserved
Designated for Insurance Claims -             -             4,329         3,019         
Designated for Unrealized Gain on Investments -             890            3,617         29,327       
Undesignated -             -             280,286     265,365     

Total Fund Balances 1,369         293,678     814,275     717,308     
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,832         $ 393,522     $ 1,184,804  $ 996,663     

Debt Service Funds

  Totals
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Non-Major Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Cable Highway Local Trans-
Communi- User portation Municipal

cations Revenue Assistance Transit Court
REVENUES

City Taxes $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            
Licenses and Permits 8,207        -            -            -            -            
Intergovernmental -            112,654    7,245        18,529      -            
Charges for Services -            51             -            20,947      4,460        
Parks and Recreation -            -            -            -            -            
Investment Income

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments -            (1,900)       -            (3,574)       (140)          
Interest -            1,943        -            3,679        148           

Dwelling Rentals -            -            -            -            -            
Other 50             783           -            4,164        -            

Total Revenues 8,257        113,531    7,245        43,745      4,468        

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating

General Government 3,692        -            -            -            83             
Criminal Justice -            -            -            -            316           
Public Safety -            -            -            -            3,179        
Transportation 890           28,681      7,456        83,967      -            
Community Enrichment 121           -            105           156           -            
Community Development -            -            -            -            -            
Environmental Services -            -            -            -            -            

Capital -            57,109      -            38,448      398           
Debt Service

Prinicipal -            -            -            -            -            
Interest -            -            -            -            -            
Bond Issuance Costs -            -            -            -            -            
Arbitrage Rebate and Fiscal Agent Fees -            -            -            -            -            
Other -            -            -            -            -            

Total Expenditures 4,703        85,790      7,561        122,571    3,976        
  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
   Expenditures 3,554        27,741      (316)          (78,826)     492           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Other Funds -            -            -            92,349      -            
Transers to Other Funds (3,540)       (31,131)     -            (2,739)       -            
Proceeds 

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds -            -            -            -            -            
Premium/(Discount) on General Obligation and 

Revenue Bonds -            -            -            -            -            
Certificates of Participation and Municipal 

Corporation Obligations -            -            -            -            -            
Premium/(Discount) on Certificates of Participation 

and Municipal Corporation Obligations -            -            -            -            -            
Special Assessment Bonds -            -            -            -            -            
Refunding Bonds -            -            -            -            -            
Deposit to Refunding Escrow -            -            -            -            -            

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses (3,540)       (31,131)     -            89,610      -            
     Net Change in Fund Balances 14             (3,390)       (316)          10,784      492           

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 21             71,283      316           143,762    5,636        
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 $ 35             $ 67,893      $ -            $ 154,546    $ 6,128        

Special Revenue Funds
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(Continued)

Parks Develop-
and ment Public Sports Capital Other

Library Recreation Services Grants Housing Facilities Construction Restricted Total

$ -            $ 7,053        $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ 7,053        
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            4               8,211        
-            -            -            83,773      65,292      -            41             2               287,536    
936           -            77,754      114           -            -            4               77             104,343    
-            3,690        -            -            -            -            -            2,286        5,976        

(37)            (876)          (2,501)       (202)          (950)          (224)          (820)          (145)          (11,369)     
40             931           2,632        286           1,088        245           839           155           11,986      
28             -            -            -            6,445        -            -            15             6,488        
26             498           (5)              983           1,135        395           48             2,579        10,656      

993           11,296      77,880      84,954      73,010      416           112           4,973        430,880    

-            -            -            1,324        -            -            -            1,230        6,329        
-            -            -            14             -            -            -            -            330           
-            -            1,915        11,300      -            935           -            75             17,404      
-            -            -            195           -            -            -            -            121,189    

28,106      80,362      -            48,056      152           -            -            2,897        159,955    
-            -            39,163      17,701      66,508      458           -            31             123,861    
-            -            -            6               -            -            20             24             50             
400           6,643        11,030      6,358        9,421        1,277        25,935      68             157,087    

-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

28,506      87,005      52,108      84,954      76,081      2,670        25,955      4,325        586,205    

(27,513)     (75,709)     25,772      -            (3,071)       (2,254)       (25,843)     648           (155,325)   

27,370      92,655      -            -            -            12,577      17,196      -            242,147    
-            -            -            -            (1,301)       (9,236)       -            -            (47,947)     

-            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

27,370      92,655      -            -            (1,301)       3,341        17,196      -            194,200    
(143)          16,946      25,772      -            (4,372)       1,087        (8,647)       648           38,875      

642           21,205      75,791      -            37,298      10,422      33,297      5,100        404,773    
$ 499           $ 38,151      $ 101,563    $ -            $ 32,926      $ 11,509      $ 24,650      $ 5,748        $ 443,648    

Special Revenue Funds
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and (Continued)
Changes in Fund Balance - Non-Major Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Parks,
Street Police Recreation

Improve- and Fire Storm and Public
ments Protection Sewers Libraries Housing

REVENUES
City Taxes $ -                $ -                $ -                $ -                $ -                
Licenses and Permits -                -                -                -                -                
Intergovernmental 5,867        2,757        -                665           4,143        
Charges for Services -                -                -                -                -                
Parks and Recreation -                -                -                -                -                
Investment Income

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 29             84             (92)            84             45             
Interest 1               3               129           2               1               

Dwelling Rentals -                -                -                -                -                
Other 909           1,297        37             327           74             

Total Revenues 6,806        4,141        74             1,078        4,263        

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating

General Government -                -                -                -                -                
Criminal Justice -                -                -                -                -                
Public Safety -                -                -                -                -                
Transportation -                -                -                -                -                
Community Enrichment -                -                -                -                -                
Community Development -                -                -                -                -                
Environmental Services -                -                -                -                -                

Capital 24,416      56,155      9,483        22,224      16,154      
Debt Service

Prinicipal -                -                -                -                -                
Interest -                -                -                -                -                
Bond Issuance Costs -                -                -                -                -                
Arbitrage Rebate and Fiscal Agent Fees -                -                -                -                -                
Other -                -                -                -                -                

Total Expenditures 24,416      56,155      9,483        22,224      16,154      
  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
   Expenditures (17,610)     (52,014)     (9,409)       (21,146)     (11,891)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Other Funds -                -                -                -                530           
Transfers to Other Funds (189)          -                -                (47)            -                
Proceeds

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 18,000      63,000      21,000      32,500      27,500      
Premium/(Discount) on General Obligation and 

Revenue Bonds -                -                -                -                -                
Certificates of Participation and Municipal 

Corporation Obligations (7)              18,437      -                295           419           
Premium/(Discount) on Certificates of Participation and

Municipal Corporation Obligations -                -                -                -                -                
Special Assessment Bonds -                -                -                -                -                
Refunding Bonds -                -                -                -                -                
Deposit to Refunding Escrow -                -                -                -                -                

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 17,804      81,437      21,000      32,748      28,449      
     Net Change in Fund Balances 194           29,423      11,591      11,602      16,558      

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (3,074)       (23,154)     9,166        (2,066)       (15,789)     
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 $ (2,880)       $ 6,269        $ 20,757      $ 9,536        $ 769           

Capital Projects Funds
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(Continued)

General
Municipal Sports Obligation/
Buildings and Secondary Streets City

and Service Cultural Property and Public Improve-
Centers Transit Facilities Total Tax Highways Housing ment

$ -                $ -                $ -                $ -                $ 94,263      $ -                $ -                $ -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                63,470      -                76,902      -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

(1,924)       9               346           (1,419)       (3,002)       (36)            -                (281)          
2,181        52             5               2,374        4,906        48             -                275           

-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
(198)          -                80             2,526        -                -                -                -                

59             63,531      431           80,383      96,167      12             -                (6)              

-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

15,634      101,297    41,890      287,253    -                -                -                -                

-                -                -                -                31,965      18,805      395           8,668        
-                -                -                -                35,386      9,525        152           16,423      
-                -                -                -                519           223           -                -                
-                -                -                -                5               1               -                28             
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                1,908        

15,634      101,297    41,890      287,253    67,875      28,554      547           27,027      

(15,575)     (37,766)     (41,459)     (206,870)   28,292      (28,542)     (547)          (27,033)     

5,204        -                34,867      40,601      5,442        28,331      547           27,219      
(35,050)     -                (2)              (35,288)     -                -                -                (162)          

9,700        -                28,300      200,000    -                -                -                -                

-                -                -                -                8,599        -                -                -                

856           -                -                20,000      -                -                -                -                

1,311        -                -                1,311        -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                42,020      -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                (45,502)     -                -                -                

(17,979)     -                63,165      226,624    10,559      28,331      547           27,057      
(33,554)     (37,766)     21,706      19,754      38,851      (211)          -                24             

124,423    1,974        (34,285)     57,195      250,914    231           -                2,500        
$ 90,869      $ (35,792)     $ (12,579)     $ 76,949      $ 289,765    $ 20             $ -                $ 2,524        

Capital Projects Funds Debt Service Funds
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and (Continued)
Changes in Fund Balance - Non-Major Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
with comparative totals for June 30, 2003
(in thousands)

Special
Assess-

ment Total 2004 2003
REVENUES

City Taxes $ -                $ 94,263      $ 101,316    $ 94,843      
Licenses and Permits -                -                8,211        7,552        
Intergovernmental -                -                364,438    319,337    
Charges for Services -                -                104,343    89,962      
Parks and Recreation -                -                5,976        5,774        
Special Assessments 1,641        1,641        1,641        1,692        
Investment Income  

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 54             (3,265)       (16,053)     5,408        
Interest -                5,229        19,589      20,474      

Dwelling Rentals -                -                6,488        6,507        
Other 9               9               13,191      36,735      

Total Revenues 1,704        97,877      609,140    588,284    

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating

General Government -                -                6,329        5,884        
Criminal Justice -                -                330           12,582      
Public Safety -                -                17,404      3,763        
Transportation -                -                121,189    113,604    
Community Enrichment -                -                159,955    154,416    
Community Development -                -                123,861    115,337    
Environmental Services -                -                50             6               

Capital -                -                444,340    319,030    
Debt Service

Prinicipal 1,492        61,325      61,325      43,541      
Interest 342           61,828      61,828      58,551      
Bond Issuance Costs -                742           742           1,779        
Arbitrage Rebate and Fiscal Agent Fees -                34             34             35             
Other 19             1,927        1,927        5               

Total Expenditures 1,853        125,856    999,314    828,533    
  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
   Expenditures (149)          (27,979)     (390,174)   (240,249)   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Other Funds -                61,539      344,287    308,382    
Transfers to Other Funds (177)          (339)          (83,574)     (61,766)     
Proceeds

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds -                -                200,000    -                
Premium/(Discount) on General Obligation and 

Revenue Bonds -                8,599        8,599        -                
Certificates of Participation and Municipal 

Corporation Obligations -                -                20,000      60,000      
Premium/(Discount) on Certificates of Participation and

Municipal Corporation Obligations -                -                1,311        611           
Special Assessment Bonds -                -                -                135           
Refunding Bonds -                42,020      42,020      157,237    
Deposit to Refunding Escrow -                (45,502)     (45,502)     (155,695)   

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses (177)          66,317      487,141    308,904    
     Net Change in Fund Balances (326)          38,338      96,967      68,655      

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 1,695        255,340    717,308    648,653    
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 $ 1,369        $ 293,678    $ 814,275    $ 717,308    

   Totals

Debt Service Funds
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Aviation Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Net Assets
June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003
ASSETS

Current Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 60,569         $ 75,247         
Receivables

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (2004, $724 and 2003, $1,187) 3,669           3,212           

Deposits in Escrow 126              129              
Prepaid Items 1,190           1,360           
Inventories, at Average Cost 1,051           1,045           

Total Unrestricted Current Assets 66,605           80,993         

Restricted Assets
Debt Service

Investments -                   8,279           
Cash with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 37,367         35,837         

Revenue Bond Reserve
Investments 29,095         29,264         
Accrued Interest Receivable 147              209              

Airport Improvement Reserve
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 39,564         39,564         

Passenger Facility Charge
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 109,812       57,247         
Accounts Receivable 9,552           9,232           

Customer Facility Charge
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments -                   10,241         
Accounts Receivable 2,651           1,872           
Investments 242,364       -                  
Cash with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 14,142         -                  

Capital Projects
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 73,240         77,084         
Investments 227,328       262,255       
Receivables

Intergovernmental 14,217         2,183           
Total Restricted Current Assets 799,479         533,267       

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets

Land 304,556       217,887       
Buildings 497,128       495,883       
Improvements Other Than Buildings 772,526       672,738       
Equipment 43,693         42,012         
Construction in Progress 470,381       480,642       

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (577,339)      (521,194)      
Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1,510,945      1,387,968    

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,510,945    1,387,968    
Total Assets 2,377,029    2,002,228    
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(Continued)

2004 2003
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets
Warrants Payable 3,407           2,995           
Accounts Payable 5,928           7,505           
Trust Liabilities and Deposits 155              157              
Deferred Revenue 3,948           4,218           
Capital Leases 458              458              
Current Portion of Accrued Compensated Absences 500              511              

Total Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets 14,396           15,844         

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Debt Service

Matured Bonds Payable 17,160         16,395         
Interest Payable 20,207         19,441         
Current Portion of General Obligation Bonds 3,230           3,251           
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds 3,925           3,710           
Current Portion of Municipal Corporation Obligations 13,860         10,200         

Capital Projects
Warrants Payable 4,417           3,642           
Accounts Payable 24,183         9,074           

Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets 86,982         65,713         

Noncurrent Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds, Net of Deferred Interest

Expense Adjustment (2004, $1,813 and 2003, $2,006) 22,562         25,599         
Revenue Bonds, Net of Deferred Interest

Expense Adjustment (2004, $0 and 2003, $0) 37,315         41,240         
Municipal Corporation Obligations, Net of Deferred Interest

Expense Adjustment (2004, $3,098 and 2003, $3,637) 631,242       644,562       
Rental Car Facility Revenue Bonds, Net of Deferred Interest

Expense Adjustment (2004, $0 and 2003, $0) 260,000       -                  
Unamortized Premium (Discount) 680              892              
Capital Leases 1,798           2,252           
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,926           3,819           

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 957,523       718,364       
Total Liabilities 1,058,901      799,921       

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 991,343       905,266       
Restricted for Bond Retirement 29,095         29,264         
Unrestricted 297,690       267,777       

Total Net Assets $ 1,318,128    $ 1,202,307    

NET ASSETS
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Aviation Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003

Operating Revenues
Landing and Terminals Fees $ 117,070     $ 111,261       
Parking and Car Rentals 78,425       73,237         
Other 17,777       21,818         

Total Operating Revenues 213,272       206,316       

Operating Expenses
Operation and Maintenance 137,744     124,774       
Depreciation 58,455       53,346         
Staff and Administrative 5,189         4,840           

Total Operating Expenses 201,388       182,960       
Operating Income 11,884         23,356         

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Income

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair 
Value of Investments (5,916)        5,065           

Interest 1,787         3,110           
Interest on Capital Debt (27,503)      (27,813)        
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets 399            (1,990)          

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (31,233)        (21,628)        
Net Income (Loss) Before Contributions (19,349)        1,728           

Capital Contributions 135,170     138,867       
Change in Net Assets 115,821       140,595       

Net Assets, July 1 1,202,307  1,061,712    
Net Assets, June 30 $ 1,318,128  $ 1,202,307    
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Aviation Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers $ 212,544        $ 209,544      
Payments to Suppliers (95,263)         (81,142)       
Payments to Employees (43,384)         (40,612)       
Payment of Staff and Administrative Expenses (5,189)           (4,840)         

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 68,708           82,950          

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Debt 260,000        -                  
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (16,850)         (24,948)       
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (37,463)         (32,043)       
Receipts of Passenger Facility Charges -                    -                  
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (156,846)       (145,271)     
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 596               21               
Capital Contributions 122,038        127,654      

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 171,475         (74,587)         

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investment Securities (7,189,096)   (4,311,160)  
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Investment Securities 6,990,103    4,389,962   
Interest on Investments (1,716)           13,116        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (200,709)        91,918          
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 39,474           100,281        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 295,220        194,939      
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 334,694         $ 295,220        

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income $ 11,884          $ 23,356        
Adjustments

Depreciation 58,455          53,346        
(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Receivables 6                   2,148          
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (463)              (570)            
Deposits in Escrow 3                   -                  
Prepaid Items 170               170             
Inventories (6)                  (175)            

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Warrants Payable 412               8                 
Accounts Payable (1,577)           2,729          
Trust Liabilities and Deposits (2)                  -                  
Deferred Revenue (270)              1,651          
Accrued Compensated Absences 96                 287             

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 68,708           $ 82,950          

Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position
  Refunding Issuance in Excess of Bond Retirement $ 732               $ 262             

Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (1,109)           96               
Total Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position $ (377)              $ 358             
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Water System Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Net Assets
June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003
ASSETS   

Current Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 99,003       $ 115,628      
Investments 10,145       10,205        
Receivables
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (2004, $791 and 2003, $751) 36,537       33,092        

Intergovernmental 1,809         923             
Accrued Interest 40               20               

Prepaid Items 3,631         3,084          
Inventories, at Average Cost 2,227         2,157          

Total Unrestricted Current Assets 153,392       165,109       

Restricted Assets
Debt Service
Cash with Fiscal Agent 43,441       44,439        

Capital Projects
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 56,620       55,023        
Deposit with State Treasurer's Trust for Plan Six 4,053         3,995          
Investments 106,823     86,789        
Due From Other Funds -                  1,190          
Receivables
Accrued Interest 312             381             

Customer and Other Deposits 1,821         2,053          
Total Restricted Current Assets 213,070     193,870      

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets
Land 58,715       55,231        
Buildings 106,364     94,777        
Improvements Other Than Buildings 424,385     391,601      
Equipment 137,942     117,895      
Mains, Hydrants, Meters and Service Connections 985,061     883,490      
Construction in Progress 176,019     164,884      
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (544,990)    (499,930)     
Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1,343,496    1,207,948    

Other Assets
Excess of Cost Over Net Assets Acquired, Less Accum-
ulated Amortization (2004, $327 and 2003, $306) 115             136             

Water Rights, Less Accumulated Amortization
(2004, $10,338 and 2003, $9,300) 32,693       32,615        

Investment in Val Vista Treatment Plant
Joint Use Agreement 99,012       93,765        
Total Other Assets 131,820       126,516       
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,475,316    1,334,464    
Total Assets 1,841,778    1,693,443    
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2004 2003
LIABILITIES   

Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets
Warrants Payable 3,094         2,468          
Accounts Payable 11,890       8,413          
Deferred Revenue 41               37               
Current Portion of Accrued Compensated Absences 792             804             
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets 15,817         11,722         

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Debt Service
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable 200,000     100,000      
Matured Bonds Payable 26,636       27,430        
Interest Payable 17,202       17,017        
Current Portion of General Obligation Bonds 9,673         18,386        
Current Portion of Municipal Corporation Obligations 8,815         9,235          

Capital Projects
Warrants Payable 6,502         3,911          
Accounts Payable 13,521       7,514          

Customer and Other Deposits 1,821         2,053          
Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets 284,170     185,546      

Noncurrent Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds, Net of Deferred Interest
Expense Adjustment (2004, $3,633 and 2003, $3,849) 120,517     130,210      

Revenue Bonds -                  10,000        
Municipal Corporation Obligations, Net of Deferred Interest
Expense Adjustment (2004, $8,213 and 2003, $7,735) 460,297     457,280      

Unamortized Premium (Discount) 6,604         7,028          
Accrued Compensated Absences 6,170           5,977           
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 593,588       610,495       
Total Liabilities 893,575       807,763       

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 663,492     580,846      
Restricted for Plan Six 4,053         3,995          
Unrestricted 280,658     300,839      

Total Net Assets $ 948,203     $ 885,680      

NET ASSETS
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Water System Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003
Operating Revenues
Water Sales $ 196,341  $ 188,090    
Environmental Charges 15,956    11,658      
Other 11,853    17,122      
Total Operating Revenues 224,150    216,870    

Operating Expenses
Administration and Engineering 18,756    17,293      
Operation and Maintenance
Customer Service 14,941    15,265      
Production and Treatment 43,443    40,559      
Distribution and Centralized Functions 44,590    40,904      

Depreciation and Amortization 49,747    50,232      
Staff and Administrative 6,366      6,160        
Total Operating Expenses 177,843    170,413    
Operating Income 46,307      46,457      

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Income
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (5,840)    1,170        
Interest 6,889      8,392        

Interest on Capital Debt (26,778)  (29,531)    
Equity Interest in Joint Use Agreement Operating Loss (4,674)    (4,743)      
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets (819)       (589)        
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (31,222)    (25,301)    
Net Income Before Contributions and Transfers 15,085      21,156      

Capital Contributions 55,158      51,038      
Operating Transfers to General Fund - In Lieu Property Taxes (7,360)      (6,729)      
Operating Transfers to Capital Projects Funds (360)         (360)         

Change in Net Assets 62,523      65,105      

Net Assets, July 1 885,680  820,575    
Net Assets, June 30 $ 948,203    $ 885,680    
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Water System Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers $ 219,591    $ 219,848     
Payments to Suppliers (52,862)    (53,735)      
Payments to Employees (65,259)    (59,657)      
Payment of Staff and Administrative Expenses (6,366)      (6,160)        
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 95,104        100,296     

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers to Other Funds (7,720)      (7,089)        
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities (7,720)      (7,089)        

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Debt 100,139    100,061     
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (26,636)    (27,520)      
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (33,714)    (31,833)      
Proceeds from Loans/(Loans) to Developers -               8,000         
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (143,300)  (130,836)    
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 386          1,397         
Capital Contributions 18,359      15,944       
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (84,766)      (64,787)      

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investment Securities (810,989)  (376,035)    
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investment Securities 791,015    358,591     
Interest on Investments 1,098        10,433       
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (18,876)      (7,011)        

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (16,258)      21,409       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 217,143    195,734     
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 200,885      $ 217,143     

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating Income $ 46,307      $ 46,457       
Adjustments
Depreciation and Amortization 49,747      50,232       
(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Deposits for Plan Six (58)           52             
Receivables (4,371)      2,693         
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 40            109           
Prepaid Expenses (547)         103           
Inventories (70)           74             

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Warrants Payable 626          85             
Accounts Payable 3,477        (160)           
Deferred Revenue 4              -                
Customer and Other Deposits (232)         176           
Accrued Compensated Absences 181          475           
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 95,104        $ 100,296     

Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position
Contributions of Capital Assets $ 36,799      $ 35,094       
Bond Capital Appreciation 321          446           
Refunding Issuance in Excess of Bond Retirement 965          789           
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (1,742)      109           
Total Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position $ 36,343        $ 36,438       
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Wastewater Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Net Assets
June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003

ASSETS   

Current Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 30,579       $ 24,105        
Receivables

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (2004, $394 and 2003, $342) 11,696       10,609        

Intergovernmental 2,242         2,918          
Inventories, at Average Cost 613             585             

Total Unrestricted Current Assets 45,130         38,217         

Restricted Assets
Debt Service

Cash with Fiscal Agent 28,299       27,877        
Investments -                  14               

Capital Projects
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 64,116       62,524        
Investments 5,582         27,182        
Receivables

Intergovernmental 58               99               
Customer Deposits and Other Trust Liabilities 215             183             

Total Restricted Current Assets 98,270         117,879       

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets

Land 17,086       17,086        
Buildings 58,844       46,029        
Improvements Other Than Buildings 851,744     776,369      
Equipment 107,829     96,322        
Construction in Progress 29,395       71,742        

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (360,094)    (332,330)     
Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 704,804       675,218       

Other Assets
Investment in SROG Joint Use Agreement 287,038     241,477      

Total Noncurrent Assets 991,842       916,695       
Total Assets 1,135,242    1,072,791    
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(Continued)

2004 2003

LIABILITIES   

Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets
Warrants Payable 921             457             
Accounts Payable 4,924         4,808          
Utility Repayment Agreements 357             639             
Current Portion of Accrued Compensated Absences 181             184             

Total Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets 6,383           6,088           

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Debt Service

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable 100,000     60,000        
Matured Bonds Payable 17,005       16,083        
Interest Payable 13,501       13,933        
Current Portion of General Obligation Bonds 7,232         6,765          
Current Portion of Municipal Corporation Obligations 14,495       10,240        

Capital Projects
Warrants Payable 873             210             
Accounts Payable 8,345         10,201        

Customer Deposits and Other Trust Liabilities 215             183             
Total Current Liabilities Payable from

Restricted Assets 161,666     117,615      

Noncurrent Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds, Net of Deferred Interest

Expense Adjustment (2004, $2,509 and 2003, $2,892) 64,521       71,294        
Municipal Corporation Obligations, Net of Deferred Interest

Expense Adjustment (2004, $23,797 and 2003, $25,043) 408,983     422,232      
Unamortized Premium (Discount) (1,843)        (2,075)         
Utility Repayment Agreements 4,717         5,132          
Rebatable Arbitrage -                  510             
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,449         1,385          

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 477,827       498,478       
Total Liabilities 645,876       622,181       

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 351,159     343,757      
Unrestricted 138,207     106,853      

Total Net Assets $ 489,366     $ 450,610      

NET ASSETS
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Wastewater Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003
Operating Revenues

Sewer Service Charges $ 87,993    $ 78,784      
Environmental Charges 22,862    22,361      
Other 4,091      3,502        

Total Operating Revenues 114,946    104,647    

Operating Expenses
Administration 5,899      5,811        
Operation 26,742    22,307      
Maintenance 18,209    16,627      
Depreciation 29,100    30,390      
Staff and Administrative 1,305      1,432        
Industrial Waste/Pre-Treatment 4,392      3,781        

Total Operating Expenses 85,647      80,348      
Operating Income 29,299      24,299      

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Income

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (2,144)     465          
Interest 2,849      3,282        

Interest on Capital Debt (24,772)   (25,447)     
Equity Interest in Joint Use Agreement Operating Loss (10,456)   (11,084)     
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets (91)          (463)          

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (34,614)     (33,247)     
Net Loss Before Contributions and Transfers (5,315)       (8,948)       

Capital Contributions 50,099      41,877      
Transfers to General Fund - In Lieu Property Taxes (5,788)       (5,329)       
Transfers to Capital Projects Funds (240)          (240)          

Change in Net Assets 38,756      27,360      

Net Assets, July 1 450,610  423,250    
Net Assets, June 30 $ 489,366    $ 450,610    
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City of Phoenix, Arizona
Wastewater Enterprise Fund
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

2004 2003
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Customers $ 114,608   $ 103,766   
Payments to Suppliers (41,811)    (36,126)    
Payments to Employees (12,818)    (11,457)    
Payment of Staff and Administrative Expenses (1,305)      (1,432)      

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 58,674     54,751     

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers to Other Funds (6,028)      (5,569)      

Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities (6,028)      (5,569)      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Debt 40,005     60,109     
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (16,780)    (13,531)    
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (28,344)    (28,163)    
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (73,915)    (79,810)    
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 104           69            
Capital Contributions 12,996     9,450       

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities (65,934)    (51,876)    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investment Securities (699,899)  (94,308)    
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investment Securities 721,513   92,051     
Interest on Investments 195           2,489       

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 21,809     232          
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,521       (2,462)      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 114,689   117,151   
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 123,210   $ 114,689   

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income $ 29,299     $ 24,299     
Adjustments

Depreciation 29,100     30,390     
(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Receivables (422)          (721)         
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 52             52            
Inventories (28)            26            

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Warrants Payable 464           169          
Accounts Payable 116           501          
Customer Deposits 32             (212)         
Accrued Compensated Absences 61             247          

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 58,674     $ 54,751     

Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position
Contributions of Capital Assets $ 37,103     $ 32,426     
Refunding Issuance in Excess of Bond Retirement 1,725       1,329       
Bond Capital Appreciation 61             57            
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (77)            78            

Total Noncash Transactions Affecting Financial Position $ 38,812     $ 33,890     
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APPENDIX H

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 2005B INDENTURE
AND THE 2005B LOAN AGREEMENT

Certain Definitions

The following terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein, have the following
meanings:

""ACCDF'' means the Arizona Convention Center Development Fund created and funded by the Act.

""ACCDF Transfer Fund'' means the ACCDF Transfer Fund held by the City created pursuant to the
2005B Loan Agreement into which the State Distributions will be deposited.

""Act'' means Arizona Revised Statutes, Sections 9-601 through 9-626 and Sections 42-5029 and 42-5030
relating to the creation and funding of the ACCDF.

""Authenticating Agent'' means the Trustee and the Registrar for the 2005B Bonds and any bank, trust
company or other Person designated as an Authenticating Agent for the 2005B Bonds by or in accordance
with the 2005B Indenture, each of which shall be a transfer agent registered in accordance with
Section 17A(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

""Bond Counsel'' means a firm of attorneys of national reputation experienced in the field of municipal
bonds designated by the City Representative whose opinions are generally accepted by purchasers of
municipal bonds, acceptable to the Trustee, and which is independent.

""Bond Resolution'' means, collectively, the resolutions providing for the issuance of the 2005B Bonds and
approving the 2005B Loan Agreement, the 2005B Indenture and related matters.

""Bond Service Charges'' means, for any period or time, the principal of and interest on the 2005B Bonds
for that period or payable at that time.

""City Representative'' means the Finance Director or Interim Finance Director of the City or any other
person who at the time is serving as chief financial officer of the City.

""Civic Plaza Enterprise Fund'' means the Civic Plaza Enterprise Fund created by the City to receive
moneys, including Excise Taxes, to be applied, among other things, to costs or debt service for various Civic
Plaza projects, including the 2005B Initial Loan Payment and the 2005B Additional Loan Payments, if any,
relating to the Project.

""Completion Certificate'' means the Certificate of Completion of Construction to be filed by the City
Representative pursuant to the 2005B Loan Agreement.

""Corporation Representative'' means the Finance Director or Interim Finance Director of the City or his
designee, any member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or any person authorized to act on behalf
of the Corporation under or with respect to the 2005B Indenture and the 2005B Loan Agreement, as
evidenced by a resolution confirming such authorization adopted by the Corporation.

""Defeasance Obligations'' means:

(1) U.S. Treasury Certificates, Notes and Bonds (including State and Local Government Series Ì
""SLGs'');

(2) Direct obligations of the Treasury which have been stripped by the Treasury itself, CATS,
TIGRS and similar securities;

(3) Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP). Only the interest component of REFCORP strips
which have been stripped by request to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in book entry form are
acceptable;
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(4) Pre-refunded municipal bonds rated ""Aaa'' by Moody's and ""AAA'' by S&P. If however, the
issue is only rated by S&P (i.e., there is no Moody's rating), then the pre-refunded bonds must have been
pre-refunded with cash, direct U.S. or U.S. guaranteed obligations, or AAA rated pre-refunded
municipals to satisfy this condition; and

(5) Obligations issued by the following agencies which are backed by the full faith and credit of the
U.S.:

a. U.S. Export-Import Bank (Eximbank)
Direct obligations or fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial ownership;

b. Farmers Home Administration (FmHA)
Certificates of beneficial ownership;

c. Federal Financing Bank;

d. General Services Administration
Participation certificates;

e. U.S. Maritime Administration
Guaranteed Title XI financing; and

f. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Project Notes,
Local Authority Bonds,
New Communities Debentures Ì U.S. government guaranteed debentures, and
U.S. Public Housing Notes and Bonds Ì U.S. government guaranteed public housing notes
and bonds.

""Event of Bankruptcy'' means the filing of a petition in bankruptcy by or against the specified Person
under the United States Bankruptcy Code.

""Event of Default'' means an event of default under the 2005B Indenture.

""Excise Taxes'' means all excise taxes now or hereafter validly imposed by the City and the proceeds of
all excise taxes imposed by other entities and contributed, allocated or paid over to the City and not earmarked
by the contributor for a contrary or inconsistent purpose (including, without limitation, excise, transaction,
franchise, privilege and business taxes, state-shared sales and income taxes and receipts from licenses and
permits) which the City now collects, which it may collect in the future, or which are allocated or apportioned
to the City by the State or any political subdivision thereof, or by any other governmental unit or agency,
except the City's share of any excise and franchise taxes which by state law, rule or regulation must be
expended for other purposes, such as the motor vehicle fuel tax.

""Interest Payment Date'' or ""Interest Payment Dates'' means January 1 and July 1 of each year,
commencing January 1, 2014.

""Other Available Moneys'' means moneys available to the City to be applied to the City's obligations
under the 2005B Loan Agreement, which moneys are not funds from State Distributions or Excise Taxes
collected and which are neither pledged hereby nor required to be applied by the City for the repayment of the
2005B Loan.

""Outstanding Bonds,'' ""Bonds Outstanding'' or ""Outstanding'' as applied to 2005B Bonds, mean, as of the
applicable date, all 2005B Bonds which have been authenticated and delivered, or which are being delivered
by the Trustee under the 2005B Indenture, except:

(a) 2005B Bonds, or the portion thereof, cancelled upon surrender, exchange or transfer, or
cancelled because of payment on or prior to that date;

(b) 2005B Bonds, or the portion thereof, for the payment or purchase for cancellation of which
sufficient moneys have been deposited and credited with the Trustee or any Paying Agents on or
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prior to that date for that purpose (whether upon or prior to the maturity or redemption date of those
2005B Bonds);

(c) 2005B Bonds, or the portion thereof, which are deemed to have been paid and discharged or
caused to have been paid and discharged pursuant to the provisions of the 2005B Indenture; and

(d) 2005B Bonds in lieu of which others have been authenticated under the 2005B Indenture.

""Owner'' or ""Bondowner'' or ""Owner of a 2005B Bond'' means the Person in whose name a 2005B Bond
is registered on the Register.

""Paying Agent'' means any bank or trust company designated as a Paying Agent by or in accordance with
the 2005B Indenture.

""Permitted Investments'' means

(1) Direct obligations of the United States of America (including obligations issued or held in
book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury, and CATS and TIGRS) or obligations
the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America;

(2) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any of the
following federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the
United States of America (stripped securities are only permitted if they have been stripped by the agency
itself):

a. U.S. Export-Import Bank (Eximbank)
Direct obligations or fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial ownership;

b. Farmers Home Administration (FmHA)
Certificates of beneficial ownership;

c. Federal Financing Bank;

d. Federal Housing Administration Debentures (FHA);

e. General Services Administration
Participation certificates;

f. Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or ""Ginnie Mae'')
GNMA-guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds, and
GNMA-guaranteed pass-through obligations (participation certificates) (not acceptable
for certain cash-flow sensitive issues);

g. U.S. Maritime Administration
Guaranteed Title XI financing; and

h. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Project Notes,
Local Authority Bonds,
New Communities Debentures Ì U.S. government guaranteed debentures, and
U.S. Public Housing Notices and Bonds Ì U.S. government guaranteed public housing
notes and bonds;
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(3) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any of the
following non-full faith and credit U.S. government agencies (stripped securities are only permitted if
they have been stripped by the agency itself):

a. Federal Home Loan Bank System
Senior debt obligations (Consolidated debt obligations);

b. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or ""FreddieMac'')
Participation Certificates (Mortgage-backed securities), and Senior debt obligations;

c. Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or ""Fannie Mae'')
Mortgage-backed securities and senior debt obligations (excluded are stripped mortgage
securities which are valued greater than par on the portion of unpaid principal);

d. Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA or ""Sallie Mae'')
Senior debt obligations;

e. Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP)
(only the interest components of REFCORP strips which have been stripped by request to
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in book entry form are acceptable); and

f. Farm Credit System
Consolidated systemwide bonds and notes;

(4) Money market funds registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, whose
shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, and having a rating by S&P of
""AAAm-G,'' ""AAA-m'' or ""AA-m'' and if rated by Moody's rated ""Aaa,'' ""Aa1'' or ""Aa2'';

(5) Certificates of deposit secured at all times by collateral described in (1) and/or (2) above;
certificates of deposit must have a one year or less maturity; such certificates must be issued by
commercial banks, savings and loan associations or mutual savings banks whose short term obligations
are rated ""A-1°'' or better by S&P and ""Prime-1'' by Moody's; the collateral must be held by a third
party and the bondholders must have a perfected first security interest in the collateral;

(6) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or money market deposits which are
fully insured by FDIC, including BIF and SAIF;

(7) Investment agreements, including guaranteed investment contracts, forward purchase
agreements and reserve fund put agreements acceptable to the 2005B Bond Insurer;

(8) Commercial paper rated ""Prime-1'' by Moody's and ""A-1°'' or better by S&P;

(9) Bonds or notes issued by any state or municipality which are rated by Moody's and S&P in one
of the two highest long-term rating categories assigned by such agencies;

(10) Federal funds or bankers acceptances with a maximum term of one year of any bank which
has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rating of ""Prime-1'' or ""A3'' or better by
Moody's and ""A-1°'' by S&P;

(11) Repurchase agreements that provide for the transfer of securities from a dealer bank or
securities firm (seller/borrower) to a municipal entity (buyer/lender), and the transfer of cash from a
municipal entity to the dealer bank or securities firm with an agreement that the dealer bank or securities
firm will repay the cash plus a yield to the municipal entity in exchange for the securities at a specified
date, and which satisfy the following criteria:

a. Repurchase agreements must be between the municipal entity and a dealer bank or
securities firm;

(i) Primary dealers on the Federal Reserve reporting dealer list which are rated ""A'' or
better by S&P and Moody's, or

(ii) Banks rated ""A'' or above by S&P and Moody's;
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b. The written repurchase agreement must include the following:

(i) Securities which are acceptable for transfer are:

(A) Direct U.S. governments, or

(B) Federal agencies backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government (and
FNMA & FHLMC);

(ii) The term of repurchase agreement may be up to 30 days;

(iii) The collateral must be delivered to the municipal entity, trustee (if trustee is not
supplying the collateral) or third party acting as agent for the trustee (if the trustee is supplying
the collateral) before/simultaneous with payment (perfection by possession of certificated
securities);

(iv) The trustee has a perfected first priority security interest in the collateral;

(v) Collateral is free and clear of third-party liens and in the case of SIPC broker was not
acquired pursuant to a repurchase agreement or reverse repurchase agreement;

(vi) Failure to maintain the requisite collateral percentage, after a two day restoration
period, will require the trustee to liquidate collateral; and

(vii) Valuation of Collateral:

(A) The securities must be valued weekly, marked-to-market at current market price
plus accrued interest; and

(B) The value of collateral must be equal to 102% of the amount of cash transferred
by the municipal entity to the dealer bank or security firm under the repurchase agreement
plus accrued interest; if the value of securities held as collateral slips below 102% of the
value of the cash transferred by municipality, then additional cash and/or acceptable
securities must be transferred; if, however, the securities used as collateral are FNMA or
FHLMC, then the value of collateral must equal 105%; and

(C) Legal opinion which must be delivered to the municipal entity: repurchase
agreement meets guidelines under state law for legal investment of public funds; and

(12) Pre-refunded municipal bonds rated ""Aaa'' by Moody's and ""AAA'' by S&P; If however, the
issue is only rated by S&P (i.e., there is no Moody's rating), then the pre-refunded bonds must have been
pre-refunded with cash, direct U.S. or U.S. guaranteed obligations, or AAA rated pre-refunded
municipals to satisfy this condition;

provided that any investment or deposit described above is not prohibited by applicable law.

""Person'' or words importing persons mean firms, associations, partnerships (including without limitation,
general and limited partnerships), joint ventures, societies, estates, trusts, corporations, public or governmental
bodies, other legal entities and natural persons.

""Policy'' means the municipal bond new issue insurance policy issued by the 2005B Bond Insurer that
guarantees payment of principal of and interest on the 2005B Bonds.

""President'' means the President of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

""Principal Payment Date'' means, as to the 2005B Bonds, July 1 in the years specified herein for the
stated amount of principal to be retired at maturity.

""Project'' has the meaning given in the body of this Official Statement.
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""Register'' means the books kept and maintained by the Registrar for registration and transfer of 2005B
Bonds pursuant to the 2005B Indenture.

""Registrar'' means the Trustee, until a successor Registrar shall have become such pursuant to applicable
provisions of this 2005B Indenture which shall be a transfer agent registered in accordance with
Section 17(A)(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

""Revenues'' means (a) the 2005B Loan Payments and the 2005B Additional Loan Payments, if any,
(b) all other moneys with respect to the 2005B Bonds received or to be received by the Corporation or the
Trustee in respect of the 2005B Loan Agreement, including without limitation moneys and investments in the
2005B Debt Service Fund and the 2005B Revenue Fund, and (c) all income and profit from the investment of
the foregoing moneys. The term ""Revenues'' does not include any moneys or investments in the 2005B Rebate
Fund or the 2005B Reimbursement and Redemption Fund.

""Secretary'' means the Secretary-Treasurer of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

""State Distributions'' means the amounts to be disbursed by the State Treasurer from the ACCDF to the
City on or before each August 1 following the filing by the City Representative of the Completion Certificate
in the amounts set forth in Section 9-602 of the Act and continuing for 35 years, or until the filing by the City
Representative of a Certificate of Sufficiency of Distributions, whichever first occurs.

""Supplemental Indenture'' means any indenture supplemental to the 2005B Indenture entered into
between the Corporation and the Trustee in accordance with the 2005B Indenture.

""2005B Loan Payments'' means all payments required to be paid by the City from State Distributions
pursuant to the 2005B Loan Agreement.

""2005B Additional Loan Payment Date'' means the business day immediately preceding January 1 and
July 1 of each Bond Year, commencing on or prior to January 1, 2014 and ending the earlier of (a) the date
the City's obligations to make 2005B Additional Loan Payments terminates pursuant to the 2005B Loan
Agreement, or (b) the business day immediately preceding the date upon which the final payment of
principal, premium, if any, and interest are due and payable on the 2005B Bonds.

""2005B Additional Loan Payments'' means any payments made from Excise Taxes or Other Available
Moneys on any 2005B Additional Loan Payment Date to pay the Principal Requirement or Interest
Requirement on the 2005B Bonds.

""2005B Bond Insurer'' means Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, a New York stock insurance
company, or any successor thereto.

""2005B Bond Payment Date'' means a date on which principal or interest shall be payable on the
2005B Bonds according to their respective terms.

""2005B Debt Payment Account'' means the 2005B Debt Payment Account established within the
2005B Debt Service Fund pursuant to the 2005B Indenture.

""2005B Debt Service Account'' means the 2005B Debt Service Account established within the
2005B Debt Service Fund pursuant to the 2005B Indenture.

""2005B Reimbursement and Redemption Fund'' means the 2005B Reimbursement and Redemption
Fund established pursuant to the 2005B Indenture.

""2005B Revenue Fund'' means the 2005B Revenue Fund established pursuant to the 2005 Indenture.

""Unassigned Corporation's Rights'' means all of the rights of the Corporation to receive additional
payments under the 2005B Loan Agreement and to give or withhold consent to amendments, changes,
modifications and alterations of the 2005B Loan Agreement and its right to enforce such rights.
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Summary of Certain Provisions of the 2005B Indenture

The following, along with the information included under the heading ""THE 2005B BONDS,'' is a
summary of certain provisions of the 2005B Indenture. This summary does not purport to be complete, and
reference is made to the 2005B Indenture for a full and complete statement of such provisions. Capitalized
terms used in this summary are defined in the 2005B Indenture and have the same meaning herein as therein
unless the context hereof requires some other meaning.

Pledge and Security. To secure the payment of Bond Service Charges, the Corporation has absolutely
assigned to the Trustee the following described property (i) all right, title and interest of the Corporation, in
and to the 2005B Loan Agreement, except for Unassigned Corporation's Rights, including any supplements
thereto, the Corporation, however, to remain liable to observe and perform all the conditions and covenants in
said 2005B Loan Agreement provided to be observed and performed by it, (ii) all of the amounts payable to or
received by the Corporation pursuant to such 2005B Loan Agreement described in paragraph (i) above,
including without limitation, all of the 2005B Loan Payments, all of the 2005B Additional Loan Payments, if
any, and the other amounts to be paid to the Corporation or the Trustee under the terms of such 2005B Loan
Agreement; and (iii) the Revenues; excluding, however, any money or investments in the 2005B Rebate Fund
and the 2005B Reimbursement and Redemption Fund.

Receipt of Revenues. The amounts to be paid by the City with respect to the 2005B Bonds pursuant to the
terms of the 2005B Loan Agreement have been assigned by the Corporation to the Trustee so that such moneys
shall be paid by the City directly to the Trustee, and the Trustee shall credit such moneys to the 2005B Revenue
Fund. On or before each August 1, commencing with the August 1 immediately following the filing of the
Completion Certificate under the 2005B Loan Agreement, the City will pay to the Trustee the 2005B ACCDF
Transfer Fund Loan Payment then due under the 2005B Loan Agreement. The Trustee shall, at least
15 business days prior to each 2005B Additional Loan Payment Date, determine the amount, if any, required to
be deposited for the immediately succeeding 2005B Additional Loan Payment, which shall be the amount,
subject to the terms and conditions contained in the 2005B Loan Agreement, which, when added to the moneys
in the 2005B Debt Payment Account available for the payment of Bond Service Charges, is sufficient to pay into
the 2005B Debt Service Account available for the payment of Bond Service Charges, is sufficient to pay into the
2005B Debt Service Account the amounts due therein on the next Interest Payment Date. If the amount
required to be deposited with the Trustee has not been received by the Trustee on the due date thereof, the
Trustee shall immediately notify the 2005B Bond Insurer and its fiscal agent as described in the 2005B
Indenture.

Flow of Funds. The Trustee shall make transfers from the 2005B Revenue Fund as follows:

(i) 2005B Debt Service Fund.

(A) 2005B Debt Payment Account. Immediately upon the receipt of Revenues in the
2005B Revenue Fund, and following the payment of any amounts due to the Trustee, the Registrar
or any Paying Agents pursuant to the 2005B Indenture and the deposit of any required amounts to
the 2005B Rebate Fund, the Trustee shall transfer from the 2005B Revenue Fund to the 2005B Debt
Payment Account within the 2005B Debt Service Fund all amounts then on deposit in the
2005B Revenue Fund.

(B) 2005B Debt Service Account. Immediately upon each deposit into the 2005B Debt
Payment Account from the 2005B Revenue Fund, the Trustee shall transfer to the 2005B Debt
Service Account within the 2005B Debt Service Fund an amount sufficient, together with any
amounts already on deposit therein, to pay all debt service coming due on the 2005B Bonds in the
then-current Bond Year. Money in the 2005B Debt Service Account shall be used and withdrawn by
the Trustee solely for the purpose of paying debt service on the 2005B Bonds as it shall become due
and payable.

(ii) 2005B Reimbursement and Redemption Fund. If, on August 1 in any year, after making the
transfers and deposits referred to in (i) above, the combined balance in the 2005B Debt Payment
Account and the 2005B Debt Service Account in the 2005B Debt Service Fund exceeds $60,000,000,
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such excess above $60,000,000 shall be transferred to the 2005B Reimbursement and Redemption Fund
and applied to reimburse the City for any 2005B Additional Loan Payments, or to defease or purchase
2005B Bonds in the open market, or otherwise for any purpose not inconsistent with the terms of the
2005B Indenture, in accordance with the written direction of the City Representative.

Investment of 2005B Revenue Fund, 2005B Debt Service Fund and 2005B Reimbursement and
Redemption Fund. Moneys in each of the 2005B Revenue Fund, 2005B Debt Service Fund and
2005B Reimbursement and Redemption Fund (collectively, the ""Funds''), shall be invested, held and
reinvested by the Trustee in Permitted Investments at the oral (confirmed in writing as soon as practical) or
written direction of the City Representative or, in the absence of any such oral or written duration, in
Permitted Investments described in paragraph (4) of the definition thereof. An investment made from moneys
credited to the Funds shall constitute part of that respective Fund, and each respective Fund shall be credited
with all proceeds of sale and income from investment of moneys credited thereto. For purposes of the
2005B Indenture, those investments shall be valued by the Trustee at market value at the times provided in
the 2005B Indenture. Each investment of moneys in the Funds shall mature or be redeemable at such time as
may be necessary to make the required payments from such Funds. Amounts credited to any Fund may be
invested, together with amounts credited to one or more other Funds, in the same Permitted Investment,
provided that (i) each such investment complies in all respects with the provisions of the 2005B Indenture as
they apply to each Fund for which the joint investment is made and (ii) the Trustee maintains separate
records for each Fund and such investments are accurately reflected therein. Any of those Permitted
Investments may be purchased from or sold to the Trustee, the Registrar, an Authenticating Agent or a Paying
Agent, or any bank, trust company or savings and loan association affiliated with any of the foregoing. The
Trustee shall sell at the best price obtainable, or present for redemption, any Permitted Investment purchased
by it as an investment whenever it shall be necessary in order to provide moneys to meet any payment or
transfer from the fund or account for which such investment was made.

Enforcement of Revenue Pledge. As provided in the 2005B Loan Agreement, the Trustee shall have the
right of specific performance of the pledge of receipts and revenues of the City described in the 2005B Loan
Agreement by appropriate court action, in the name of the Trustee on behalf of the Owners of the
2005B Bonds, in the name of the Corporation, or in the names of both. Nothing contained in the
2005B Indenture and the 2005B Loan Agreement shall be deemed to create a lien of any kind upon the
Project or any other property acquired with the proceeds of the 2005B Bonds.

Intervention by the Trustee. The Trustee may intervene on behalf of the Owners, and shall intervene if
requested to do so in writing by the Owners of at least 25 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the
2005B Bonds then Outstanding or the 2005B Bond Insurer as described in the 2005B Indenture, in any
judicial proceeding to which the Corporation or the City is a party and which in the opinion of the Trustee and
its counsel has a substantial bearing on the interests of Owners of the 2005B Bonds. The rights and obligations
of the Trustee are subject to the approval of that intervention by a court of competent jurisdiction. The Trustee
may require that a satisfactory indemnity bond be provided to it in accordance with the 2005B Indenture
before it takes such action.

Removal of the Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time by the City with, under certain
circumstances, the consent of the 2005B Bond Insurer or by an instrument or document or concurrent
instruments or documents in writing delivered to the Trustee with copies thereof mailed to the Corporation,
the Registrar, any Paying Agents and the 2005B Bond Insurer and signed by or on behalf of the Owners of not
less than 25 percent in aggregate principal amount of the 2005B Bonds then Outstanding, in each case with
the consent of the 2005B Bond Insurer under circumstances described in the 2005B Indenture. The Trustee
also may be removed at any time for any breach of trust or for acting or proceeding in violation of, or for failing
to act or proceed in accordance with, any provision of the 2005B Indenture with respect to the duties and
obligations of the Trustee by any court of competent jurisdiction upon the application of the Corporation or
the Owners of not less than 25 percent in aggregate principal amount of the 2005B Bonds then Outstanding.

Appointment of Successor Trustee. If (i) the Trustee shall resign, shall be removed, shall be dissolved,
or shall become otherwise incapable of acting under the 2005B Indenture, (ii) the Trustee shall be taken
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under the control of any public officer or officers, or (iii) a receiver shall be appointed for the Trustee by a
court, then a successor Trustee shall be appointed by the Corporation; provided, that if a successor Trustee is
not so appointed within ten days after (a) a notice of resignation or an instrument or document of removal is
received by the Corporation, as provided in the 2005B Indenture, respectively, or (b) the Trustee is dissolved,
taken under control, becomes otherwise incapable of acting or a receiver is appointed, in each case, as
provided above, then, so long as the Corporation shall not have appointed a successor Trustee, the Owners of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the 2005B Bonds then Outstanding may designate a successor
Trustee by an instrument or document or concurrent instruments or documents in writing signed by or on
behalf of those Owners with the consent of the 2005B Bond Insurer as described in the 2005B Indenture. If no
appointment of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the Owner of any
2005B Bond Outstanding hereunder or any retiring Trustee may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction
to appoint a successor Trustee. Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as such court may deem
proper, prescribe and appoint a successor Trustee.

Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following events is defined as and declared to be and to
constitute an Event of Default under the 2005B Indenture:

(i) Notwithstanding any payment made with respect thereto pursuant to the Policy, payment of any
interest on any 2005B Bond shall not be made when and as that interest shall become due and payable;

(ii) Notwithstanding any payment made with respect thereto pursuant to the Policy, payment of the
principal on any 2005B Bond shall not be made when and as that principal shall become due and payable,
whether at stated maturity or otherwise;

(iii) Failure by the Corporation to observe or perform any other covenant, agreement or obligation
on its part to be observed or performed contained in the 2005B Indenture or in the 2005B Bonds, which
failure shall have continued for a period of 30 days after written notice of such failure, by registered or
certified mail, shall have been given to the Corporation and the City, requesting that it be remedied,
which notice may be given by the Trustee in its discretion and shall be given by the Trustee at the written
request of the Owners of not less than 25 percent in aggregate principal amount of 2005B Bonds than
Outstanding;

(iv) The occurrence and continuance of any event of default as defined in the 2005B Loan
Agreement; and

(v) The occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy as to the Corporation or the Corporation shall:
(A) commence a proceeding under any federal or State insolvency, reorganization or similar law, or
having such a proceeding commenced against it and either having an order of insolvency or reorganization
entered against it or having the proceeding remain undismissed and unstayed for 90 days or (B) have a
receiver, conservator, liquidator or trustee appointed for it or for the whole or any substantial part of its
property. The declaration of an Event of Default under this provision and the exercise of remedies upon
any such declaration shall be subject to any applicable limitations of federal or State law affecting or
precluding such declaration or exercise during the pendency of or immediately following any liquidation
or reorganization proceedings.

Notice of Default. If an Event of Default shall occur, the Trustee shall give written notice of the Event
of Default, by registered or certified mail, to, among others, the Corporation, the City, the 2005B Bond
Insurer, the Registrar, and any Paying Agent, within five days after the Trustee has notice of the Event of
Default. If an Event of Default occurs of which the Trustee has notice pursuant to the 2005B Indenture, the
Trustee shall give written notice thereof, within 30 days after the receipt by the Trustee of notice of its
occurrence, to the Owners of all 2005B Bonds then Outstanding and affected thereby as shown by the Register
at the close of business 15 days prior to the mailing of that notice; provided that, except in the case of a default
in the payment of the principal of or any premium or interest on any 2005B Bond or the occurrence of an
Event of Bankruptcy as to the Corporation, the Trustee shall be protected in withholding such notice if and so
long as the board of directors, the executive committee or a trust committee of directors or responsible officers
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of the Trustee in good faith determine that the withholding of notice to the Owners is in the interests of the
Owners.

Remedies, No Right of Acceleration. If an Event of Default shall happen, then and in each and every
such case during the continuance of such Event of Default, the Trustee may, and upon request of the Owners
affected thereby as provided in the 2005B Indenture shall, exercise the remedy granted pursuant to the
2005B Loan Agreement; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything therein or in the 2005B Indenture
to the contrary, there shall be no right under any circumstances to accelerate the maturities of the
2005B Bonds or otherwise to declare any 2005B Loan Payment or 2005B Additional Loan Payment not then
past due or in default to be immediately due and payable.

Remedies, Application of Moneys. After payment of any costs, expenses, liabilities and advances paid,
incurred or made by the Trustee in the collection of moneys pursuant to any right given or action taken under
the provisions of the 2005B Indenture or the provisions of the 2005B Loan Agreement, (including without
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, except as limited by law or judicial order or decision
entered in any action taken under the 2005B Indenture) and after any required deposit into the 2005B Rebate
Fund, all moneys received by the Trustee, unless the principal of all of the 2005B Bonds shall have become
due and payable, shall be deposited in the 2005B Revenue Fund and shall be applied:

First Ì To the 2005B Debt Service Account for the payment to the Owners entitled thereto of all
installments of interest then due on the 2005B Bonds, in the order of the due dates of the installments of
that interest, beginning with the earliest due date and, if the amount available is not sufficient to pay in
full any particular installment, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts due on that
installment, to the Owners entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege, except as to any
difference in the respective rates of interest specified in the 2005B Bonds; and

Second Ì To the 2005B Debt Service Account for the payment to the Owners entitled thereto of
the unpaid principal of any of the 2005B Bonds which shall have become due in the order of their due
dates, beginning with the earliest due date, with interest on those 2005B Bonds from the respective dates
upon which they may become due at the rates specified in those 2005B Bonds, and if the amount
available is not sufficient to pay in full all 2005B Bonds due on any particular date, together with that
interest, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal due on that date, to
the Owners entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege, except as to any difference in the
respective rates of interest specified in the 2005B Bonds.

If principal of all the 2005B Bonds shall have become due, all of those moneys shall be deposited in the
2005B Debt Service Account and shall be applied to the payment of the principal and interest then due and
unpaid upon the 2005B Bonds, without preference or priority of principal over interest, of interest over
principal, of any installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any 2005B Bond over any
other 2005B Bond, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, to the Owners
entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege, except as to any difference in the respective rates of
interest specified in the 2005B Bonds.

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of the 2005B Indenture, those moneys
shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine, having due regard to the
amount of moneys available for application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for
application in the future. Whenever the Trustee shall direct the application of those moneys, it shall fix the
date upon which the application is to be made, and upon the date, interest shall cease to accrue on the
amounts of principal, if any, to be paid on that date, provided the moneys are available therefor. The Trustee
shall give notice of the deposit with it of any moneys and of the fixing of that date, all consistent with the
requirements of the 2005B Indenture for the establishment of, and for giving notice with respect to, a Special
Record Date for the payment of overdue interest. The Trustee shall not be required to make payment of
principal on a 2005B Bond to the Owner thereof, until the 2005B Bond shall be presented to the Trustee for
appropriate endorsement or for cancellation if it is paid fully.
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Remedies Vested in Trustee. All rights of action (including without limitation, the right to file proof of
claims) under the 2005B Indenture or under any of the 2005B Bonds may be enforced by the Trustee without
the possession of any of the 2005B Bonds or the production thereof in any trial or other proceeding relating
thereto. The sole remedy of the Trustee under the 2005B Indenture is that of specific performance as set forth
in the 2005B Indenture and the 2005B Loan Agreement. Any suit or proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall
be brought in its name as Trustee without the necessity of joining any Owners as plaintiffs or defendants. Any
recovery of judgment shall be for the benefit of the Owners of the Outstanding Bonds entitled thereto, subject
to the provisions of the 2005B Indenture.

Rights and Remedies of Owners. An Owner shall not have any right to institute any suit, action or
proceeding for the enforcement of the 2005B Indenture, for the execution of any trust of the 2005B Indenture,
or for the exercise of any other remedy under the 2005B Indenture, unless:

(i) there has occurred and is continuing an Event of Default of which the Trustee has been notified,
as provided in the 2005B Indenture or of which it is deemed to have notice pursuant to the
2005B Indenture;

(ii) the Owners of at least 25 percent in aggregate principal amount of the 2005B Bonds then
Outstanding shall have made written request to the Trustee and shall have afforded the Trustee
reasonable opportunity to proceed to exercise the remedies, rights and powers granted in the
2005B Indenture or to institute the suit, action or proceeding in its own name, and shall have offered
indemnity to the Trustee as provided in the 2005B Indenture; and

(iii) the Trustee thereafter shall have failed or refused to exercise the remedies, rights and powers
granted in the 2005B Indenture or to institute the suit, action or proceeding in its own name.

No one or more Owners of the 2005B Bonds shall have any right to affect, disturb or prejudice in any
manner whatsoever the security or benefit of the 2005B Indenture by its or their action, or to enforce, except
in the manner provided in the 2005B Indenture, any remedy, right or power under the 2005B Indenture. Any
suit, action or proceedings shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the
2005B Indenture for the benefit of the Owners of all 2005B Bonds then Outstanding. Nothing in the
2005B Indenture shall affect or impair, however, the right of any Owner to enforce the payment of the Bond
Service Charges on any 2005B Bond owned by that Owner at and after the maturity thereof, at the place, from
the sources and in the manner expressed in that 2005B Bond.

Effect of Policy. Notwithstanding the foregoing discussion under the captions ""Events of Default,''
""Remedy,'' ""Application of Money,'' ""Remedies Vested in Trustee'' and ""Rights and Remedies of Owners,''
the 2005B Bond Insurer shall be deemed to be the sole holder of the 2005B Bonds for so long as the 2005B
Bond Insurer is not in default under the Policy and none of the insurance companies comprising the 2005B
Bond Insurer is then bankrupt or insolvent or in receivership or contesting its obligations.

Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Owners. Without the consent of, or notice, to, any
of the Owners, the Corporation Representative on behalf of the Corporation and the Trustee may enter into
certain indentures supplemental to the 2005B Indenture as provided in the 2005B Indenture which shall not,
in the opinion of the Corporation Representative and the Trustee, be inconsistent with the terms and
provisions of the 2005B Indenture.

Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Owners. Exclusive of Supplemental Indentures to which
reference is made in the preceding paragraph and subject to the terms, provisions and limitations contained in
this paragraph, and not otherwise, with the consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate
principal amount of 2005B Bonds at the time Outstanding and the 2005B Bond Insurer, if the 2005B Bond
Insurer is not then in default with respect to the Policy, evidenced as provided in the 2005B Indenture, the
Corporation and the Trustee may also execute and deliver Supplemental Indentures adding any provisions to,
changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of the 2005B Indenture or any Supplemental
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Indenture or restricting in any manner the rights of the Owners. Nothing in this paragraph or the preceding
paragraph shall permit, however, or be construed as permitting:

(i) without the consent of the Owner of each 2005B Bond so affected and the 2005B Bond Insurer,
if the 2005B Bond Insurer is not then in default with respect to the Policy, (i) an extension of the
maturity of the principal of or the interest on any 2005B Bond or (ii) a reduction in the principal amount
of any 2005B Bond or the rate of interest or premium thereon or

(ii) without the consent of the owners of all 2005B Bonds then Outstanding and the 2005B Bond
Insurer, if the 2005B Bond Insurer is not then in default with respect to the Policy, (i) the creation of a
privilege or priority of any 2005B Bond or 2005B Bonds over any other 2005B Bond or 2005B Bonds, or
(ii) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the 2005B Bonds required for consent to a
Supplemental Indenture.

If the Corporation shall request that the Trustee execute and deliver any Supplemental Indenture for any
of such purposes of the 2005B Indenture, upon being satisfactorily indemnified with respect to its expenses in
connection therewith, the Trustee shall cause notice of the proposed execution and delivery of the
Supplemental Indenture to be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, and to all Owners of 2005B Bonds
affected thereby then Outstanding at their addresses as they appear on the Register at the close of business on
the fifteenth day preceding that mailing. If the Trustee shall receive, within a period prescribed by the
Corporation, of not less than 60 days, but not exceeding one year, following the mailing of the notice, an
instrument or document or instruments or documents, in form to which the Trustee does not reasonably
object, purporting to be executed by the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of
the 2005B Bonds then Outstanding (which instrument or document or instruments or documents shall refer to
the proposed Supplemental Indenture in the form described in the notice and specifically shall consent to the
Supplemental Indenture in substantially that form), the Trustee shall, but shall not otherwise, execute and
deliver the Supplemental Indenture in substantially the form to which reference is made in the notice as being
on file with the Trustee, without liability or responsibility to any Owner, regardless of whether that Owner
shall have consented thereto. Any consent shall be binding upon the Owner of the 2005B Bond giving the
consent and, anything in the 2005B Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, upon any subsequent Owner of
that 2005B Bond and of any 2005B Bond issued in exchange therefor (regardless of whether the subsequent
Owner has notice of the consent to the Supplemental Indenture). A consent may be revoked in writing,
however, by the Owner who gave the consent or by a subsequent Owner of the 2005B Bond by a revocation of
such consent received by the Trustee prior to the execution and delivery by the Trustee of the Supplemental
Indenture. At any time after the Owners of the required percentage of 2005B Bonds shall have filed their
consents to the Supplemental Indenture, the Trustee shall make and file with the Corporation a written
statement that the Owners of the required percentage of 2005B Bonds have filed those consents. That written
statement shall be conclusive evidence that the consents have been so filed. If the Owners of the required
percentage in aggregate principal amount of 2005B Bonds Outstanding shall have consented to the
Supplemental Indenture, as provided above, no Owner shall have any right (i) to object to (a) the execution
or delivery of the Supplemental Indenture, (b) any of the terms and provisions contained therein, or (c) the
operation thereof, (ii) to question the propriety of the execution and delivery thereof, or (iii) to enjoin or
restrain the Trustee or the Corporation from that execution or delivery or from taking any action pursuant to
the provisions thereof.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 2005B Bond Insurer shall be deemed to be the Owner of all
Outstanding Bonds for the purpose of obtaining consent to any Supplemental Indenture which requires
consent of the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of 2005B Bonds Outstanding (but not those
Supplemental Indentures which require the consent of the Owners of all Outstanding Bonds) and shall be
provided with a full transcript of all proceedings relating to the execution thereof so long as the 2005B Bond
Insurer is not in default under the Policy relating to the 2005B Bonds as the case may be, and none of the
insurance companies comprising the 2005B Bond Insurer is then bankrupt or insolvent or in receivership.

Modification by Unanimous Consent. Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in the
2005B Indenture, the rights and obligations of the Corporation and of the Owners, and the terms and
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provisions of the 2005B Bonds and the 2005B Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture may be modified or
altered in any respect with the consent of (i) the Corporation, (ii) the Owners of all of the 2005B Bonds then
Outstanding, (iii) the Trustee and (iv) the 2005B Bond Insurer, so long as the 2005B Bond Insurer is not then
in default under the Policy.

Release of 2005B Indenture. If (i) the Corporation shall pay all of the Outstanding Bonds, or shall cause
them to be paid and discharged, or if there otherwise shall be paid to the Owners of the Outstanding Bonds, all
Bond Service Charges due or to become due thereon, and (ii) provision also shall be made for the payment of all
other sums payable under the 2005B Indenture, then the 2005B Indenture shall cease, determine and become
null and void (except as otherwise provided in the 2005B Indenture), and the covenants, agreements and
obligations of the Corporation under the 2005B Indenture shall be released, discharged and satisfied. Thereupon,
and subject to the other provisions of the 2005B Indenture then applicable,

(i) the Trustee shall release the 2005B Indenture (except for those provisions surviving otherwise
by reason of the 2005B Indenture), and shall execute and deliver to the Corporation any instruments or
documents in writing as shall be requisite to evidence that release and discharge or as reasonably may be
requested by the Corporation, and

(ii) the Trustee and any other Paying Agents shall assign and deliver to the City any property
subject at the time to the pledge of the 2005B Indenture which then may be in their possession, except
amounts in the 2005B Debt Service Fund required otherwise to be held by the Trustee and the Paying
Agents under the 2005B Indenture or otherwise for the payment of Bond Service Charges.

Payment and Discharge of 2005B Bonds. All or any part of the 2005B Bonds shall be deemed to have
been paid and discharged within the meaning of the 2005B Indenture if:

(i) the Trustee as paying agent and any Paying Agents or any qualified trustee shall have received,
in trust for and irrevocably committee thereto, sufficient moneys, or

(ii) the Trustee or any other qualified trustee agreeing to transfer amounts as required by the
2005B Indenture shall have received, in trust for and irrevocably committed thereto, noncallable
Defeasance Obligations which are certified by an independent public accounting firm of national
reputation to be of such maturities or redemption dates and interest payment dates, and to bear such
interest, as well be sufficient together with any moneys to which reference is made in subparagraph (i)
above, without further investment or reinvestment of either the principal amount thereof of the interest
earnings therefrom (which earnings are to be held likewise in trust and so committed, except as provided
in the 2005B Indenture,

for the payment of all Bond Service Charges on those 2005B Bonds, at their maturity dates, or if a default in
payment shall have occurred on any maturity or redemption date, then for the payment of all Bond Service
Charges thereon to the date of the tender of payment to the Owners of the 2005B Bonds as to which such
default exists; provided, if a forward supply contract is employed the requirements of the 2005B Indenture
with respect thereto are satisfied.

Any moneys held by the Trustee or any qualified trustee in accordance with these provisions may be
invested by the Trustee or such other trustee only in obligations described above having maturity dates, or
having redemption dates which, at the option of the owner of those obligations, shall be not later than the date
or dates at which moneys will be required for the purposes described above. To the extent that any income or
interest earned by, or increment to, the investments held under these provisions is determined in accordance
with the certification described in the 2005B Indenture, from time to time by the Trustee or any qualified
trustee to be in excess of the amount required to be held by the Trustee or any qualified trustee for the
purposes of this Section, that income, interest or increment shall be transferred at the time of that
determination to the City.

If any 2005B Bonds shall be deemed paid and discharged pursuant to these provisions, then within
15 days after such 2005B Bonds are so deemed paid and discharged the Trustee or such other trustee shall
cause a written notice to be given to each Owner as shown on the Register on the date on which such 2005B
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Bonds are deemed paid and discharged. Such notice shall state the numbers of the 2005B Bonds deemed paid
and discharged or state that all of the 2005B Bonds are deemed paid and discharged, set forth a description of
the obligations held pursuant to the 2005B Indenture and specify that the 2005B Bonds are not subject to
redemption.

Maintenance of Offices for Payment. So long as the 2005B Bonds or any of them shall be Outstanding,
the Corporation shall cause offices or agencies where the 2005B Bonds may be presented for payment to be
maintained in the City or at the office of the Trustee as provided in the form of the 2005B Bonds.

Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. If any Interest Payment Date or Principal
Payment Date is a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which (i) the Trustee is required, or authorized or not
prohibited, by law (including without limitation, executive orders) to close and is closed, then payment of
Bond Service Charges need not be made by the Trustee or any Paying Agent on such Interest Payment Date
or Principal Payment Date, but that payment may be made on the next succeeding business day on which the
Trustee and the Paying Agent are open for business with the same force and effect as if that payment were
made on the Interest Payment Date or Principal Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue for the period
after such Interest Payment Date, or (ii) a Paying Agent is required, or authorized or not prohibited, by law
(including without limitation, executive orders) to close and is closed, then payment of Bond Service Charges
need not be made by that Paying Agent on that date, but that payment may be made on the next succeeding
business day on which that Paying Agent is open for business with the same force and effect as if that payment
were made on the Interest Payment Date or Principal Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue for the
period after that date; provided, that if the Trustee is open for business on the applicable Interest Payment
Date or Principal Payment Date, it shall make any payment required hereunder with respect to payment of
Bond Service Charges on 2005B Bonds presented to it for payment, regardless of whether any Paying Agent
shall be open for business or closed on the applicable Interest Payment Date or Principal Payment Date.

Summary of Certain Provisions of the 2005B Loan Agreement

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the 2005B Loan Agreement. This summary is not
purported to be complete, and reference is made to the full text of the 2005B Loan Agreement for a complete
recital of its terms, including definitions of capitalized terms herein.

General. The 2005B Loan Agreement has been entered into between the City, as obligor and the
Corporation, as lender. The Project which is the subject to the 2005B Loan Agreement is not pledged for the
payment of the Loan Payments. The 2005B Loan Agreement contains the terms and conditions under which
the 2005B Loan is made to the City.

Payment of 2005B Loan. Pursuant to the 2005B Loan Agreement, the City agrees to the payment of all
2005B ACCDF Transfer Fund Loan Payments due thereunder, but only from amounts in the ACCDF
Transfer Fund. The 2005B ACCDF Transfer Fund Loan Payments will be in an amount equal to the entire
balance in the ACCDF Transfer Fund on August 1 of each Bond Year, commencing the August 1 following
the filing of the Completion Certificate with the State Treasurer. In the event the first State Distribution does
not occur on August 1, 2009 or the total eligible cost of the Project funded by the State Distributions, as
specified in the Completion Certificate, is less than $300,000,000, the City shall make 2005B Additional Loan
Payments in amounts sufficient to fund any shortfall between the debt service due on the 2005B Bonds and
the State Distributions.

The obligation of the City to make payments under the 2005B Loan Agreement is absolute and
unconditional but does not constitute a general obligation of the City and does not constitute an indebtedness
of the City, the State of Arizona or any of its political subdivisions within the meaning of any constitutional or
statutory debt limitation restrictions. Except to the extent the City is required to make 2005B Additional Loan
Payments from Excise Taxes or determines to make such payments from Other Available Moneys, all
amounts to be paid by the City under the 2005B Loan Agreement are payable solely from the State
Distributions.
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Repeal or Amendment of Act. If the Act is repealed or amended in such manner that the ability of the
City to be reimbursed with interest for any 2005B Additional Loan Payments is adversely affected, the City's
obligation to make its 2005B Additional Loan Payments shall be terminated or adjusted downward by the City
to the extent of the amendment's adverse impact.

Prepayment of the 2005B Loan Generally. The City is permitted to prepay all or a part of the 2005B
Loan to the extent and in the manner permitted by the 2005B Indenture. Upon any partial prepayment of the
2005B Loan resulting in a defeasance of 2005B Bonds, each installment of interest thereafter payable will be
reduced, taking into account the interest rate or rates on the 2005B Bonds remaining outstanding.

Parity Obligations. Under the 2005B Loan Agreement, the City reserves the right to incur obligations
payable from the Excise Taxes in the future on a parity with the obligations to make any 2005B Additional
Loan Payments thereunder, but only if upon the incurring of such future obligation or obligations the following
conditions are met:

(a) The pledged Excise Taxes received by the City during the completed fiscal year immediately
preceding the incurring of the proposed parity obligation are at least equal to the highest combined total,
for any succeeding 12 month period, of amounts due on Senior Obligations and Junior Obligations during
such period plus two times the 2005B Additional Loan Payments, if any, and the interest and principal
requirements for all parity obligations then outstanding and all proposed parity obligations to be secured
by a pledge of taxes during such period using the applicable maximum interest rates where variable rate
obligations are involved in such computations; and

(b) The City shall certify through its Finance Director or other appropriate official that it is not in
default in any payment under the 2005B Loan Agreement or with respect to any obligation described and
included within that Section.

Assignment. Pursuant to the 2005B Indenture, the Corporation's rights under the 2005B Loan
Agreement, including the right to receive and enforce payment of the 2005B ACCDF Transfer Fund Loan
Payments and the 2005B Additional Loan Payments, if any, to be made by the City under the 2005B Loan
Agreement, have been assigned to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the 2005B Bonds.

Defaults and Remedies. The following are events of default under the 2005B Loan Agreement:

(a) Failure by the City to pay any 2005B ACCDF Transfer Fund Loan Payment or 2005B
Additional Loan Payment or other payment required to be paid with respect to the 2005B Bonds under
the 2005B Loan Agreement at the time specified therein;

(b) Failure by the City to observe and perform any other covenant and condition on its part to be
observed or performed under the 2005B Loan Agreement for a period of 30 days after written notice
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to the City by the Corporation
or the Trustee; and

(c) The filing by the City of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or failure by the City promptly to
lift any execution, garnishment or attachment, or adjudication of the City as a bankrupt, or assignment by
the City for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by the City into an agreement of composition with
creditors, or the approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of a petition applicable to the City in any
proceedings instituted under the provisions of the federal bankruptcy laws.

Upon the occurrence and continuance of an event of default, the Corporation will be entitled to enforce
the 2005B Loan Agreement by appropriate action to collect any amounts due and owing or to cause the City
to perform its other obligations under the 2005B Loan Agreement. The Corporation's sole remedy under the
2005B Loan Agreement is that of specific performance. Notwithstanding anything in the 2005B Loan
Agreement or in the 2005B Indenture to the contrary, there shall be no right under any circumstances to
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accelerate or otherwise to declare any 2005B ACCDF Transfer Fund Loan Payment or 2005B Additional
Loan Payment not then past due or in default to be immediately due and payable. The City shall be liable for
all expenses and costs which the Corporation incurs or may incur in connection with the enforcement of any of
its remedies in the 2005B Loan Agreement, including reasonable attorney's fees to the extent permitted by
law.

Tax Covenants. Under the 2005B Loan Agreement, the City and the Corporation covenant that each
shall not make use of the Project or the proceeds of the 2005B Bonds or take any action which would adversely
affect the exclusion of interest on the 2005B Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Amendments to 2005B Loan Agreement. The Corporation and the Trustee may, without the consent of
or notice to any of the Owners, consent to and join with the City in the execution and delivery of any
amendment, change or modification of the 2005B Loan Agreement; provided the Trustee reserves an opinion
of nationally recognized bond counsel to the affect that such amendment (i) does not adversely affect the
exclusion of interest on the 2005B Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes and (ii) does not
adversely affect the interests of the Owners.
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APPENDIX I

PROPOSED FORM OF LEGAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL
®LETTERHEAD OF SQUIRE, SANDERS & DEMPSEY L.L.P.©

®TO BE DATED CLOSING DATE©

To: City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation
Phoenix, Arizona

We have examined the transcript of proceedings (the ""Transcript'') relating to the issuance of
$275,362,351.75 State of Arizona Distribution Revenue Bonds, Series 2005B (Civic Plaza Expansion Project)
(the ""2005B Bonds'') of the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation (the ""Corporation''), dated as
of the date hereof. The 2005B Bonds are being issued for the purpose of providing funds to assist the City of
Phoenix, Arizona (the ""City'') with financing the construction, expansion, modification and improvement of
the Phoenix Civic Plaza Convention Center. The documents in the Transcript examined include an executed
counterpart of the following: (i) the Series 2005B Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2005 (the ""2005B
Loan Agreement''), between the Corporation, as lender, and the City, as obligor; and (ii) the Series 2005B
Trust Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2005 (the ""2005B Indenture''), between the Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. We have also examined an executed 2005B Bond of the first
maturity.

Based upon such examination, we are of the opinion that, under the law existing on the date of this
opinion:

1. The 2005B Bonds, the 2005B Loan Agreement and the 2005B Indenture are legal, valid, binding
and enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, subject to bankruptcy laws and other laws
affecting creditors' rights and to the exercise of judicial discretion.

2. The 2005B Bonds constitute special revenue obligations of the Corporation, and the principal of
and interest and any premium on the 2005B Bonds (collectively, ""debt service''), unless paid from other
sources, are payable solely from the revenues and other moneys pledged and assigned by the 2005B
Indenture to secure that payment. Those revenues and other moneys include certain payments required to
be made by the City under the 2005B Loan Agreement, and the City's obligation to make those payments
is secured by a pledge of certain distributions of excise taxes to be made by the State of Arizona to the
City pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Sections 9-601 through 9-626 and Sections 42-5029 and 42-
5030 (the ""State Distributions''), and, to the limited extent specified in the 2005B Loan Agreement,
excise taxes levied and collected by the City and shared taxes received by the City from the State of
Arizona. The 2005B Indenture creates the pledge which it purports to create in the pledged revenues and
other moneys in the funds and accounts created and pledged by the 2005B Indenture, which pledge will
be perfected only as to the revenues and other moneys on deposit in the funds and accounts created by the
2005B Indenture. The 2005B Bonds and the payment of debt service are not secured by an obligation or
pledge of any moneys raised by taxation other than the State Distributions and the specified excise and
shared taxes; the 2005B Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt or pledge of the general credit of the
Corporation, the City or the State of Arizona; and the 2005B Loan Agreement, including the City's
obligation to make the payments required thereunder, does not represent or constitute a debt or pledge of
the general credit of the City.

3. The interest on the 2005B Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes
under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the ""Code''), is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations
and is exempt from Arizona state income taxes so long as that interest is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. We express no opinion as to other tax consequences regarding the 2005B
Bonds.
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Under the Code, portions of the interest on the 2005B Bonds earned by certain corporations (as defined
for federal income tax purposes) may be subject to a federal corporate alternative minimum tax and interest
on the 2005B Bonds may be subject to a federal branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations
doing business in the United States, and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain
S corporations.

In giving the foregoing opinions with respect to the treatment of the interest on the 2005B Bonds and the
status of the 2005B Bonds under the tax laws, we have assumed and relied upon compliance with the
covenants of the Corporation and the City and the accuracy, which we have not independently verified, of the
representations and certifications of the Corporation and the City contained in the Transcript. The accuracy of
certain of those representations and certifications, and the compliance by the Corporation and the City with
certain of those covenants, may be necessary for the interest on the 2005B Bonds to be and to remain excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain requirements subsequent to
the issuance of the 2005B Bonds may cause interest thereon to be included in gross income for federal income
tax purposes and to be subject to Arizona state income taxes retroactively to the date of issuance of the 2005B
Bonds. We have also relied upon the legal opinion of counsel to the City, contained in the Transcript, as to all
matters concerning the due authorization of the 2005B Loan Agreement by the City.

Respectfully submitted,
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APPENDIX J

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INFORMATION
UNDER SECTION (b)(5) OF RULE 15c2-12

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the ""Undertaking'' or the ""Agreement''), dated October 6,
2005 is executed and delivered by the City of Phoenix, Arizona (the ""City'') in connection with the issuance
of $275,362,351.75 City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation State of Arizona Distribution Revenue
Bonds, Series 2005B (Civic Plaza Expansion Project) (the ""2005B Bonds''). The 2005B Bonds are being
issued pursuant to a Series 2005B Trust Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2005 (the ""2005B Indenture'') by
and between the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation (the ""Corporation'') and U.S. Bank
National Association, Phoenix, Arizona, as trustee (the ""Trustee''). The City covenants and agrees as follows:

1. Purpose of this Undertaking. This Undertaking is executed and delivered by the City as of the date
set forth below, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the 2005B Bonds and in order to assist the
Participating Underwriters in complying with the requirements of the Rule (as defined below). The City
represents that it will be the only obligated person with respect to the 2005B Bonds at the time the 2005B
Bonds are delivered to the Participating Underwriters and that no other person is expected to become so
committed at any time after issuance of the 2005B Bonds.

2. Definitions. The terms set forth below shall have the following meanings in this Undertaking, unless
the context clearly otherwise requires.

""Annual Financial Information'' means the financial information and operating data set forth in
Exhibit I.

""Annual Financial Information Disclosure'' means the dissemination of disclosure concerning Annual
Financial Information and the dissemination of the Audited Financial Statements as set forth in Section 4.

""Audited Financial Statements'' means the audited financial statements of the City prepared pursuant to
the standards and as described in Exhibit I.

""Commission'' means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

""Dissemination Agent'' means any agent designated as such in writing by the City and which has filed
with the City a written acceptance of such designation, and such agent's successors and assigns.

""Event'' means the occurrence of any of the events set forth in Exhibit II.

""Exchange Act'' means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

""Material Event'' means the occurrence of events set forth in Exhibit II that are material, as materiality
is interpreted under the Exchange Act.

""Material Events Disclosure'' means dissemination of disclosure concerning a Material Event as set forth
in Section 5.

""MSRB'' means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
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""NRMSIRs'' means, as of any date, any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information
Repository then recognized by the Securities and Exchange Commission for purposes of the Rule. As of the
date of this Undertaking, the NRMSIRs are:

Bloomberg Municipal Repository
100 Business Park Drive
Skillman, NJ 08558
Phone: (609) 279-3225
Fax: (609) 279-5962
E-Mail: munis@bloomberg.com

DPC Data Inc.
One Executive Drive
Fort Lee, NJ 07024
Phone: (201) 346-0701
Fax: (201) 947-0107
E-Mail: nrmsir@dpcdata.com

FT Interactive Data
Attn: NRMSIR
100 William Street, 15th Floor
New York, NY 10038
Phone: (212) 771-6999; (800) 689-8466
Fax: (212) 771-7390
E-Mail: NRMSIR@interactivedata.com

Standard & Poor's Securities Evaluations, Inc.
55 Water Street Ì 45th Floor
New York, NY 10041
Phone: (212) 438-4595
Fax: (212) 438-3975
E-Mail: nrmsir repository@sandp.com

The names and addresses of all current NRMSIRs should be verified each time information is delivered
pursuant to this Undertaking.

""Participating Underwriters'' means each broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer acting as an
underwriter in the primary offering of the 2005B Bonds.

""Rule'' means Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange
Act, as the same may be amended from time to time.

""SID'' means any public or private repository designated by the State as the state repository and
recognized as such by the Commission for purposes of the Rule. As of the date of this Agreement, no SID
exists within the State. The name and address of the SID, if any, should be verified each time information is
delivered pursuant to this Agreement.

""State'' means the State of Arizona.

""2005B Loan Agreement'' means the Series 2005B Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2005,
between the Corporation, as lender, and the City, as obligor.

""Undertaking'' means the obligations of the City pursuant to Sections 4 and 5 hereof.
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3. CUSIP Number/Final Official Statement. The CUSIP Numbers of the 2005B Bonds are as
follows:

CUSIP No. Maturity Date CUSIP No. Maturity Date

71884WAA9 7/01/12 71884WAV3 7/01/31
71884WAB7 7/01/13 71884WAW1 7/01/32
71884WAG6 7/01/18 71884WAX9 7/01/33
71884WAH4 7/01/19 71884WAY7 7/01/34
71884WAJ0 7/01/20 71884WAZ4 7/01/35
71884WAK7 7/01/21 71884WBA8 7/01/36
71884WAL5 7/01/22 71884WBB6 7/01/37
71884WAM3 7/01/23 71884WBC4 7/01/38
71884WAN1 7/01/24 71884WBD2 7/01/39
71884WAP6 7/01/25 71884WBE0 7/01/40
71884WAQ4 7/01/26 71884WBF7 7/01/41
71884WAR2 7/01/27 71884WBG5 7/01/42
71884WAS0 7/01/28 71884WBH3 7/01/43
71884WAT8 7/01/29 71884WBJ9 7/01/44
71884WAU5 7/01/30

The Final Official Statement relating to the 2005B Bonds is dated September 21, 2005 (the ""Final Official
Statement'').

4. Annual Financial Information Disclosure. Subject to Section 10 of this Undertaking, the City shall
disseminate its Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statements, if any (in the form and by
the dates set forth in Exhibit I), to all NRMSIRs and to the SID, if any. The City is required to deliver such
information in such manner and by such time so that such entities receive the information on the date
specified.

If any part of the Annual Financial Information can no longer be generated because the operations to
which it is related have been materially changed or discontinued, the City will disseminate a statement to such
effect as part of its Annual Financial Information for the year in which such event first occurs.

If any amendment is made to this Agreement, the Annual Financial Information for the year in which
such amendment is made shall contain a narrative description of the reasons for such amendment and its
impact on the type of information being provided.

5. Material Events Disclosure. Subject to Section 10 of this Undertaking, the City hereby covenants
that it will disseminate in a timely manner Material Events Disclosure to each NRMSIR or the MSRB, and
to the SID, if any. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of optional or unscheduled redemption of any of the
2005B Bonds or defeasance of any 2005B Bonds need not be given under this Agreement any earlier than the
notice (if any) of such redemption or defeasance is given to the Bondholders pursuant to the 2005B Indenture.

6. Duty to Update NRMSIRs/SID. The City shall determine, in the manner it deems appropriate, the
names and addresses of the then existing NRMSIRs and SID each time it is required to file information with
such entities.

7. Consequences of Failure of the City to Provide Information. The City shall give notice in a timely
manner to each NRMSIR or to the MSRB, and to the SID, if any, of any failure to provide Annual Financial
Information Disclosure when the same is due hereunder.

In the event of a failure of the City to comply with any provision of this Undertaking, the beneficial owner
of any 2005B Bond may seek mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the City to comply
with its obligations under this Undertaking. A default under this Undertaking shall not be deemed an Event of
Default under the 2005B Loan Agreement or the 2005B Indenture, and the sole remedy available to
Bondholders under this Undertaking in the event of any failure of the City to comply with this Undertaking
shall be an action to compel performance.
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8. Alternate Means of Disclosure. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 4, 5, and 7 requiring that
the City file its Annual Financial Information Disclosure, Material Events Disclosure and notice of any failure
to comply with this Undertaking with each of the NRMSIRs and any SID, the City may instead comply with
the provisions of this Undertaking by filing the required information with an entity then recognized by the
Commission as eligible to receive filings and submit such filings to the NRMSIRs and any SID for purposes
of the Rule (a ""Central Post Office''). As of the date of this Undertaking, the Central Post Office that has
been recognized by the Commission is:

Disclosure USA.org
P.O. Box 684667
Austin, Texas 78768-4667
Fax: (512) 476-6403
http://www.disclosureusa.org

9. Amendments; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the City by certified
resolution or ordinance authorizing such amendment or waiver, may amend this Undertaking, and any
provision of this Undertaking may be waived only if:

(a) The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises
from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the City,
or type of business conducted;

(b) This Undertaking, as amended or affected by such waiver, would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the beneficial owners of
the 2005B Bonds, as determined by parties unaffiliated with the City (such as the Trustee) or by
approving vote of the Bondholders pursuant to the terms of the 2005B Indenture at the time of the
amendment.

The Annual Financial Information containing amended operating data or financial information resulting
from such amendment or waiver, if any, shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment or
waiver and the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided. If an
amendment or waiver is made specifying the generally accepted accounting principles (""GAAP'') to be
followed in preparing financial statements and such changes are material, the Annual Financial Information
for the year in which the change is made shall present a comparison between the financial statements or
information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles. Such comparison shall include a
qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the change in the
accounting principles in the presentation of the financial information in order to provide information to
investors to enable them to evaluate the ability of the City to meet its obligations. To the extent reasonably
feasible, such comparison also shall be quantitative. If the accounting principles of the City change or the
Fiscal Year of the City changes, the City shall file a notice of such change in the same manner as for a notice
of material event.

10. Termination of Undertaking. The Undertaking of the City shall be terminated hereunder if the
City shall no longer have liability for any obligation on or relating to repayment of the 2005B Bonds under the
2005B Loan Agreement. The City shall give notice in a timely manner if such event occurs, to each NRMSIR
or to the MSRB, and to the SID, if any.

11. Dissemination Agent. The City may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent
to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Undertaking, and may discharge any such Agent, with or
without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.

12. Additional Information. Nothing in this Undertaking shall be deemed to prevent the City from
disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Undertaking or any
other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual Financial Information
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Disclosure or notice of occurrence of a Material Event, in addition to that which is required by this
Undertaking. If the City chooses to include any information from any document or notice of occurrence of a
Material Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Undertaking, the City shall have no
obligation under this Undertaking to update such information or include it in any future Annual Financial
Information Disclosure or Material Events Disclosure.

13. Beneficiaries. This Undertaking has been executed in order to assist the Participating
Underwriters in complying with the Rule; however, this Undertaking shall inure solely to the benefit of the
City, the Dissemination Agent, if any, and the beneficial owners of the 2005B Bonds, and shall create no rights
in any other person or entity.

14. Recordkeeping. The City shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information Disclosure
and Material Events Disclosure including the content of such disclosure, the names of the entities with whom
such disclosure was filed and the date of filing such disclosure.

15. Assignment. The City shall not transfer its obligations under the 2005B Loan Agreement unless
the transferee agrees to assume all obligations of the City under this Undertaking or to execute an
Undertaking meeting the requirements of the Rule.

16. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State.

CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA
By Frank Fairbanks
Its City Manager

By:

Bob Wingenroth
Interim Finance Director

ATTEST:

By:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

City Attorney
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EXHIBIT I

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

""Annual Financial Information'' means the information and operating data of the type contained in the
Final Official Statement under the heading ""APPENDIX C Ì CITY OF PHOENIX,
ARIZONA Ì OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE FROM EXCISE TAXES.''

All or a portion of the Annual Financial Information and the Audited Financial Statements as set forth
below may be included by reference to other documents which have been submitted to each NRMSIR and to
the SID, if any, or filed with the Commission. If the information included by reference is contained in a Final
Official Statement, the Final Official Statement must be available from the MSRB; the Final Official
Statement need not be available from each NRMSIR, the SID or the Commission. The City shall clearly
identify each such item of information included by reference.

Annual Financial Information exclusive of Audited Financial Statements will be provided to each
NRMSIR and to the SID, if any, by February 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2006, 210 days after
the last day of the City's fiscal year. Audited Financial Statements as described below should be filed at the
same time as the Annual Financial Information. If Audited Financial Statements are not available when the
Annual Financial Information is filed, unaudited financial statements shall be included, to be followed up by
Audited Financial Statements when available.

Audited Financial Statements will be prepared according to GAAP, as applied to governmental units as
modified by State law. Audited Financial Statements will be provided to each NRMSIR and to the SID, if
any, within 30 days after availability to the City.

If any change is made to the Annual Financial Information as permitted by Section 4 of the Undertaking,
the City will disseminate a notice of such change as required by Section 4, including changes in Fiscal Year or
GAAP.
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EXHIBIT II

EVENTS FOR WHICH MATERIAL EVENTS DISCLOSURE IS REQUIRED

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies

2. Non-payment related defaults

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform

6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the 2005B Bonds

7. Modifications to the rights of bondholders

8. Bond calls

9. Defeasances

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the 2005B Bonds

11. Rating changes

EXHIBIT II
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APPENDIX K

SCHEDULE OF COMPOUND ACCRETED VALUES OF THE 2005B BONDS
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